MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

DRAFT

MINUTES — 26 OCTOBER 2021

Minutes of Ordinary meeting of the Port Stephens Council held in the Council
Chambers, Raymond Terrace on — 26 October 2021, commencing at 6:51pm.

PRESENT: Mayor R Palmer, Councillors J Abbott (via audio
link), G Arnott, C Doohan, G Dunkley, K Jordan, P
Le Mottee, J Nell, S Smith, General Manager (via
audio link), Corporate Services Group Manager,
Facilities and Services Group Manager,
Development Services Group Manager and
Governance Section Manager.

276 Councillor John Nell
Councillor Glen Dunkley

It was resolved that the apology from Cr Steve Tucker be received and
noted.

The motion was carried.

277 Councillor Ken Jordan
Councillor Chris Doohan

It was resolved that the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Port Stephens
Council held on 12 October 2021 be confirmed.

The motion was carried.
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Mayor Palmer declared a significant non-pecuniary conflict of interest in
Notice of Motion No. 1. The nature of the interest is Chief Executive
Officer of Port Stephens Koalas is a fellow mayoral candidate.

Cr Arnott declared a less significant non-pecuniary conflict of interest in
Notice of Motion No. 1. The nature of the interest is Cr Arnott is a
member of the same political party as the Chief Executive Officer of Port
Stephens Koalas - noting that the Code of Conduct specifically says that
political affiliation is not a conflict of interest, however, declaring in the
interest of transparency.

Corporate Services Group Manager declared a significant non-
pecuniary conflict of interest in Notice of Motion No. 1. The nature of the
interest is the Group Manager is a Council appointed Board member of
Port Stephens Koalas.

MOTION TO CONSIDER BUSINESS WHICH NOTICE HAS NOT BEEN GIVEN

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021

Councillor Giacomo Arnott
That Council:

1) Notes that there have been several car crashes on Nelson Bay Road
at Fern Bay in recent months.

2) Notes community concern that at least one of them has been due to a
family of ducks crossing the road.

3) Notes community information that the same family of ducks that
caused a recent crash was subsequently run over while trying to cross
the road.

4) Expresses its condolences to the local duck population at Fern Bay.
5) Writes to Transport for NSW asking them to urgently install signage on
Nelson Bay Road warning motorists of the potential for ducks to be

crossing the road and in the general area.

The Chairperson ruled that the business was not a matter of great urgency.
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MOTION TO CONSIDER BUSINESS WHICH NOTICE HAS NOT BEEN GIVEN

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021

MOTION

278

Councillor Giacomo Arnott
Mayor Ryan Palmer

It was resolved that Council consider a matter of urgency motion without
notice from Cr Arnott.

The motion was carried.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021

MOTION

279

Councillor Giacomo Arnott
Mayor Ryan Palmer

It was resolved that Council:

1)

2)

3)

4)

Notes the work of nurses, doctors, police, teachers, volunteers,
members of the community, Council staff, frontline workers, cleaners,
and many other professions throughout the pandemic should be
recognised.

Agrees that it is important to support local businesses as the economy
and society re-open.

Runs a digital and communication campaign to:

Acknowledge the contributions of everyone during the pandemic
through a "thank you and welcome back week"

Support local businesses and the local community through this
campaign

Recognise the efforts of Port Stephens residents for being the highest
vaccinated rate in the Hunter.

The motion was carried.

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL 3




MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

INDEX
SUBJECT PAGE NO
COUNCIL REPORTS.....ooiiciiiiseessseissaseessssssesesssssssessssssiseseesesnssons 6
NOTICE OF MOTION
1. PORT STEPHENS KOALAS. ... 7

1. DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION DA NO. 16-2007-15-5 FOR A
S4.55(2) MODIFICATION TO AN APPROVED CARAVAN PARK AT

16 TROTTER ROAD, BOBS FARM......ouiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 11
2. HOUSEKEEPING AMENDMENT TO THE PORT STEPHENS LOCAL

ENVIRONMENTAL PLAN ..o 33
3. KARUAH PLACE PLAN ... 44
4. POLICY REVIEW: ROAD NAMING AND ADDRESSING GUIDELINES

POLICY e 60
5. POLICY REVIEW: BEACHSIDE HOLIDAY PARKS MAJOR EVENT

SPONSORSHIP AND PROMOTIONS POLICY ....ooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii s 69
6. POLICY REVIEW: COMMUNITY GROUP LOANS POLICY......cccvvviiiiiiieeenn. 80
7 POLICY REVIEW: ASSET DISPOSAL (OTHER THAN PROPERTY)

PO LI e 93
8. POLICY REVIEW: BUDGET CONTROL AND AUTHORISATION

P O LY e 101
9. POLICY REVIEW - OUTDOOR TRADING POLICY .....cccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee, 111
10. NEW POLICY - CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION (CCTV) IN PUBLIC

PLACES ... 122
11. ANNUAL REPORT 2020 TO 2021 .....ccovtiiiiiieieeeiieeiiii e 132
12. 2020 - 2021 ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS......cccooiiiiiiii, 137
13. END OF TERM REPORT 2017 TO 2021.......ccceiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeri e 253
14. PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY AND

PROSPERITY FUND ... 256
15. SALE OF BIOBANKING CREDITS FROM THE KARUAH

BIOBANKING SITE ... ..o 266
16. QUARTERLY BUDGET REVIEW TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2021 ...................... 271
17. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY ....ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiei 294
18. LOCAL STRENGTHENING FUNDS/GRANTS FUNDING...........ccvvvvivrnennnee. 322
19. WASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2021-2031 .......ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiineeee 329
20. REVIEW OF DOG OFF LEAD AREAS - BOAT HARBOUR..........ccccvvvuinnnnn. 373
21. AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2020 TO 2021.........ccoevvvvvviiiinnnnnn. 378
22. REQUEST FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE ......ccooiiiiiiiiiiii e 386
23.  INFORMATION PAPERS ... 391

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL 4




MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

INFORMATION PAPERS ... 3912
1. QUARTERLY GRANTS UPDATE - 30 SEPTEMBER 2021............cccoevinnees 393
2. COUNCIL MEETINGS DURING ELECTION PERIOD........c..ceciiiiiiiiiiiiniies 395
3. COUNCIL RESOLUTIONS ... 396
4. SEPTEMBER 2021 CASH AND INVESTMENTS ..., 408
5. QUESTIONS ON NOTICE/QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE ......ccccovviiiiiiinenen. 411
NOTICES OF MOTION ...t 413
2. CARAVAN PARK COMMUNITIES........cooiiiiiiiiii e 414
3. MEDOWIE LIBRARY ..o 416
4. FORD ROAD, MEDOWIE .......oiiiiiiiiiii e 418
5. STURGEON STREET, RAYMOND TERRACE .......ccooiiiiiiee, 420
6. RAYMOND TERRACE LAKESIDE PATHWAY ..., 421
7. NELSON BAY ROAD AND GAN GAN ROAD.......ccouriiiiiiiieeiiiieii e 423
8. FORESHORE RESERVES ..., 425
9. REUSABLE NAPPIES AND MENSTRUAL PRODUCTS. ..., 427
10. FLYING-FOX ISSUES AT ROSS WALLBRIDGE RESERVE ..................... 429
11. ROBINSON RESERVE - DOG POO BAGS.......ccooiiiiiieeeeie e 431
12. BOOMERANG PARK BBQS......oo i 433
13. ILLEGAL DUMPING.....coiiiiiiiiiie et 435
14. AIR QUALITY MONITORING AT EXTRACTIVE INDUSTRIAL

OPERATIONS . L.t e e e enaneee 437
15.  PARKING ON COUNCIL LAND .....coiiiiiii 439
16. IRIS MOORE RESERVE.........iiiiiiiiiiii e 441
17. TOMAREE ROAD FOOTPATH. ... 442
18. NEWCASTLE AIRPORT BOARD ....ccooiiiiiiiiiiieciieeeii e 444
19.  MAYORAL DIARY ..o 449

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL 5




MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

COUNCIL REPORTS

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL




MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

280 Councillor Ken Jordan
Councillor Paul Le Mottee

It was resolved that Notice of Motion No. 1 be brought forward and dealt
with as the first item of business.

The motion was carried.

Mayor Ryan Palmer vacated the chair and left the meeting at 7:05pm.
Corporate Services Group Manager left the meeting at 7:05pm.

Deputy Mayor, Cr Paul Le Mottee chaired the meeting.

NOTICE OF MOTION
ITEMNO. 1 FILE NO: 21/275244

EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00019
PORT STEPHENS KOALAS

COUNCILLOR: KEN JORDAN

THAT COUNCIL:

1) Calls on the CEO and President of Port Stephens Koalas (PSK) to stand down
until the investigation is undertaken.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

281 Councillor Ken Jordan
Councillor Chris Doohan

It was resolved that Council calls on the CEO and President of Port
Stephens Koalas (PSK) to stand down until the investigation is
undertaken.

Cr Giacomo Arnott and Cr John Nell called for a division.

Those for the Motion: Crs Jaimie Abbott, Chris Doohan, Glen Dunkley, Ken Jordan
and Sarah Smith.
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Those against the Motion: Crs Giacomo Arnott, Paul Le Mottee and John Nell.

The motion was carried.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
PROCEDURAL MOTION

Councillor Giacomo Arnott

That a motion of dissent be put in the Chairperson, Cr Paul LeMottee.

The motion lapsed without a seconder.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
AMENDMENT

Councillor Giacomo Arnott

That Council:

1) Calls on the Chief Executive Officer and President of Port Stephens
Koalas (PSK) to stand down until the investigation is undertaken.

2) Acknowledges that it does not have the power to try and force anyone
to step aside from Port Stephens Koalas.

The amendment lapsed without a seconder.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
AMENDMENT

Councillor Giacomo Arnott

That Council:

1) Calls on the Chief Executive Officer and President of Port Stephens
Koalas (PSK) to stand down until the investigation is undertaken.

2) Acknowledges that it lacks legal authority to take the action described in
point 1.

The amendment lapsed without a seconder.
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021

MOTION

Councillor Giacomo Arnott

That Council:

1) Calls on the Chief Executive Officer and President of Port Stephens
Koalas (PSK) to stand down until the investigation is undertaken.

2) Acknowledges that no allegations have been put to Port Stephens
Koalas or the General Manager, and that this motion denies procedural
fairness for those who may have a complaint and those who investigate
any such complaint.

The amendment lapsed without a seconder.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021

MOTION

Councillor Giacomo Arnott

That Council:

1) Calls on the Chief Executive Officer and President of Port Stephens
Koalas (PSK) to stand down until the investigation is undertaken.

2) Agrees that this motion is purely a political stunt on a dedicated
volunteer, and that those who have moved and seconded it should
hang their heads in shame.

The amendment lapsed without a seconder.

BACKGROUND REPORT OF: WAYNE WALLIS - GENERAL MANAGER

BACKGROUND

Council entered into a partnership with Port Stephens Koalas (PSK) as part of the
development of the Koala Sanctuary which opened in September 2020. PSK is a
separate incorporated body that fulfils a number of functions in relation to the
conservation of koalas within the Port Stephens LGA.

In relation to Council’'s Koala Sanctuary, PSK operates the hospital and associated
care services for koalas as well as maintain a number of koalas on the premises.
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Council entered into a commercial services agreement to outline how the parties
cooperate in the operation of this facility. As part of this services agreement, Council
contributes ongoing annual funding to PSK to provide a level of ongoing financial
stability to assist in PSK meeting its obligations under the services agreement. This is
a commercially binding agreement.

This arrangement is a highly cost effective way for Council to have koalas cared for
and displayed at the Koala Sanctuary, which is critical to ongoing success of this

business.

Following media reports, PSK have advised Council an independent and confidential
investigation of allegations relating to the management of PSK and the Koala

Hospital will be undertaken.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)
Existing budget Yes
Reserve Funds No
Developer Contributions | No
(§7.11)
External Grants No
Other No
ATTACHMENTS
Nil.
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Deputy Mayor, Cr Paul Le Mottee vacated the chair.
Mayor Ryan Palmer returned to the meeting at 7:37pm and resumed the chair.
Corporate Services Group Manager returned to the meeting 7:37pm.

ITEMNO. 1 FILE NO: 21/243180
EDRMS NO:

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION DA NO. 16-2007-15-5 FOR A S4.55(2)
MODIFICATION TO AN APPROVED CARAVAN PARK AT 16 TROTTER ROAD,
BOBS FARM

REPORT OF: KATE DRINAN - DEVELOPMENT AND COMPLIANCE SECTION
MANAGER
GROUP: DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Approve Development Application 16-2007-15-5 subject to the conditions
contained in (ATTACHMENT 3).

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

282 Councillor John Nell
Councillor Chris Doohan

It was resolved that Council approve Development Application DA No. 16-
2007-15-5 for a S4.55(2) modification to an approved caravan park at 16
Trotter Road, Bobs Farm (LOT 2 DP 954600) subject to the conditions
contained in (ATTACHMENT 3) with the following additional condition:

e Prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate, the Concept
masterplan, dwg. 240060-DA-001-E, Version Q, prepared by ADW
Johnson and dated 2/09/2021 is to be amended to remove sites
104, 112, 113 and 114 from the area outside the development
footprint approved under DA 16-2007-15-3.

There are only 4 long term sites outside of the footprint, the other 2 sites
are the short term sites which would need to remain.

Councillor Jaimie Abbott left the meeting at 8:01pm.

In accordance with Section 375 (A) of the Local Government Act 1993, a division is
required for this item.
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Those for the Motion: Crs Chris Doohan, Glen Dunkley, Ken Jordan, John Nell and
Sarah Smith.

Those against the Motion: Crs Giacomo Arnott, Paul Le Mottee and Ryan Palmer.

The motion was carried.

Cr Paul Le Mottee gave notice of a foreshadowed motion.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
FORESHADOWED MOTION

Councillor Paul Le Mottee

That Council approve Development Application 16-2007-15-5 subject to
the conditions contained in (ATTACHMENT 3).

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
AMENDMENT

Councillor Giacomo Arnott

That Council approve Development Application DA No. 16-2007-15-5 for
a S4.55(2) modification to an approved caravan park at 16 Trotter Road,
Bobs Farm (LOT 2 DP 954600) subject to the conditions contained in
(ATTACHMENT 3) with the following additional conditions:

e Prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate, the Concept
masterplan, dwg. 240060-DA-001-E, Version Q, prepared by ADW
Johnson and dated 2/09/2021 is to be amended to remove sites
104, 112, 113 and 114 from the area outside the development
footprint approved under DA 16-2007-15-3.

e The proposal must contain 5 homes (5% of the permanent housing)

that are either:
= sold at cost to the NSW Department of Housing or its

contractors, or
* sold at cost to persons referred by charities as being in need

of affordable housing.

There are only 4 long term sites outside of the footprint, the other 2 sites
are the short term sites which would need to remain.

The amendment lapsed without a seconder.
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

283 Councillor John Nell
Councillor Paul Le Mottee

It was resolved that Council approach the neighbours to the north of the
subject site to allow Council to plant koala food trees to improve the
corridor.

The motion was carried.

BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to present Development Application (DA) 16-2007-15-5
for a S4.55(2) modification to an approved Caravan Park at 16 Trotter Road, Bobs
Farm to Council for determination.

The modification application was previously reported to Council at its meeting of 27
July 2021, in accordance with Council’s Planning Matters to be Reported to Council
Policy as it has been called up by Councillor John Nell, Councillor Giacomo Arnott
and Councillor Ken Jordan (ATTACHMENT 4).

At its meeting of 27 July 2021, Council resolved to defer consideration of the
application (Minute No0.192) (ATTACHMENT 5), and to request the applicant to
modify the application to limit works to be within the existing approved development
footprint, and that Council seek independent legal advice.

Subsequent to the Council meeting, the applicant provided amended plans that
removed the proposed tennis court from the area outside of the approved
development footprint, and additional landscape treatment features to soften views of
the development from the neighbouring site to the west. The amended application
also includes an increase to the pot size of compensatory koala feed tree plantings
from 20-45 litres to 200 litres (3-4.5m tall).

As a result of the plan amendments, 2 stormwater detention basins remain wholly
outside of the approved development footprint, and 6 sites remain partially outside of
the approved development footprint.

The amended plans result in the retention of a single large paperbark tree (Coastal
Sand Wallum Woodland), however, this is not a koala feed tree.

The amended plans were renotified and advertised for a period of 14 days, during
which time an additional 3 submissions were received. A detailed assessment of the
submissions is outlined within the Planners Assessment Report (ATTACHMENT 2).
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A summary of the modification application is provided below:

Subject land: 16 Trotter Road Bobs Farm (LOT: 2 DP: 954600)

Total area: 8.09ha

Zoning: RU2 — Rural Landscape

Permissibility: The development relies on existing use rights

Submissions: 3 received objecting to the proposal

Key issues: The key issues identified during assessment relate to the
permissibility of the development, impacts to rural character,
amenity and environmental impacts.

A locality plan is provided at (ATTACHMENT 1).

Proposal

The existing approved Caravan Park includes 171 sites, including 102 long term
sites, 45 short term sites and 24 caravan sites and community facilities.
The modification application seeks the following changes:

e Reduction in the overall number of approved sites from 171 to 119

e Amend ratio of long term and short term sites to the following:
0 117 long term sites (from 102)
0 2 short term caravan sites

¢ Amendment to lot layout and internal road network, including increasing the
footprint of the development towards the rear of the site

e Increase size of typical dwelling sites

e Demolition of existing residence

¢ Amended architectural design and layout of community building;

¢ Amendments to landscaping

e Amendments to staging of development, reducing the number of stages from 5 to
3

¢ Amendment to conditions to reflect the proposed modifications to the
development

e Removal of 6 koala feed trees.

Site Description and History

The site currently contains two dwellings and a large dam, which was created as a
result of historic sand mining activity. The site contains substantial vegetation, which
is mapped as containing preferred koala habitat and endangered ecological
communities.

The adjoining development consists of rural residences to the west and east. To the
south is an approved caravan park, comprising 196 long term sites, known as the
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Sunrise over 55s lifestyle community which is currently under construction. A wetland
is located to the north and north east of the site.

The original DA was approved in 2008 for 156 sites including 81 long-term sites and
75 short-term sites. The DA has previously been modified as follows:

e DA16-2007-15-2 withdrawn prior to determination

e DA-16-2007-15-3 approved in November 2011 for the modification of staging and
addition of 15 sites and car wash

e DA-16-2007-15-4 approved in April 2019 to correct an administrative error.

Key Issues

The key issues identified during assessment relate to the permissibility of the
development, impacts to rural character, amenity and environmental impacts. A
detailed assessment of the DA is contained within the Planners Assessment Report
(ATTACHMENT 2).

Permissibility

Caravan parks are no longer permitted with consent in the RU2 Rural Landscape
zone. However, existing use rights apply on this site as the original development
consent (approved in 2008) was granted prior to the use being prohibited under an
amendment to the Port Stephens Local Environmental Plan 2013.

The development consent has not lapsed as it was physically commenced prior to
the 5 year consent lapse date and within 1 year of the use being prohibited. As a
result, the consent remains active and has existing use rights in accordance with the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

Impacts to rural character and amenity

Concerns were raised in the submissions that the modification application has
potential to impact the rural character of the land and cause amenity impacts to
neighbouring residences, relating to visual and noise impacts.

Impacts to rural character were considered as part of the original application and
subsequent modifications. The impacts have been managed through the inclusion of
conditions for boundary landscape plantings and fencing to soften views of the
development from adjoining properties and Trotter Road. The amended plans
submitted following the 27 July Council meeting includes hedge plantings, rural style
fencing and changes to site retaining on the western boundary, which adequately
ensures the rural character of the area is not compromised.

Impacts to the amenity of adjoining residences were also considered as part of the
original application. The closest residential dwellings are located on adjoining sites at
20 Trotter Road (80m) and 12 Trotter Road (35m). As outlined above, visual impacts
to adjoining properties are mitigated through boundary landscape treatment. In
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addition, the proposed modifications to the DA maintain approximately the same
distances from the dwellings as that already approved and therefore, any noise
impacts would remain unchanged as a result of the proposal.

In conclusion, impacts to rural character and amenity as a result of the proposed
modifications to the DA remain unchanged from the existing approval.

Environmental Impacts

The modification application proposes the removal of an additional 0.48ha of native
vegetation, including 6 koala feed trees.

The proposed vegetation removal was assessed within a biodiversity assessment
submitted by the applicant, which concluded that the proposal was unlikely to have a
significant impact on any threatened flora or fauna.

The biodiversity assessment was reviewed by Council’s Natural Resources Officer,
who requested that additional impact assessments for threatened flora and fauna
(including koalas) be provided for further assessment.

In response, the applicant provided the additional impact assessments and made
design amendments to reduce the number of koala feed trees impacted by the
proposal from 7 to 6. The applicant also proposed modifications to site fencing to
reduce the risk of injury to koalas within the development site, and to encourage
movement through to more appropriate areas to the north, which are reserved for
compensatory koala feed tree plantings.

To achieve this, conditions of consent are recommended requiring the
implementation of koala proof fences around the developed areas and restrictions on
placing any fencing around the replanting area to the north.

Overall, Council’'s Natural Resources Officer concluded that the additional tree
clearing proposed was acceptable subject to conditions that will require the planting
of 80 compensatory preferred koala feed trees at the rear of the site. It is considered
that the application complies with the requirements of the Biodiversity Conservation
Act 2016 and the Port Stephens Comprehensive Koala Plan of Management.

Conclusion

As detailed in the Planners Assessment Report (ATTACHMENT 2), the modification
application is considered to be consistent with the aims and objectives of the relevant
environmental planning instruments applicable to the site.

The use is permissible and it is considered that the modification application would not
cause any adverse environmental impacts or undue amenity impacts, in excess of
those already approved, subject to the recommended conditions contained within
(ATTACHMENT 3).
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COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction Delivery Program 2018-2021

Thriving and Safe Place to Live Support the amenity and identity of Port
Stephens. Provide land use plans, tools
and advice that sustainably support the
community.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The modification application could be potentially challenged in the Land and
Environment Court. Defending Council's determination could have financial
implications.

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)
Existing budget Yes
Reserve Funds No
Developer Contributions | Yes Developer Contributions are
(§7.11) applicable under the existing

consent. Should Council
determine to approve the
modification application, s.7.11
development contributions
would remain applicable and
would be levied in accordance
with conditions of consent.

External Grants No

Other No

LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

The modification application is consistent with the relevant planning instruments
including the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (EP&A Act), Port
Stephens Local Environmental Plan 2013 (PS LEP), Port Stephens Development
Control Plan 2014 (DCP 2014), Port Stephens Comprehensive Koala Plan of
Management and associated State Environmental Planning Policies. A detailed
assessment against the relevant environmental planning instruments is contained
within the assessment report contained at (ATTACHMENT 2).
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Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within
Rankin Existing
Resources?
If the DA is approved, Medium | Accept the recommendation. | Yes

there is a risk that the
determination of the DA
may be challenged by a
third party in the Land
and Environment Court.

If the DA is refused, Medium | Accept the recommendation. | Yes
there is a risk that the
determination of the DA
may be challenged by
the applicant in the Land
and Environment Court.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

Social and economic impacts

The proposed increase of long-term sites would provide for an increased number of
residents in the locality, which will provide ongoing economic input through daily
living activities.

Built environment

The built form is of a contemporary design quality, which would enhance the visual
guality of the development. The application incorporates appropriate perimeter
landscaping to soften views of the development from neighbouring properties and
key locations.

Environmental Impacts

The environmental impacts of the development have been assessed by Councils
Natural Resources Officer and found to be acceptable, subject to conditions.
Specifically, conditions of consent have been recommended for 80 compensatory
plantings of koala feed trees at the rear of the site and the installation of koala
fencing.

In addition, the application includes appropriate stormwater quantity and quality
controls in accordance with Council’'s Development Control Plan.
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CONSULTATION

Consultation with key stakeholders has been undertaken for the purposes of the
assessment of the application, including consultation with the public through the
notification and advertising process.

Internal

Consultation was undertaken with Council’s Natural Resources, Development
Engineering, Building Surveying, Development Contributions and Environmental
Health Teams. The referral comments provided by these officers were considered as
part of the Planners Assessment Report (ATTACHMENT 2). All internal referral
officers supported the DA subject to conditions of consent (ATTACHMENT 3).

External

External consultation was undertaken with the NSW Rural Fire Service (RFS) and the
Natural Resource Access Regulator (NRAR), as the modification application requires
General Terms of Approval (GTA) from these agencies. In response, RFS and NRAR
made no objection to the modification application and GTA were issued.

External consultation was also undertaken with Transport for NSW, the Environment
Protection Authority and Ausgrid. No objection to the modification application was
made by these agencies.

The comments provided by external agencies were considered during the detailed
assessment and are discussed within the Planners Assessment Report
(ATTACHMENT 2).

Public exhibition

The modification application was advertised and notified in accordance with the
requirements of the Port Stephens Council Community Participation Plan. The
application was exhibited for a period of 14 days from 16 April 2021 to 30 April 2021.
During that time, 3 public submissions were received.

The amended plans submitted after the 27 July 2021 Council meeting were renotified
and advertised for a period of 14 days, during which time an additional 3 submissions
were received.

A detailed assessment of the submissions is outlined within the Planners
Assessment Report (ATTACHMENT 2).

OPTIONS
1) Accept the recommendation.

2) Amend the recommendation.
3) Reject the recommendation.
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ATTACHMENTS

1) Locality plan.

2) Planners Assessment Report. (Provided under separate cover)

3) Recommended Conditions of Consent. (Provided under separate cover)
4) Call to Council form.

5) Ordinary Council Meeting Minutes - 27 July 2021.

COUNCILLORS ROOM

1) Development plans.
2) Unredacted submissions.

Note: Any third party reports referenced in this report can be inspected upon request.
TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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ITEM1-ATTACHMENT 1 LOCALITY PLAN.
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ITEM 1 - ATTACHMENT 4 CALL TO COUNCIL FORM.

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

22




MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

ITEM 1 - ATTACHMENT 5 ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES - 27
JULY 2021.
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ITEM NO. 2 FILE NO: 21/173438
EDRMS NO: 16-2007-15-5

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION DA NO. 16-2007-15-5 FOR A 54.55(2)
MODIFICATION TO AN APPROVED CARAVAN PARK AT 16 TROTTER ROAD,
BOBS FARM

REPORT OF: KATE DRINAN - DEVELOPMENT ASSESSMENT AND
COMPLIANCE SECTION MANAGER
GROUP: DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Approve Development Application DA No. 16-2007-15-5 for a S4.55(2)
modification to an approved caravan park at 16 Trotter Road, Bobs Farm (LOT
2 DP 954600) subject to the conditions contained in (ATTACHMENT 3).

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING -27 JULY 2021
MOTION

192 Councillor John Nell
Councillor Glen Dunkley

It was resolved that Council defer Development Application DA No. 16-
2007-15-5 for a S4.55(2) modification to an approved caravan park at 16
Trotter Road, Bobs Farm (LOT 2 DP 954600) to request the applicant
modify the proposal to contain it within the existing approved development
footprint, and that Council seek independent legal advice.

In accordance with Section 375 (A) of the Local Government Act 1993, a division is
required for this item.

Those for the Motion: Mayor Ryan Palmer, Crs Jaimie Abbott, Giacomo Arnott, Chris
Doohan, Glen Dunkley, Ken Jordan, John Nell, Sarah Smith and Steve Tucker.

Those against the Motion: Nil.
The motion was carried.

BACKGROUND

The pumpose of this report is to present Development Application (DA) 16-2007-15-5
for a S4.55(2) modification to an approved caravan park at 16 Trotter Road, Bobs
Farm to Council for determination.
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The modification application has been reported to Council in accordance with
Council's Planning Matters to be Reported to Council Policy as it has been called up
by Councillor John Nell, Councillor Giacomo Arnott and Councillor Ken Jordan
(ATTACHMENT 4).

A summary of the modification application is provided below:

Subject land: 16 Trotter Road Bobs Farm (LOT: 2 DP: 954600)

Total area: 8.09ha

Zoning: RUZ2 — Rural Landscape

Permissibility: The development relies on existing use rights

Submissions: 3 received objecting to the proposal

Key issues: The key issues identified during assessment relate to the
pemissibility of the development, impacts to rural character,
amenity and environmental impacts.

A locality plan is provided at (ATTACHMENT 1).

Proposal

The existing approved caravan park includes 171 sites, including 102 long term sites,
45 short term sites and 24 caravan sites and community facilities.
The modification application seeks the following changes:

Reduction in the overall number of approved sites from 171 to 119
Amend ratio of long term and short term sites to the following:
o 117 long term sites (from 102)
o 2 short term caravan sites (from 24)
¢ Amendment to lot layout and internal road network, increasing the footprint of the
development towards the rear of the site
Increase size of typical dwelling sites
Demolition of existing residence
Amended architectural design and layout of community building
Amendments to landscaping
Relocation of tennis court
Amendments to staging of development, reducing the number of stages from 5 to
3
* Amendment to conditions to reflect the proposed modifications to the
development.

Site Description and History

The site currently contains two dwellings and a large dam which was created as a
result of historic sand mining activity. The site contains substantial vegetation which
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is mapped as containing preferred koala habitat and endangered ecological
communities.

The adjoining development consists of rural residences to the west and east. To the
south is an approved caravan park, comprising 196 long term sites, known as the
Sunrise over 55s lifestyle community which is currently under construction. A wetland
is located to the north and north east of the site.

The original DA was approved in 2008 for 156 sites including 81 long term sites and
75 short term sites. The DA has previously been modified as follows:

o DA16-2007-15-2 withdrawn prior to determination

o DA-16-2007-15-3 approved in November 2011 for the modification of staging and
addition of 15 sites and car wash

o DA-16-2007-15-4 approved in April 2019 to correct an administrative error.

Key Issues

The key issues identified during assessment relate to the pemmissibility of the
development, impacts to rural character, amenity and environmental impacts. A
detailed assessment of the DA is contained within the Planners Assessment Report
(ATTACHMENT 2).

Permissibility

Caravan parks are no longer permitted with consent in the RU2 Rural Landscape
zone. However, existing use rights apply on this site as the original development
consent (approved in 2008) was granted prior to the use being prohibited under an
amendment to the Port Stephens Local Environmental Plan 2013.

The development consent has not lapsed as it was physically commenced prior to
the 5 year consent lapse date and within 1 year of the use being prohibited. As a
result, the consent remains active and has existing use rights in accordance with the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

Impacts to rural character and amenity

Concerns were raised in the submissions that the modification application has
potential to impact the rural character of the land and cause amenity impacts to
neighbouring residences, relating to visual and noise impacts.

Impacts to rural character were considered as part of the original application and
subsequent modifications. The impacts have been managed through the inclusion of
conditions for boundary landscape plantings and fencing to soften views of the
development from adjoining properties and Trotter Road. The modification application
proposal retains existing conditions which requires a combination of screen hedging
and tree plantings to be utilised on boundaries.
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Impacts to the amenity of adjoining residences were also considered as part of the
original application. The closest residential dwellings are located on adjoining sites at
20 Trotter Road (80m) and 12 Trotter Road (35m). As outlined above, visual impacts
to adjoining properties are mitigated through boundary landscape plantings. In
addition, the proposed modifications to the DA maintain approximately the same
distances from the dwellings as that already approved and therefore any noise
impacts would remain unchanged as a result of the proposal.

In conclusion, impacts to rural character and amenity as a result of the proposed
modifications to the DA remain unchanged from the existing approval.

Environmental Impacts

The modification application proposes the removal of an additional 0.48ha of native
vegetation, including 6 preferred koala feed trees.

The modification application was supported by a biodiversity assessment which
concluded that the proposal was unlikely to have a significant impact on any
threatened flora or fauna.

The biodiversity assessment was reviewed by Council's Natural Resources Officer
and Council staff requested that additional impact assessments for threatened flora
and fauna (including koalas) be provided for further assessment.

In response, the applicant provided the additional impact assessments and made
design amendments to reduce the number of koala feed trees impacted by the
proposal. The applicant also proposed modification to site fencing to reduce the risk
of injury to koalas within the development site and encourage movement through to
more appropriate areas to the north which are reserved for compensatory koala feed
tree plantings.

To achieve this, conditions of consent are recommended requiring the
implementation of koala proof fences around the developed areas and restrictions on
placing any fencing around the replanting area to the north.

Overall, Council’s Natural Resources Officer concluded that the additional tree
clearing proposed was acceptable subject to conditions that will require the planting
of 80 compensatory preferred koala feed trees at the rear of the site. It is considered
that the application complies with the requirements of the Biodiversity Conservation
Act 2016 and the Port Stephens Comprehensive Koala Plan of Management.

Conclusion
As detailed in the Planners Assessment Report (ATTACHMENT 2), the modification

application is considered to be consistent with the aims and objectives of the relevant
environmental planning instruments applicable to the site.
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The use is permissible and it is considered that the modification application would not
cause any adverse environmental impacts or undue amenity impacts, in excess of
those already approved, subject to the recommended conditions contained within
(ATTACHMENT 3).

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction Delivery Program 2018-2021

Thriving and Safe Place to Live Support the amenity and identity of Port
Stephens. Provide land use plans, tools
and advice that sustainably support the
community.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The modification application could be potentially challenged in the Land and
Environment Court. Defending Council's determination could have financial

implications.
Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | Yes Developer Contributions are

(S7.11) applicable under the existing
consent. Should Council
determine to approve the
modification application, s.7.11
development contributions
would remain applicable and
would be levied in accordance
with conditions of consent.

External Grants No

Other No

LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

The modification application is consistent with the relevant planning instruments
including the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (EP&A Act), Port
Stephens Local Environmental Plan 2013 (PS LEP), Port Stephens Development
Control Plan 2014 (DCP 2014), Port Stephens Comprehensive Koala Plan of
Management and associated State Environmental Planning Policies. A detailed
assessment against these environmental planning instruments is contained within the
assessment report contained at (ATTACHMENT 2).
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CONSULTATION

Consultation with key stakeholders has been undertaken for the purposes of the
assessment of the application, including consultation with the public through the
notification and advertising process.

Intemal

Consultation was undertaken with Council’'s Natural Resources, Development
Engineering, Building Surveying, Development Confributions and Environmental
Health Teams. The referral comments provided by these officers were considered as
part of the Planners Assessment Report (ATTACHMENT 2). All internal referral
officers supported the DA subject to conditions of consent (ATTACHMENT 3).

External

External consultation was undertaken with the NSW Rural Fire Service (RFS) and the
Natural Resource Access Regulator (NRAR), as the modification application requires
General Terms of Approval (GTA) from these agencies. In response, RFS and NRAR
made no objection to the modification application and GTA were issued.

External consultation was also undertaken with Transport for NSW, the Environment
Protection Authority and Ausgrid. No objection to the modification application was
made by these agencies.

The comments provided by external agencies were considered during the detailed
assessment and are discussed within the Planners Assessment Report
(ATTACHMENT 2).

Public exhibition

The modification application was advertised and notified in accordance with the
requirements of the Port Stephens Council Community Participation Plan. The
application was exhibited for a period of 14 days from 16 April 2021 to 30 April 2021.
During that time, 3 public submissions were received.

A detailed assessment of the submissions is outlined within the Planners
Assessment Report (ATTACHMENT 2).

OPTIONS

1) Accept the recommendation.
2) Amend the recommendation.
3) Reject the recommendation.

ATTACHMENTS

1) Locality Plan.
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2) Planners Assessment Report. (Provided under separate cover)

3) Recommended Conditions of Consent. (Provided under separate cover)

4) Call to Council form.

COUNCILLORS ROOM

1) Development Plans. (Provided to Councillors separately due to privacy and
copyright legislation)

2) Unredacted submissions.

Note: Any third party reports referenced in this report can be inspected upon request.

TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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TEM NO. 2 FILE NO: 21/255592
EDRMS NO: 58-2020-1-1

HOUSEKEEPING AMENDMENT TO THE PORT STEPHENS LOCAL
ENVIRONMENTAL PLAN

REPORT OF: JANELLE GARDNER - STRATEGY & ENVIRONMENT SECTION
MANAGER
GROUP: DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Note the amendments to the planning proposal (ATTACHMENT 1) for a
housekeeping amendment to the Port Stephens Local Environmental Plan
2013.

2) Receive and note the submissions received during the public exhibition of the
planning proposal (ATTACHMENT 2).

3) Authorise the exercise of delegations to make the amendment to the Port
Stephens Local Environmental Plan 2013 under section 3.36 of the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (NSW).

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

284 Councillor Sarah Smith
Councillor Chris Doohan

It was resolved that Council:

1) Note the amendments to the planning proposal (ATTACHMENT 1) for
a housekeeping amendment to the Port Stephens Local Environmental
Plan 2013.

2) Receive and note the submissions received during the public
exhibition of the planning proposal (ATTACHMENT 2).

3) Authorise the exercise of delegations to make the amendment to the
Port Stephens Local Environmental Plan 2013 under section 3.36 of
the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (NSW).

Councillor Ken Jordan left the meeting at 08:07pm.
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In accordance with Section 375 (A) of the Local Government Act 1993, a division is
required for this item.

Those for the Motion: Mayor Ryan Palmer, Crs Giacomo Arnott, Chris Doohan, Glen
Dunkley, Paul Le Mottee, John Nell, and Sarah Smith.

Those against the Motion: Nil.
The motion was carried.
BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to advise Council of the outcome of the exhibition of the
planning proposal for a housekeeping amendment to the Port Stephens Local
Environmental Plan 2013 (ATTACHMENT 1) and note the submissions received
(ATTACHMENT 2). The report seeks authorisation to exercise delegations to make
the amendment to the Port Stephens Local Environmental Plan 2013 (LEP).

The objective of the planning proposal is to align the LEP with Council’s principal land
use strategies, the Local Strategic Planning Statement (LSPS) and Live Port
Stephens and to correct errors and make minor changes throughout the LEP.

The planning proposal makes the following amendments:

e Item 1 — update the aims of the LEP to reflect the LSPS

e Item 2 — correct an error to enable exceptions to minimum lot sizes for attached
dwellings

e Item 3 — correct drafting errors, including to ensure dwelling entitlements are
retained for allotments that have been the subject of a boundary adjustment under
the LEP

e Item 4 — remove redundant provisions relating to the conversion of serviced
apartments

e Item 5 - remove redundant provisions relating to development at Boundary Road,
Medowie

e Item 6 — remove redundant provisions relating to development at Medowie Road,
Medowie

e Item 7 — clarify that environmental protection works are permitted with consent in
the neighbourhood centre zone

e Item 8 — clarify that flood mitigation works are permitted without consent in the
public recreation zone

e Item 9 — align the land use prohibitions in the commercial core zone with all other
commercial zones by prohibiting single dwelling houses

e Item 10 — clarify that caravan parks are prohibited in residential and business
zones to implement an action in Live Port Stephens

e Item 11 — permit child care centres with consent in the rural landscape zone to
implement an action in Live Port Stephens
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e Item 12 — allow temporary events on Council managed land, schools and places
of public worship as exempt development to implement an action in Live Port
Stephens

e Item 13 — allow signage on sports fields as exempt development to implement an
action in the Port Stephens Recreation Strategy.

Councillors were briefed at a Two Way Conversation on the content of the proposed
housekeeping amendment on Tuesday 24 November 2020. The proposal was
forwarded to the NSW Department of Planning, Industry and Environment (DPIE)
under staff delegation due to its consistency with the LSPS. On 16 August 2021,
DPIE issued a Gateway determination for the amendment.

The planning proposal was placed on exhibition for a period of 14 days, consistent
with the Gateway determination.

There are proposed amendments to the planning proposal following public exhibition.
In relation to item 3 of the planning proposal, it is proposed to make additional
amendments to clause 4.2B of the LEP to correct drafting errors identified in
consultation with DPIE and as outlined in the planning proposal. In relation to item 13
of the planning proposal, the planning proposal has been amended in response to a
submission to defer commencement of this change until Council’'s Sports Facility
Signage Policy and Guidelines have been exhibited and adopted.

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction Delivery Program 2018-2022

Thriving and Safe Place to Live Provide land use plans, tools and advice
that sustainably support the community.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | No

(S7.11)

External Grants No

Other No
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LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

Hunter Regional Plan 2036

The planning proposal is consistent with the aims of the Hunter Regional Plan 2036
(HRP), including encouraging initiatives that revitalise centres, improve housing
choice, and make better use of existing infrastructure. The planning proposal gives
effect to the following directions of the HRP:

e Direction 6 — Grow the economy of MidCoast and Port Stephens

e Direction 8 — Promote innovative small business and growth in the service sectors
Direction 13 — Plan for greater land use compatibility

Direction 17 — Create healthy built environments through good design

Direction 20 — Revitalise existing communities

Direction 22 — Promote housing diversity

Direction 24 — Protect the economic functions of employment land

e Direction 26 — Deliver Infrastructure to support growth and communities.

Greater Newcastle Metropolitan Plan 2036

The planning proposal will give effect to the vision of the Greater Newcastle
Metropolitan Plan 2036 (GNMP) for Australia’s newest and emerging economic and
lifestyle city offering great lifestyles minutes from bushland and the airport. The
planning proposal will give effect to the following strategies of the GNMP:

e Strategy 6 — Promote tourism, major events and sporting teams on the national and
international stage

e Strategy 9 — Plan for jobs closer to homes in the metro frame

e Strategy 16 — Priorities the delivery of infill housing opportunities within existing
urban areas.

Port Stephens Local Strategic Planning Statement (LSPS)

The LSPS identifies the 20-year vision for land use in Port Stephens and sets out
social, economic and environmental planning priorities for the future.

The planning proposal will give effect to the following planning priorities of the LSPS:
e Planning Priority 1 — Support the growth of strategic centres and major employment
areas

e Planning Priority 3 — Support tourism development and attract events
e Planning Priority 5 — Increase diversity of housing choice.

The planning proposal will give effect to the following actions of the LSPS:

e Action 10.2 — Support the activation of public spaces, including events, public art,
small business opportunities, markets and other temporary uses.
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Item 1, which amends the aims of the plan, will also give effect to the LSPS because
on the adoption of the LSPS, the previous land use strategy (Port Stephens Planning
Strategy) was repealed, and is currently referred to in the aims of the plan.

Port Stephens Local Housing Strategy (Live Port Stephens)

The planning proposal will give effect to the following priorities of Live Port Stephens:

e Priority 1.2 — Remove barriers to unlock housing supply

e Priority 1.3 — Increase the proportion of infill housing

e Priority 2.2 — Provide more affordable housing near jobs

e Priority 3.1 — Facilitate new housing within existing urban areas
e Priority 3.2 — Encourage a range of housing types and sizes.

The planning proposal will give effect to the following actions of Live Port Stephens:

e Action 5 —Consider recommendations in the Infill Housing Study to facilitate infill
housing in centres, including considering incentives to encourage selected types
of infill

e Action 15 — Consider the recommendations of the Infill Housing Study and create
opportunities for Council to encourage a greater diversity of infill housing around
local centres

e Action 18 —Review local provisions to better plan for lifestyle villages and provide
controls to ensure high quality design outcomes and liveable communities are
created

e Action 23 —Review access to essential services in rural areas, such as child care
centres.

Port Stephens Recreation Strategy

The planning proposal will give effect to Objective 7 of the Recreation Strategy to
achieve well managed and maintained recreation facilities through a coordinated and
planned approach. Upon its commencement, the proposed amendment will facilitate
sports sponsorship and utilisation of external funding sources to manage and
upgrade community recreation facilities (Direction 7.3).

Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (NSW) (EP&A Act)

Part 3 of the EP&A Act provides the framework for amending a local environmental
plan. DPIE issued a Gateway determination under section 3.34 of the EP&A Act
specifying that the planning proposal should proceed to exhibition, subject to
conditions and consultation requirements. Council is authorised to act as the local
plan making authority to make the plan by the Gateway determination. Should
Council adopt the recommendations, arrangements will be made for the drafting of
the amendment to the LEP to give effect to the planning proposal.
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Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within
Rankin Existing
Resources?
There is a risk that the Medium | Adopt the recommendations. | Yes

LEP will contain
administrative errors and
redundant provisions if
the amendment is not
made.

There is a risk that Medium | Adopt the recommendations. | Yes
priorities in Council’s
adopted strategies will
not be achieved if the
amendment is not made.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

The planning proposal contains amendments that will have positive social, economic
and environmental implications. The housekeeping items of the amendment will
address errors and uncertainty and remove minor anomalies in the LEP. The items
that will align the LEP with the LSPS, Live Port Stephens and other Council
strategies will promote liveability and improve quality of life by providing housing with
convenient access to essential services such as childcare, increase opportunities to
activate public spaces, and will enable Council to better plan for diverse housing
stock in appropriate locations.

CONSULTATION
Internal

Consultation with internal stakeholders has been undertaken to inform the planning
proposal, including with the relevant sections in the Development Services Group
and Facilities and Services Group.

External

In accordance with the Gateway determination, the planning proposal was exhibited
for 14 days from 26 August 2021 to 9 September 2021. 2 submissions were received,
including 1 in support. A summary of submissions is at (ATTACHMENT 2).

The planning proposal has been amended following exhibition to respond to 1 of the
submissions by deferring the commencement of 1 of the amendments. It is noted that
this and the other amendments made to the planning proposal following exhibition do
not require re-exhibition. In particular as the amendments to correct additional
drafting errors are likely to meet the requirements of expedited amendments made
under section 3.22 of the EP&A Act.
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OPTIONS
1) Accept the recommendations.

2) Amend the recommendations.
3) Reject the recommendations.

ATTACHMENTS

1) Housekeeping Planning Proposal. (Provided under separate cover)
2) Submission Table.

COUNCILLORS ROOM
1) Submissions.
TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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SUBMISSION TABLE.

Housekeeping Amendment to the Port Stephens LEP 2013 submissions

No. Author of submission
1 Resident

Comment

The submission expresses
support for the proposed
amendment to the Port Stephens
Local Environmental Plan 2013
(LEP), in particular amendment
to Clause 4.2B.

Council response

Council notes the positive
submission.

(TRRA)

2 Tomaree Ratepayers and
Residents Association Inc.

The submission notes that
several of the proposed
amendments in the planning
proposal were not listed in the
summary of changes on the
website, and that this has since
been rectified.

Noted.

The submission states that itis
disappointing that the material
on exhibition does not include a
‘tracked changes’ version of the
LEP clearly showing all the
proposed changes.

The planning proposal has
been prepared in accordance
with NSW Department of
Planning, Industry &
Environment guides which
require a prose description of
the intended effect of a
proposed amendment. To
avoid errors and the exhibition
of misleading documents
during exhibition, councils are
directed by the State not to
prepare or mark up clauses of
a local environmental plan as
these will be prepared by the
lawyers who are drafting
experts at the NSW
Parliamentary Counsel’s Office
before a plan amendment is
finalised.

In relation to item 1 of the
planning proposal, the
submission asserts that there is
no explanation given for the
omission of Aim (i) and (j) of the
LEP.

The submission states that these
two aims were crucial
foundations for Council's
application of the LEP to support
maximum transparency and
accountability and to undermpin
Council’s approach to long term
issues such as its response to
climate change.

Current Aim (i) is:

(i) to continue to implement the
legislative framework that
supports openness,
transparency and
accountability of assessment
and decision making,

This Aim may be deleted as all
councils are required to
implement the legislative
framework. The Aim duplicates
Council’s existing obligations
and functions under the
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The submissions state that
Council should re-instate these
two aims.

planning legislation and has no
additional weight.

Current Aim (j) is:

(j) to achieve intergenerational
equity by managing the
integration of environmental,
social and economic goalsin a
sustainable and accountable
manner.

This Aim duplicates the object
of the Environmental Planning
and Assessment Act 1979
(NSW) that requires Council to
facilitate ecologically
sustainable development when
making decisions, including
decision making under the Port
Stephens Local Environmental
Plan 2013 which is an
instrument of that Act.
‘Ecologically sustainable
development is defined in the
planning legislation with
reference to the Protection of
the Environment Administration
Act 1991 (NSW) which defines
the term as including the
principle of inter-generational
equity and the integration of
environmental, social and
economic considerations. The
Aim duplicates Council’s
existing obligations and
functions under the planning
legislation and has no
additional weight.

In accordance with LEP
Practice Note PN 11-001
‘Preparing LEPs using the
Standard Instrument: standard
clauses’, LEP aims should not
duplicate objects and
obligations under the
Environmental Planning and
Assessment Act 1979 (NSW).

In relation to item 4 of the
planning proposal, the
submission seeks clarification
that compliance with State
Environmental Planning Policy
65 - Design Quality of
Residential Apartment
Development, will ensure that
the minimum parking standards

The planning framework for
residential flat buildings aligns
with the standards specified in
existing clause 7.13.
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currently set out in Clause
7.13(3) remained in effect.

In relation to item 10 of the
planning proposal, the
submission states that it is
strongly supportive of this
amendment.

Noted.

In relation to item 11 of the
planning proposal, the
submission states that while
TRRA supports the objective of
the amendment there is a
concem that this amendment will
be ‘abused' by large scale
commercial care providers
seeking to build significant
‘urban’ scale facilities on rural
landscape land on the fringe of
existing urban areas as a low-
cost alternative to more
appropriate sites within the
existing urban footprint.

The submission states that in the
East and Central wards there
has been too many inappropriate
developments, including
manufactured home estates and
small industrial buildings on rural
land.

The submission added that
TRAA have no confidence that
when assessing DAs for rural
land that Council will respect one
of the objectives of RU2 zones
‘to maintain the rural landscape
character of the land’.

The amendment will enable
‘centre-based childcare
facilities' and ‘respite day care
centres’ to be permitted with
consent in the RU2 Rural
Landscape zone.

The amendment will not enable
manufactured home estates or
industrial development in this
zone. These uses are
prohibited in the zone.

The amendments will respond
to the community liveability
survey carried out in 2020
which identified that some rural
areas, including on the rural
fringe, lacked access to
essential services such as child
care. Providing access to
essential services is an
important influence on quality
of life. Access to services, such
as day respite care and child
care, is one of the key
measures common to most
liveability indexes and
contributes to individual health
and wellbeing and community
cohesion.
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ITEM 2 - ATTACHMENT 2

SUBMISSION TABLE.

In relation to item 13 of the
planning proposal, the
submission asserts that this
change is more than an
administrative change.

The submission states that it is
premature to make this change
to the LEP before the Sports
Facility Signage Policy and
Guidelines have been adopted
by Council.

The submission references
similar provisions in the Lake
Macquarie Local Environmental
Plan 2014 and states that the
conditions applying to signage
should be in the LEP itself rather
than in Policy and Guidelines
which would be less binding and
enforceable, and more easily
changed.

The submission adds that TRRA
would support a provision similar
to that in the Lake Macquarie
LEP, after further public debate
about the detail.

The item is administrative
because it will remove the
duplication of process under
Council's Sports Facility
Signage Policy and Guidelines.

The planning proposal has
been amended to include
deferred commencement of
this clause so that Council's
Sports Facility Signage Policy
and Guidelines can be
exhibited and adopted prior.
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Councillor Ken Jordan returned to the meeting at 8:09pm.

ITEM NO. 3 FILE NO: 21/248118
EDRMS NO: PSC2021-00560

KARUAH PLACE PLAN
REPORT OF: JANELLE GARDNER - STRATEGY & ENVIRONMENT SECTION

MANAGER
GROUP: DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Endorse the draft Karuah Place Plan (ATTACHMENT 1) for exhibition for a
period of 28 days.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

285 Councillor Chris Doohan
Councillor Glen Dunkley

It was resolved that Council endorse the draft Karuah Place Plan
(ATTACHMENT 1) for exhibition for a period of 28 days.

In accordance with Section 375 (A) of the Local Government Act 1993, a division is
required for this item.

Those for the Motion: Mayor Ryan Palmer, Crs Giacomo Arnott, Chris Doohan, Glen
Dunkley, Ken Jordan, Paul Le Mottee, John Nell and Sarah Smith.

Those against the Motion: Nil.
The motion was carried.
BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to seek Council's endorsement to exhibit the draft
Karuah Place Plan (ATTACHMENT 1) for a period of 28 days.

Place plans are a new way of planning for the growth of the unique towns and
villages across Port Stephens. Place plans provide a local filter on the Port Stephens
Local Strategic Planning Statement and other strategic documents and create actions
that improve the liveability and wellbeing of our communities.
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Actions in Place Plans create alignment in the way we plan for future land use, invest
in infrastructure, attract investment and bring life to our streets. Place Plans
recognise the importance of our public spaces in creating great places to live, work
and visit.

Place plans are being developed for those places that are seeing growth, or where
existing local area strategies need updating to respond to new housing or population
data, growth opportunities or planning proposals. Place Plans will include extensive
consultation with the local community. They will respond to the values and
aspirations of the community, enable partnerships between residents, council and
business and guide a collaborative approach to the delivery of great place outcomes.

Karuah is a peaceful village home to 1,411 residents including 378 families (Remplan
September 2021). Karuah is moving forward with the town emerging as an attractive
place for those looking for an affordable lifestyle destination with an easy commute to
the key employment areas of Williamtown, Raymond Terrace and Newcastle. This
increasing demand has created upward pressure on land and house prices and new
opportunities for growth need to be investigated.

The Karuah Growth Strategy (KGS) was adopted in 2011. Since this time, the
majority of the sites identified for urban growth have been developed. At the same
time, in response to growing demand for regional housing, proponents have sought
to lodge planning proposals to rezone new land for housing in Karuah. These
applications however, have been inconsistent with the KGS. The Karuah Place Plan
was will update the KGS and identify appropriate locations to cater for new housing
and jobs.

The Karuah Place Plan will also recognizes the values and priorities of Karuah
community. The plan will aim to strengthen those values that are performing well and
promote opportunities for those that require improvement. During the Karuah
Liveability Survey, the community rated the following as the most important elements
of their place:

General condition of public open space
Elements of natural environment

Sense of neighbourhood safety

Local businesses that provide for daily needs
Locally owned and operated businesses.

agrwbnE

The Karuah Place Plan will reinforce these values by limiting new development to
cleared land or where there is only low quality vegetation. The plan will recognize the
importance of the timber and oyster industries, include mechanisms to protect and
diversify existing businesses and identifying opportunities for improving safety, such
as improved pathways and connectivity.

The place plan outlines a range of specific works the have been programmed for
Karuah such as new BBQ facilities in Longworth Park, a new playground in Aliceton
Reserve and pavement upgrade of Mustons Road. The plan also includes a number
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of projects that can be undertaken by other parts of community to contribute to
improving liveability including:

New shared pathways connecting the town centre to new growth areas

Spaces for public art and murals

Improving the connection between the town centre and Longworth Park
Upgrading the existing mangrove boardwalk and connecting it back to Longworth
Park

* ldentifying future employment land to the west of town.

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction Delivery Program 2018-2022

Thriving and Safe Place to Live Provide land use plans, tools and advice
that sustainably support the community.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Actions identified within the Karuah Place Plan will be funded via a combination of
sources including existing budgets, grant funds, sponsorships and partnerships in
line with existing work programs.

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | No

(S7.11)

External Grants No

Other No

LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

Hunter Regional Plan 2036 (HRP)

The Karuah Place Plan is consistent with the Hunter Regional Plan 2036 (HRP),
including directions to plan for compact settlements, housing diversity and creating
liveable communities.

Community Strateqic Plan

The Community Strategic Plan 2018-2028 is a critical document for Council as it sets
out the priorities of the community for our region to 2028 and beyond. These values
have been used as a basis for the Karuah Place Plan, which identifies specific works
and actions to provide a setting for people to live and work in their place.
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Local Strategic Planning Statement 2020 (LSPS)

The LSPS sets out the vision for land use in Port Stephens over the next 20 years.
It identifies the special character and values of our area that we should preserve and
how change will be managed.

A place planning approach is consistent with the following actions in the Port
Stephens Local Strategic Planning Statement:

e Action 1.3 Complete the strategic planning framework for strategic and local centres
including infrastructure plans and funding strategies.

e Action 10.2 Support the activation of public spaces, including events, public art,
small business opportunities, markets and other temporary uses.

Local Housing Strateqy - Live Port Stephens (2020)

Live Port Stephens encourages more housing in key locations that are well
connected to employment, education, open spaces, transport and services.

Live Port Stephens contains criteria for new urban housing areas to determine the
site’s suitability for residential development.

The Karuah Place Plan is consistent with the outcomes and priorities adopted in Live
Port Stephens.

Karuah Growth Strateqy (2011)

The KGS was adopted by Council in 2011 to guide future town growth. The KGS was
central to identifying how Karuah could adapt following the completion of the highway
bypass in 2004. The KGS established a land use plan to identify appropriate
locations for new housing while considering economic and social development,
environmental management and local infrastructure needs.

Since the adoption of the KGS, council has rezoned Stage One Urban Release Areas
and part of Stage Two Urban Release Areas. Only limited land remains unzoned in
the Stage Two Urban Release Area, with limited ability to cater for housing growth in
the future of Karuah.

Two recent planning proposals were submitted to the Department of Planning,
Industry and Environment for Gateway assessment, to rezone land for housing which
extended beyond that identified in the KGS. Gateway determinations for the planning
proposals were received on 6 April 2020 (ATTACHMENT 2) and required the
planning proposals to either be resubmitted to be consistent with the KGS or
informed by an updated strategic planning framework, which included the following:

e An assessment of supply and demand for residential development within the
housing market catchment
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e Details of current infrastructure capacity, upgrades required and funding
mechanisms

e Prioritisation and staging of release areas

e Biodiversity constraints including regional and subregional corridors.

The Karuah Place Plan has been prepared to support the KGS by identifying
locations for housing, employment and public infrastructure, which extend beyond
those already identified. It is supported by a Residential Land Needs Assessment
(ATTACHMENT 3) which outlined that in order to meet demand for housing in
Karuah over the next 15 years, land for 340 lots (or 27 hectares at 12.5 dwellings per
hectare) needs to be rezoned, in addition to existing zoned, but undeveloped land.
This approach was peer reviewed by third party planning consultants
(ATTACHMENT 4), whose comments and recommendations were considered in the
preparation of the Place Plan.

Using this data and taking into account the current market conditions, a short to
medium term high growth scenario for Karuah has been assumed for the Karuah
Place Plan. Two stages of urban release areas have been identified to accommodate
this growth, as well as a future investigation area.

Stage one identifies land that has the necessary infrastructure to be rezoned now.
This includes servicing by Hunter Water, which has been scheduled for
implementation following planned local facility upgrades.

Stage two and the future investigation area identify opportunities for medium to long
term development. To move forward with these stages, developers will need to work
closely with the relevant authorities to manage critical infrastructure such as
sewerage and water, which is not currently available to service this land.

Port Stephens Local Environmental Plan 2013 (LEP)

Amendments to the LEP may result from the updated land use plan. Planning
proposals will be assessed for consistency with the Karuah Place Plan (and other
Council plans and policies).

Port Stephens Development Control Plan 2014

Amendments to DCP Chapter D2: Karuah will be required as a result of identifying
additional development areas in Karuah. In particularly, linkages between adjoin
development areas, interface treatments for adjoining environmental land or faunal
movement corridors, opportunities for housing diversity and footpaths to new
developments should be addressed. The Karuah Place Plan includes an action to
amend DCP Chapter D2: Karuah.

Local Infrastructure Contributions Plan 2020 (LIC)

The Karuah Place Plan includes an action to review the LIC to ensure that local
infrastructure in Karuah reflects the anticipated growth of the town.
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does not meet the
community expectations

The Port Stephens Liveability
Index has been used to
create the foundations of the
Place Plan and the actions
have been created to
respond to this data.

The Place Plan’s
effectiveness in addressing
these values will be
monitored when Placescore
data is collected through
future liveability census
surveys.

Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within
Rankin Existing
Resources?
There is a risk that the Low Adopt the recommendation.
place plan does not The Karuah Place plan
identify sufficient land to identifies stage one urban
cater for demand for release areas that will
residential land over the provide residential land for
next 15 years the next 15 years, and stage
two and future investigation
area that will provide for
additional land should growth
in Karuah exceed the
expected rate.
There is arisk that land | High Adopt the recommendation.
is rezoned that cannot be The Karuah Place Plan
adequately serviced by requires planning proposals
Hunter Water to include evidence of an
agreement with Hunter
Water Corporation
confirming that land can be
adequately serviced.
The Karuah Place Plan Low Adopt the recommendation.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

Environment

The community of Karuah place a high value on the local environment with the river,
wetlands and native bushland being key attractors to the town. The natural
environment provides important habitat for native wildlife and is home to a diverse
range of flora and fauna. Karuah’s wetlands and bushland play an important role in
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keeping waterways healthy by absorbing excess nutrients, slowing over land flows,
and reducing sediment, pollution and erosion. Preserving the natural environment is
key to ensuring the long-term productivity of Karuah’s waterways and river.

Actions in the Karuah Place Plan celebrate the connection of the community with the
natural environment by improving access to the foreshore and identifying land for
conservation.

When planning for future land use, protection of these valuable habitats is an
important consideration, in particularly, as development in a place intensifies,
consideration needs to be given to the function and importance of natural areas
including the way in which native animals access food sources, breeding sites and
water.

In Karuah, two important biodiversity corridors have been identified:

e The North-South Corridor has been identified as part of the Watagans to Stockton
green corridor and recognised as a high priority regional conservation area within
the Lower Hunter Regional Strategy and the Lower Hunter Regional Conservation
Plan. The North-South Corridor is also identified in the Port Stephens Biodiversity
corridor mapping as a location where improvements to connectivity are required.

e The proposed East-West Corridor will provide connectivity to allow the movement
of native animals away from proposed housing developments. The Karuah Place
Plan does not define this corridor, but provides a guide as to where a corridor
could be located. As part of any development, an ecological assessment would
need to be undertaken to determine the best location, size and scale for these
biodiversity corridors along with detailing how these corridors will support the
protection and enhancement of valuable environment that makes Karuah so
unique.

Biodiversity corridors are not designed to restrict development but to enhance the
liveability of the place, protect local habitat and increase the wellbeing of those that
live, work and visit the place.

As part of any new development in Karuah, applicants must show how they will
minimise the environmental impact and demonstrate how new habitat and movement
corridors will be created

Social

Liveability

Place Plans respond to the community’s values and aspirations. They enable

partnerships between residents, business and council and guide a collaborative
approach to the delivery of great place outcomes.
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The Karuah Place Plan contains actions to inspire community involvement in creating
a better place, through conservation, beatification and civil pride projects, activation
opportunities such as events, and improved wayfinding and connections.

Housing affordability

The demand and cost of housing in Karuah is increasing. A mechanism to create
more housing affordability is to provide land release on multiple fronts, providing
competition and reducing land prices. With only a single site currently zoned for new
land release, there is difficulty in providing this competition. The Place Plan therefore
identifies urban release areas on land under multiple ownership.

In addition to providing housing in new release areas, Karuah has a number of large
lots, where there is opportunity for infill housing. The Place Plan identifies those
locations where infill housing can provide competition for greenfield land release. Infill
housing also has an opportunity to provide for diverse housing such as secondary
dwellings and small lot housing, to cater for those looking to downsize.

Economic

For many years, the oyster and timber industries have been the leading employment
industries in Karuah and have been an important element in forming the identity of
the people and the place. Through the community engagement process, the need to
ensure the long-term viability of these industries was identified as important to the
local community. New development will need to consider these industries and ensure
there is no negative impact on the sustainability of these industries. Furthermore, the
plan identifies ways that these industries could diversify, such as river tours that
showcase the local produce.

As Karuah grows and new residential land is released, new residents will look for
new business opportunities and new employment close to home. The KGS identifies
land to the west of the town as suitable for industrial or employment land. Further
investigation will be required to understand the short and long-term needs for
employment land, the amount of employment land needed, the infrastructure required
to service this land, and the recommended staging of any land release.

CONSULTATION
Internal
The Karuah Place Plan has been prepared in consultation with the relevant sections

in the Development Services Group, Facilities and Services Group, and Corporate
Services Group.
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External
Community

Place Score data collected in 2020, has been used to determine the community’s
values and aspirations. The Karuah Place Plan responds to this data by including
actions that directly correspond to addressing identified values and areas for
improvement.

In August and September 2020, community consultation was undertaken; a
community drop-in session attended by 17 people, an online project page with 609
visits, an interactive online map with 166 comments and a survey with 26 responses
were used to further refine the values and aspirations of the community. This
consultation reinforced that the community value the natural environment and
laidback feel of their town. The opportunities for improvement focussed on better
open space and recreation facilities, improvements to local roads and footpaths and
activation opportunities.

If endorsed, the Karuah Place Plan will be exhibited for a period of 28 days.
Outcomes of community consultation will be reported to Council following the
exhibition period.

Stakeholder Engagement

Key landholders have been consulted during preparation of the plan, including the
Karuah Local Aboriginal Land Council and the landholders within the urban release
areas, which includes Council’s Property Team.

Hunter Water Corporation

Hunter Water have advised that while there is currently no capacity in the wastewater
treatment facility, planned infrastructure upgrades will be sufficient to cater for
existing undeveloped zoned land and Stage 1 urban release area. Consultation
between Council, landholders and Hunter Water will be ongoing to ensure that Stage
2 and future investigation area are considered in future planning of Hunter Water
infrastructure in Karuah.

OPTIONS

1) Accept the recommendation.
2) Amend the recommendation.
3) Reject the recommendation.

ATTACHMENTS

1) Karuah Place Plan. (Provided under separate cover)

2) Gateway determinations for Timbermill and Wetland sites.

3) Macroplan Residential Needs Assessment and Remplan Review. (Provided under
separate cover)
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4) Independent Review — Karuah Place Plan (Cityplan July 2021). (Provided under
separate cover)

COUNCILLORS ROOM
Nil.
TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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ITEM 3 - ATTACHMENT 2 GATEWAY DETERMINATIONS FOR TIMBERMILL

AND WETLAND SITES.
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ITEM 3 - ATTACHMENT 2 GATEWAY DETERMINATIONS FOR TIMBERMILL

AND WETLAND SITES.
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ITEM 3 - ATTACHMENT 2 GATEWAY DETERMINATIONS FOR TIMBERMILL

AND WETLAND SITES.
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ITEM 3 - ATTACHMENT 2 GATEWAY DETERMINATIONS FOR TIMBERMILL
AND WETLAND SITES.

Dated B day of April 2020.

Dan Simpkins

Director, Central Coast and Hunter
Region

Planning and Assessment
Department of Planning, Industry and
Environment

Delegate of the Minister for Planning
and Public Spaces

PP_2019 PORTS 007 00 (EF19/31356)
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ITEM 3 - ATTACHMENT 2 GATEWAY DETERMINATIONS FOR TIMBERMILL

AND WETLAND SITES.
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ITEM 3 - ATTACHMENT 2 GATEWAY DETERMINATIONS FOR TIMBERMILL
AND WETLAND SITES.

Dated 6" day of April 2020.

Dan Simpkins

Director, Central Coast and Hunter Region
Planning and Assessment

Department of Planning, Industry and
Environment

Delegate of the Minister for Planning and
Public Spaces

PP_2019 PORTS 007 00 (EF19/31356)
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

286 Councillor John Nell
Councillor Chris Doohan

It was resolved that Council adopt the recommendations of items 4 to 9 by
multiple vote adoption.

The motion was carried.
ITEM NO. 4 FILE NO: 21/269773
EDRMS NO: PSC2009-00938
POLICY REVIEW: ROAD NAMING AND ADDRESSING GUIDELINES POLICY
REPORT OF: TIMOTHY CROSDALE - GROUP MANAGER CORPORATE

SERVICES
GROUP: CORPORATE SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Endorse the revised Road Naming and Addressing Guidelines Policy shown at
(ATTACHMENT 1).

2) Place the revised Road Naming and Addressing Guidelines Policy, as amended
on public exhibition for a period of 28 days and should no submissions be
received, the policy be adopted, without a further report to Council.

3) Revoke the Road Naming and Addressing Guidelines Policy dated 8 October
2019, Minute No 184, should no submissions be received.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

286 Councillor John Nell
Councillor Chris Doohan

It was resolved that Council:

1) Endorse the revised Road Naming and Addressing Guidelines Policy
shown at (ATTACHMENT 1).

2) Place the revised Road Naming and Addressing Guidelines Policy, as
amended on public exhibition for a period of 28 days and should no
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submissions be received, the policy be adopted, without a further
report to Council.

3) Revoke the Road Naming and Addressing Guidelines Policy dated 8
October 2019, Minute No 184, should no submissions be received.

The motion was carried.
BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is seek Council’'s endorsement of the revised Road
Naming and Addressing Guidelines Policy (the ‘policy’) (ATTACHMENT 1).

The intent of the policy is to provide guidance and consistency in the naming of roads
and addressing of new roads, roads within subdivisions to be dedicated to Council or
renaming/readdressing existing roads within the Port Stephens local government
area (LGA).

Adopting this policy will result in Council adopting the Geographical Names Board of
NSW Address Policy and User Manual as the method in which roads are named and
properties are addressed.

Please note that yellow highlighting in the attached policy indicates an amendment
has been made and strikethrough text is to be deleted.

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction Delivery Program 2018-2022

Thriving and Safe Place to Live Provide land use plans, tools and advice
that sustainably support the community.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Adopting the policy will have no financial impact on the existing costs associated with
naming roads. The application for naming and renaming roads is covered under the
Council adopted fees and charges to recover the administration/advertising costs of
this service.

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | No

(S7.11)

External Grants No
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Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment

$)

Other No

LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

The naming of roads is a low risk service that the Council provides. All names are
approved by the Geographical Names Board (GNB) and GNB has a very clear policy
and guidelines governing the naming of roads.

Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within
Rankin Existing
Resources?
There is a risk that Low Adopt the recommendations. | Yes

names may be
duplicated if the NSW
Address Policy and User
Manual and practices is
not followed.

There is a risk that Low Adopt the recommendations. | Yes
duplication of road
names will lead to public
and emergency services
not arriving at their
destination in the most
efficient and timely way.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

The consistent naming and addressing of roads allows the public and emergency
services to utilise the road network for direction and travel in the most efficient way.
The naming and addressing of roads also allows for themes that provide the
community with a sense of place.

There are no environmental or economic implications with this policy review.

CONSULTATION

Consultation with key stakeholders has been undertaken by the Strategic Property
team.

Internal

e Senior Property Officer.
e Property Officer.
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e The Executive Team has been consulted to seek management endorsement.

External

In accordance with local government legislation the revised Road Naming and
Addressing Guidelines Policy will go on public exhibition for 28 days.

OPTIONS
1) Accept the recommendations.

2) Amend the recommendations.
3) Reject the recommendations.

ATTACHMENTS

1) Revised Road Naming and Addressing Guidelines Policy.
COUNCILLORS ROOM

Nil.

TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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ITEM 4 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED ROAD NAMING AND ADDRESSING
GUIDELINES POLICY.
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ITEM 4 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED ROAD NAMING AND ADDRESSING
GUIDELINES POLICY.
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ITEM 4 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED ROAD NAMING AND ADDRESSING
GUIDELINES POLICY.
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ITEM 4 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED ROAD NAMING AND ADDRESSING
GUIDELINES POLICY.
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ITEM 4 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED ROAD NAMING AND ADDRESSING
GUIDELINES POLICY.
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ITEM NO. 5 FILE NO: 19/348579
EDRMS NO: PSC2009-02488

POLICY REVIEW: BEACHSIDE HOLIDAY PARKS MAJOR EVENT
SPONSORSHIP AND PROMOTIONS POLICY

REPORT OF: KIM LATHAM - HOLIDAY PARKS SECTION MANAGER
GROUP: CORPORATE SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Endorse the revised Beachside Holiday Parks Major Event Sponsorship and
Promotions Policy shown at (ATTACHMENT 1).

2) Place the revised Beachside Holiday Parks Major Event Sponsorship and
Promotions Policy on public exhibition for a period of 28 days and should no
submissions be received, the policy be adopted, without a further report to
Council.

3) Revoke the Holiday Parks Event Sponsorship and Promotions Policy dated 26
November 2019, Minute No 233, should no submissions be received.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

286 Councillor John Nell
Councillor Chris Doohan

It was resolved that Council:

1) Endorse the revised Beachside Holiday Parks Major Event
Sponsorship and Promotions Policy shown at (ATTACHMENT 1).

2) Place the revised Beachside Holiday Parks Major Event Sponsorship
and Promotions Policy on public exhibition for a period of 28 days and
should no submissions be received, the policy be adopted, without a
further report to Council.

3) Revoke the Holiday Parks Event Sponsorship and Promotions Policy
dated 26 November 2019, Minute No 233, should no submissions be
received.

The motion was carried.
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BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to seek Council's endorsement of the revised Beachside
Holiday Parks Major Event Sponsorship and Promotions Policy (the ‘policy’)

(ATTACHMENT 1).

Amendments to this policy seeks to include the additional information of a written and
legally binding agreement for each sponsorship arrangement. The agreement will be
made publicly available and retained for reporting and auditing purposes.

The revised policy provides a transparent framework into how the Holiday Parks
Section of Council assesses sponsorship requests and how Council will promote the

existence of sponsorship opportunities.

Please note that yellow highlighting in the attached policy indicates an amendment

has been made and strikethrough text is to be deleted.

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction

Delivery Program 2018-2022

Financial Management

Maximise non-rate revenue and
investment to support Council services.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The policy has no known financial or resource implications and any activities will

continue to be carried out in line with existing budgets.

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | No

(§7.11)

External Grants No

Other No

LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

The policy provides an equitable framework through which Council can provide
sponsorship and is written in accordance with Council’s Sponsorship Policy, the
Local Government Act 1993 and Sponsorship in the public sector — A guide to
developing policies and procedures for both receiving and granting sponsorship;
Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC), May 2006.
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Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within
Rankin Existing
Resources?
There is a risk that not Low Adopt the recommendations. | Yes

adopting the
recommendations will
affect Council's
reputation.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

The policy provides the framework to ensure equitable and timely decisions are made
by Council with regard to sponsorship arrangements while at the same time ensuring
community expectations are met.

CONSULTATION

Consultation with key stakeholders has been undertaken by the Holiday Parks
Section to ensure the policy aligns with Council’s objectives.

Internal

Marketing and Promotions Manager.

Strategy and Environment Section Manager.

Governance Section Manager.

The Executive Team has been consulted to seek management endorsement.

External

In accordance with local government legislation the revised Beachside Holiday Parks
Major Event Sponsorship and Promotions Policy will go on public exhibition for 28
days.

OPTIONS

1) Accept the recommendations.
2) Amend the recommendations.
3) Reject the recommendations.

ATTACHMENTS

1) Revised Beachside Holiday Parks Major Event Sponsorship and Promotions
Policy.
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COUNCILLORS ROOM

Nil.

TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

712




MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

ITEMS5 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED BEACHSIDE HOLIDAY PARKS MAJOR

EVENT SPONSORSHIP AND PROMOTIONS POLICY.
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ITEMS5 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED BEACHSIDE HOLIDAY PARKS MAJOR

EVENT SPONSORSHIP AND PROMOTIONS POLICY.
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ITEMS5 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED BEACHSIDE HOLIDAY PARKS MAJOR

EVENT SPONSORSHIP AND PROMOTIONS POLICY.
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ITEMS5 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED BEACHSIDE HOLIDAY PARKS MAJOR

EVENT SPONSORSHIP AND PROMOTIONS POLICY.
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ITEMS5 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED BEACHSIDE HOLIDAY PARKS MAJOR

EVENT SPONSORSHIP AND PROMOTIONS POLICY.
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ITEMS5 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED BEACHSIDE HOLIDAY PARKS MAJOR

EVENT SPONSORSHIP AND PROMOTIONS POLICY.
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ITEMS5 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED BEACHSIDE HOLIDAY PARKS MAJOR

EVENT SPONSORSHIP AND PROMOTIONS POLICY.
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ITEM NO. 6 FILE NO: 21/256102
EDRMS NO: PSC2009-02488

POLICY REVIEW: COMMUNITY GROUP LOANS POLICY

REPORT OF: TIM HAZELL - FINANCIAL SERVICES SECTION MANAGER
GROUP: CORPORATE SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Endorse the revised Community Group Loans Policy shown at (ATTACHMENT
1).

2) Place the revised Community Group Loans Policy on public exhibition for a
period of 28 days and should no submissions be received, the policy be
adopted, without a further report to Council.

3) Revoke the Community Group Loans Policy dated 12 November 2019, Minute
No 209 should no submissions be received.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

286 Councillor John Nell
Councillor Chris Doohan

It was resolved that Council:

1) Endorse the revised Community Group Loans Policy shown at
(ATTACHMENT 1).

2) Place the revised Community Group Loans Policy on public exhibition
for a period of 28 days and should no submissions be received, the
policy be adopted, without a further report to Council.

3) Revoke the Community Group Loans Policy dated 12 November 2019,
Minute No 209 should no submissions be received.

The motion was carried.
BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to seek Council's endorsement of the revised
Community Groups Loans Policy (the ‘policy’) (ATTACHMENT 1).

The intent of the policy is to provide community, cultural and sporting groups in the
local government area with access to low interest loan funding.
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Supporting documents are proposed as part of the revisions to this policy. The
documents aim to provide greater transparency to the process of applying for a

community loan.

Please note that yellow highlighting in the attached policy indicates an amendment
has been made and strikethrough text is to be deleted.

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction

Delivery Program 2018-2022

Financial Management

Maintain strong financial sustainability.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The policy has no known financial or resource implications and is within existing

budget allocations.

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | No

(S7.11)

External Grants No

Other No

LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

No adverse legal, policy or risk implications have been identified as a result of the

policy review.

revised policy is not
adopted then Council
could be vulnerable to
defaulting loans.

Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within
Rankin Existing
Resources?
There is arisk that if the | Medium | Adopt the recommendations. | Yes
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SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

By Council facilitating reasonable loans as a responsible lender to approved
community groups, valuable facilities and services will be provided.

CONSULTATION

Consultation with key stakeholders has been undertaken by the Financial Services
Section.

Internal

e Assets Section.
e The Executive Team has been consulted to seek management endorsement.

External

In accordance with local government legislation the revised Community Groups
Loans Policy will go on public exhibition for 28 days.

OPTIONS
1) Accept the recommendations.

2) Amend the recommendations.
3) Reject the recommendations.

ATTACHMENTS

1) Revised Community Group Loans Policy.
COUNCILLORS ROOM

Nil.

TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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ITEM 6 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED COMMUNITY GROUP LOANS POLICY.
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ITEM 6 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED COMMUNITY GROUP LOANS POLICY.
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ITEM 6 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED COMMUNITY GROUP LOANS POLICY.
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ITEM 6 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED COMMUNITY GROUP LOANS POLICY.
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ITEM 6 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED COMMUNITY GROUP LOANS POLICY.
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ITEM 6 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED COMMUNITY GROUP LOANS POLICY.
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ITEM 6 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED COMMUNITY GROUP LOANS POLICY.
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ITEM 6 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED COMMUNITY GROUP LOANS POLICY.
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ITEM 6 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED COMMUNITY GROUP LOANS POLICY.
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ITEM 6 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED COMMUNITY GROUP LOANS POLICY.
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ITEM NO. 7 FILE NO: 21/256252
EDRMS NO: PSC2009-02488

POLICY REVIEW: ASSET DISPOSAL (OTHER THAN PROPERTY) POLICY

REPORT OF: TIM HAZELL - FINANCIAL SERVICES SECTION MANAGER
GROUP: CORPORATE SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Endorse the revised Asset Disposal (other than property) Policy shown at
(ATTACHMENT 1).

2) Place the revised Asset Disposal (other than property) Policy, as amended on
public exhibition for a period of 28 days and should no submissions be received,
the policy be adopted, without a further report to Council.

3) Revoke the Asset Disposal (other than property) Policy dated 12 November
2019, Minute No 208 should no submissions be received.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

286 Councillor John Nell
Councillor Chris Doohan

It was resolved that Council:

1) Endorse the revised Asset Disposal (other than property) Policy shown
at (ATTACHMENT 1).

2) Place the revised Asset Disposal (other than property) Policy, as
amended on public exhibition for a period of 28 days and should no
submissions be received, the policy be adopted, without a further
report to Council.

3) Revoke the Asset Disposal (other than property) Policy dated 12
November 2019, Minute No 208 should no submissions be received.

The motion was carried.
BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to seek Council’'s endorsement of the revised Asset
Disposal (other than property) Policy (the ‘policy’) (ATTACHMENT 1).
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The policy is required to ensure the disposal of assets is ethical, transparent and
accountable. The policy is supported by the Asset Disposal (other than property)
Management Directive that prescribes the considerations and processes to be
applied in the disposal of Council owned assets.

Please note that yellow highlighting in the attached policy indicates an amendment
has been made and strikethrough text is to be deleted.

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction Delivery Program 2018-2022

Financial Management Maintain strong financial sustainability.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The principles of the Asset Disposal (other than property) Policy requires Council to
dispose of assets in a suitable public marketplace that maximises Council’s financial
returns.

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | No

(§7.11)

External Grants No

Other No

LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

Council’s asset disposal principles are to achieve the best value for money whilst
being ethical, transparent and accountable. They promote fairness and competition.
The policy mirrors Council’s principles and by adopting the recommendations will
thereby reduce potential legal ramifications.

Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within
Rankin Existing
Resources?
There is arisk that fraud | Low Adopt the recommendations. | Yes

and corruption will occur,
leading to financial and
reputational loss.
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There is a risk that Low Adopt the recommendations. | Yes
Council will fail to
maximise its return from
asset sales.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

The disposal of assets by resale supports Council’s environmental sustainability
principles.

CONSULTATION

Consultation with key stakeholders has been undertaken by the Financial Services
Section.

Internal
The Executive Team has been consulted to seek management endorsement.
External

In accordance with local government legislation the revised Asset Disposal (other
than property) Policy will go on public exhibition for 28 days.

OPTIONS
1) Accept the recommendations.

2) Amend the recommendations.
3) Reject the recommendations.

ATTACHMENTS

1) Revised Asset Disposal (other than property) Policy.
COUNCILLORS ROOM

Nil.

TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED ASSET DISPOSAL (OTHER THAN
PROPERTY) POLICY.
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ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED ASSET DISPOSAL (OTHER THAN
PROPERTY) POLICY.
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ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED ASSET DISPOSAL (OTHER THAN
PROPERTY) POLICY.
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ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED ASSET DISPOSAL (OTHER THAN
PROPERTY) POLICY.
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ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED ASSET DISPOSAL (OTHER THAN
PROPERTY) POLICY.
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ITEM NO. 8 FILE NO: 21/256105
EDRMS NO: PSC2009-02488

POLICY REVIEW: BUDGET CONTROL AND AUTHORISATION POLICY

REPORT OF: TIM HAZELL - FINANCIAL SERVICES SECTION MANAGER
GROUP: CORPORATE SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Endorse the revised Budget Control and Authorisation Policy shown at
(ATTACHMENT 1).

2) Place the revised Budget Control and Authorisation Policy on public exhibition
for a period of 28 days and should no submission be received, the policy be
adopted, without a further report to Council.

3) Revoke the Budget Control and Authorisation Policy dated 10 December 2019,
Minute No 253 should no submissions be received.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

286 Councillor John Nell
Councillor Chris Doohan

It was resolved that Council:

1) Endorse the revised Budget Control and Authorisation Policy shown at
(ATTACHMENT 1).

2) Place the revised Budget Control and Authorisation Policy on public
exhibition for a period of 28 days and should no submission be
received, the policy be adopted, without a further report to Council.

3) Revoke the Budget Control and Authorisation Policy dated 10
December 2019, Minute No 253 should no submissions be received.

The motion was carried.
BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to seek Council's endorsement of the revised Budget
Control and Authorisation Policy (the ‘policy’) (ATTACHMENT 1).

The objective of the policy is to ensure that all Council expenditure is legally
authorised and that effective systems of budgetary control are in place to monitor and
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report on actual income and expenditure compared with budgeted income and
expenditure.

Please note that yellow highlighting in the attached policy indicates an amendment
has been made and strikethrough text is to be deleted.

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction Delivery Program 2018-2022

Financial Management Maintain strong financial sustainability.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The implementation of the policy ensures that all Council expenditure is legally
authorised and ensures the sound financial management of Council’s assets.

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | No

(S7.11)

External Grants No

Other No

LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

Implementation of the policy ensures that all Council expenditure is authorised under
the provisions contained in the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and the Local
Government (General) Regulations 2021.

Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within
Rankin Existing
Resources?
There is a risk that Low Adopt the recommendations. | Yes

Council’s legal
responsibilities will not
be met if the policy is not
implemented which could
cause financial and/or
reputational damage.
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There is a risk that failing | Low Adopt the recommendations. | Yes
to effectively monitor and
control actual income
and expenditure in
conjunction with
budgeted income and
expenditure could
compromise Council’s
financial position.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

Council’s budget is fundamental for operational sustainability and to the provision of
facilities and services to the community.

CONSULTATION

Consultation with key stakeholders has been undertaken by the Financial Services
Section.

Internal
The Executive Team has been consulted to seek management endorsement.
External

In accordance with local government legislation the revised Budget Control and
Authorisation Policy will go on public exhibition for a period of 28 days.

OPTIONS
1) Accept the recommendations.

2) Amend the recommendations.
3) Reject the recommendations.

ATTACHMENTS

1) Revised Budget Control and Authorisation Policy.
COUNCILLORS ROOM

Nil.

TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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ITEM 8 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED BUDGET CONTROL AND
AUTHORISATION POLICY.
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ITEM 8 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED BUDGET CONTROL AND
AUTHORISATION POLICY.
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ITEM 8 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED BUDGET CONTROL AND
AUTHORISATION POLICY.

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL 106



MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

ITEM 8 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED BUDGET CONTROL AND
AUTHORISATION POLICY.
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ITEM 8 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED BUDGET CONTROL AND
AUTHORISATION POLICY.
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ITEM 8 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED BUDGET CONTROL AND
AUTHORISATION POLICY.
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ITEM 8 - ATTACHMENT 1 REVISED BUDGET CONTROL AND
AUTHORISATION POLICY.
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ITEMNO. 9 FILE NO: 21/269943
EDRMS NO: PSC2005-2640

POLICY REVIEW - OUTDOOR TRADING POLICY

REPORT OF: JOHN MARETICH - ASSET SECTION MANAGER
GROUP: FACILITIES & SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Endorse the revised Outdoor Trading Policy shown at (ATTACHMENT 1).

2) Place the revised Outdoor Trading Policy, as amended on public exhibition for a
period of 28 days and should no submissions be received, the policy be
adopted, without a further report to Council.

3) Revoke the Outdoor Trading Policy dated 28 August 2018, Minute No. 269
should no submissions be received.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

286 Councillor John Nell
Councillor Chris Doohan

It was resolved that Council:

1) Endorse the revised Outdoor Trading Policy shown at (ATTACHMENT
1).

2) Place the revised Outdoor Trading Policy, as amended on public
exhibition for a period of 28 days and should no submissions be
received, the policy be adopted, without a further report to Council.

3) Revoke the Outdoor Trading Policy dated 28 August 2018, Minute No.
269 should no submissions be received.

The motion was carried.
BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is seek Council’'s endorsement of the revised Outdoor
Trading Policy (policy) shown as (ATTACHMENT 1).
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The Outdoor Trading Policy is the instrument that allows consideration of many
activities on roadways, such as outdoor dining, casual street stalls, clothing racks, A-
frames and more.

The 2021 policy review seeks to streamline the policy scope, statement and
responsibilities to aid clarity. No changes to the principles of the policy are proposed.

Please note that yellow highlighting in the attached policy indicates an amendment
has been made and strikethrough text is to be deleted.

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction Delivery Program 2018-2021

Infrastructure and Facilities Plan civil and community infrastructure to
support the community.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

No additional expense is incurred by Council as a result of the revised policy.

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Y

Reserve Funds N

Developer Contributions | N

(S7.11)

External Grants N

Other N

LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

Between revisions of the Council Outdoor Trading Policy, the NSW State
Government has offered a state based Outdoor Dining policy framework. Port
Stephens Council participated in the trial in 2020 with limited success due to low
uptake of new applications (ie. existing applications were outside of the trial).

The NSW Government have released the NSW Outdoor Dining Policy and Guideline
formally, however the adoption is discretionary for each Council. Within the current
policy review the staff have recommended that Council persist to operate the outdoor
dining function directly under our Outdoor Trading Policy framework as it provides
greater flexibility and securities. This greater flexibility allows Council to move
towards a more “Permissive Statement” approval process than a regulative type that
we have used in the past.
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Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within

Rankin Existing
Resources?

There is a risk that Moderate | Council is responsible for Yes

businesses fail to final approval and

undertake an adequate compliance checks. Council

self-assessment and/or staff will continue to assist

fail to maintain the applicant.

compliance during the

permit approval period.

There is a risk that not Moderate | Maintain the current rapid Yes

adopting the NSW
Government Outdoor
Dining Policy and
Guideline may lead to
reputational damage.

processing times and
practical approach to
approvals. Council’s policy
provides greater flexibility to
allow businesses to operate
and create a vibrant
experience.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

Outdoor trading in the various forms permissible under the policy can bring vibrancy
to local commercial centres, boost local economies and small businesses, and
provide additional jobs.

CONSULTATION

Consultation with key stakeholders has been undertaken by the Civil Assets Section.

Internal

Assets Unit - Facilities & Services Section.
Enterprise Risk Management — Governance Section.
Economic Development and Tourism — Development Services Section.
Environmental Health and Compliance — Development Services Section.

External

In accordance with local government legislation the revised Outdoor Trading Policy

will go on public exhibition from 28 days.

OPTIONS

1) Accept the recommendations.
2) Amend the recommendations.
3) Reject the recommendations.
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ATTACHMENTS

1) Outdoor Trading Policy.
COUNCILLORS ROOM
Nil.

TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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ITEM 9 - ATTACHMENT 1 OUTDOOR TRADING POLICY.
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ITEM 9 - ATTACHMENT 1 OUTDOOR TRADING POLICY.

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL 116




MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

ITEM 9 - ATTACHMENT 1 OUTDOOR TRADING POLICY.
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ITEM 9 - ATTACHMENT 1 OUTDOOR TRADING POLICY.
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ITEM 9 - ATTACHMENT 1 OUTDOOR TRADING POLICY.
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ITEM 9 - ATTACHMENT 1 OUTDOOR TRADING POLICY.
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ITEM 9 - ATTACHMENT 1 OUTDOOR TRADING POLICY.
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ITEM NO. 10 FILE NO: 21/258758
EDRMS NO: PSC2013-02870

NEW POLICY - CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION (CCTV) IN PUBLIC PLACES

REPORT OF: JOHN MARETICH - ASSET SECTION MANAGER
GROUP: FACILITIES & SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Receive and note submissions (ATTACHMENT 1).

2) Adopt the revised Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) in Public Places Policy
shown at (ATTACHMENT 2).

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

287 Councillor Glen Dunkley
Councillor Paul Le Mottee

It was resolved that Council:

1) Receive and note submissions (ATTACHMENT 1).

2) Adopt the revised Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) in Public Places
Policy shown at (ATTACHMENT 2).

The motion was carried.
BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is seek Council’s endorsement of the draft Closed Circuit
Television (CCTV) in Public Places Policy (policy) shown at (ATTACHMENT 2)
following the public exhibition of 24 August 2021 to 21 September 2021.

Council owns and operates a number of CCTV networks across the Local
Government Area, including the town centres of Nelson Bay and Raymond Terrace.
These were previously owned and managed by the Business Chamber and funded
by grants. The network has been operating directly under statutory powers and
following the ‘NSW Government Policy Statement and Guidelines for the
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Establishment and Implementation of Closed Circuit Television CCTV in Public
Places’.

The attached policy seeks to provide a framework and a set of underlying principles
to direct the operation and management of the CCTV network when observing public
places. The requirements and policy statements relevant to the parts of Council’s
CCTV networks observing places, other than public places, are under the Workplace
Surveillance Policy.

During the public exhibition, 2 submissions were received which have been
summarised in (ATTACHMENT 1). As a result of the submission the advertised
policy was modified to include a definition of law enforcement agency.

Please note that text highlighted in blue in the policy shows amendments that have
been made following public exhibition.

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction Delivery Program 2018-2022

Thriving and Safe Place to Live Provide land use plans, tools and advice
that sustainably support the community.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

There are no additional expenses incurred by Council as a result of adopting the draft
Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) in Public Places Policy.

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | No

(§7.11)

External Grants No

Other No

LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

CCTV systems are subject to complex legislative requirements, guidelines and
standards for their installation, operation and management. These include:

Government Information (Public Access) Act 2009 (NSW).

Local Government Act 1993 (NSW).

Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act 1998 (NSW).
Privacy and Personal Information Protection Regulation 2014 (NSW).
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Crimes Act 1900 (NSW).

Security Industry Act 1997 (NSW).

Workplace Surveillance Act 2005 (NSW).
State Records Act 1998 (NSW).

In 2000, the NSW Government established guidelines around the installation and use
of CCTV in public places. Revised in 2014, the NSW Government Policy Statement

and Guidelines for the Establishment and Implementation of Closed Circuit Television
(CCTV) in Public Places was published to assist Council navigate the various acts by
providing the policy framework and set of underlying principles.

community expectation
for broader CCTV
network coverage
leading to additional
expense.

CCTV network coverage
expansion will be assessed
in line with other priorities for
Capital Expenditure.

Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within
Rankin Existing
Resources?
There is a risk of Medium | Policy provisions stipulate Yes
inappropriate disclosure that only law enforcement
of CCTV system footage agencies may be issued
outside leading to a footage. Standard Operating
potential privacy breach. Procedure will be developed
to reinforce this requirement.
There is a risk that the Medium | Monitor legislative changes Yes
NSW Government may and participate in any
change the statutory consultation periods.
requirements of owning
or operating a CCTV
network leading to
potential additional cost
or noncompliance.
There is a risk that Low Requests for additional Yes

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

The draft policy will provide a positive social and economic impact to our community
by facilitating the Community Strategic Plan’s strategic direction of a Thriving and

Safe Place to Live.

Council’s objectives for using CCTV are to reduce crime levels by deterring potential
offenders, to reduce fear of crime, to increase perceptions of safety and to assist in

the prosecution of offenders by providing Police with recorded material.
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CONSULTATION

Consultation with key stakeholders has been undertaken by the Assets Section.

Internal

e Assets (Fleet Management and Civil Infrastructure Teams) as custodians and
operators of the CCTV network.

e |ICT as support for the CCTV network

e Governance Section
e Strategy and Environment Section.

External

NSW Police Force have been consulted with respect to establishing Standard
Operating Procedures and Memorandums of Understanding between our
organisations.

The draft Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) in Public Places Policy was placed on
public exhibition for a period of 28 days from 24 August 2021 to 21 September 2021.
During the public exhibition period, 2 submissions were received and are
summarised in (ATTACHMENT 1).

OPTIONS

1) Accept the recommendations.

2) Amend the recommendations.
3) Reject the recommendations.

ATTACHMENTS

1) Public Exhibition - Submissions Summary.
2) Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) in Public Places Policy.

COUNCILLORS ROOM
1) Public Exhibition — Full Submissions.
TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 1

PUBLIC EXHIBITION - SUBMISSIONS SUMMARY.

New Policy - Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) in Public Places.

m Author of submission Comment Council response

Resident.

Funds to be directed to CCTV
should be directed to other
projects.

No evidence to support CCTV
objectives are to reduce crime
levels.

No evidence to support CCTV
implementation is part of an
integrated multi agency
approach. No evidence to
support how council will consult
with communities when
expanding CCTV.

No evidence to support CCTV
will have regard for privacy and
civil rights of individuals and the
community. No evidence to
support records will not be used
or disclosed to anyone other
than law enforcement agency.

No evidence to support that any
record will not be used or
disclosed unlessitisto a
member or office of a law
enforcement agency.

No evidence to suggest Council
will manage all complaints in
accordance with Complaint
Handling Policy.

No additional expenses have
been incurred by Council as a
result of adopting the draft

policy.

CCTV is only one of a range of
strategies that Council utilises
with an aim to reduce crime.
Other strategies include
activating public space,
appropriate lighting, natural
surveillance, access control
and signage.

Consultation with key
stakeholders including NSW
Police has been undertaken.

Any access to information will
be in accordance with Council’s
Access to Information Policy.

NSW Police have been
consulted regarding
establishment of Standard
Operating Procedures and
Memorandum of
Understanding between our
organisations.

All complaints will be managed
in accordance with established
Complaint Handling Policy.

2 Resident.

Draft policy does not follow the
State Government guidelines.

The policy is based on various
legislative requirements,
guidelines and standards
including the NSW Government
guidelines, Privacy Regulation
and Crimes Act.
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ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 1

PUBLIC EXHIBITION - SUBMISSIONS SUMMARY.

There should be a publicly
available map showing the areas
of town centres covered.

Further information is required
relating to processes and criteria
for police/law enforcement
access.

Further information is required
relating to CCTV images being
subject to GIPA Act requests.

Costs of equipment,
maintenance and operation
should be made more visible to
the community.

Further information is required
relating to periodic review and
regular audits of CCTV.

It is unclear if the system allows
for real time monitoring.

Further details are required of
the processes of access to
authorising monitoring and
viewing. Further information is
required on access to CCTV
images.

Further information is required
on ownership of the equipment.

Further information is required
on who is defined as a law
enforcement agency.

A map is available to
authorised officers of Council.

NSW Police have been
consulted regarding
establishment of Standard
Operating Procedures and
Memorandum of
Understanding.

Any request to obtain data
must be made in accordance
with Council's access to
information process (GIPA).

The costs of CCTV are
included in the budget as part
of the overall Asset
Management Strategy that is
adopted by Council.

This policy will be reviewed
every 3 years, or if there are
any changes to the NSW
Govemment CCTV Guidelines.
The review will consider the
results of the audits of
Council's CCTV scheme, to
ensure that this policy is
effective and has been
implemented appropriately.

The system allows for real time
monitoring.

Council has appointed a
number of authorised officers
who have responsibilities for
management and oversight of
the program. All requests for
access to data held by Council
must be made through the
GIPA process.

CCTV equipment is owned by
Council.

The policy has been updated to
include a definition of law
enforcement agencies.
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ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 2  CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION (CCTV) IN PUBLIC
PLACES POLICY.
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ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 2  CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION (CCTV) IN PUBLIC
PLACES POLICY.
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ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 2  CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION (CCTV) IN PUBLIC
PLACES POLICY.
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ITEM 10 - ATTACHMENT 2  CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION (CCTV) IN PUBLIC
PLACES POLICY.
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ITEM NO. 11 FILE NO: 21/262392
EDRMS NO: PSC2018-03650

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 TO 2021

REPORT OF: TIMOTHY CROSDALE - GROUP MANAGER CORPORATE
SERVICES
GROUP: CORPORATE SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Adopt the Annual Report Financial Year 2020 to 2021 (ATTACHMENTS 1, 2
and 3).

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

288 Councillor Sarah Smith
Councillor Chris Doohan

It was resolved that Council adopt the Annual Report Financial Year 2020
to 2021 (ATTACHMENTS 1, 2 and 3).

The motion was carried.
BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to present to Council and the community the Annual
Report 2020 to 2021. The Annual Report is in 3 volumes:

e Volume 1 is the report of activities and operations of Council for the financial year
to 30 June 2021, reporting on statutory requirements and Council’'s achievements
in implementing its Delivery Program (ATTACHMENT 1).

e Volume 2 is the audited financial statements of Council to 30 June 2021
(ATTACHMENT 2).

e Volume 3 is the End of Term Report 2017 to 2021 (ATTACHMENT 3).

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction Delivery Program 2018-2022
Governance Provide a strong ethical governance
structure.

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL 132



MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Volume 1 of the Annual Report contains a summary of Council’s financial
performance, capital expenditure and governance across the whole of Council’s
operations. As at 30 June 2021 Council achieved its organisational target of an
underlying financial surplus.

Volume 2 of the Annual Report contains more detail of Council’s financial position
and audited accounts.

Volume 3 of the Annual Report contains the End of Term Report 2017 to 2021. In
accordance with the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (Local Government Act)
section 428(2) and the Integrated Planning and Reporting Guidelines for Local
Government in NSW (March 2013), an End of Term Report 2017 to 2021 has been
appended outlining Council’'s achievements in implementing the Community Strategic
Plan. The End of Term Report 2017 to 2021 also addresses the environmental
objectives of the Community Strategic Plan, and as such, Council is not required to
prepare an additional report on the State of the Environment.

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | No

(S7.11)

External Grants No

Other No

LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with section 428(1-4) of the
Local Government Act 1993.

The Annual Financial Statements and End of Term Report will also be considered by
Council in the Council meeting of 26 October 2021.

Section 428(5) of the Local Government Act 1993 states:

"A copy of the Council’'s Annual Report must be posted on the council’s website and
provided to the Minister and such other persons and bodies as the regulations may
require. A copy of a Council’'s Annual Report may be provided to the Minister by
notifying the Minister of the appropriate URL link to access the report on the Council’s
website.”
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Subject to adoption of the Annual Report by Council, officers will place the Annual
Report 2020 to 2021 on Council's website, in Council Libraries and advise the Office
of Local Government.

Section 428A(1) states:

“The Annual Report of a council in the year in which an ordinary election of
Councillors is to be held must include a report (a state of the environment report) as
to the state of the environment in the local government area.” As outlined above, the
End of Term Report addresses and reports on the environmental objectives and
indicators of the Community Strategic Plan.

Office of Local Government Circular No 21-16 / 30 June 2021 / A773314 additionally
outlines that Councils should ensure they report performance against targets,
outcomes, efficiency and cost effectiveness over time.

Volume 1 of the Annual Report provides Council's performance against its 7 main
result measures over time and reports on the outcomes of the Delivery Program for
2020 to 2021 including the effectiveness of its Operational Plan actions, efficiencies
in continuing to review business operations and our financial sustainability since
2012.

Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within
Rankin Existing
Resources?
There is a risk that failure | Low Adopt the recommendation. | Yes

to provide the Annual
Report within the
legislated timeframe
could lead to reputational
loss and a breach of the
Local Government Act
1993.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

The Annual Report 2020 to 2021 provides information on Council’s performance and
achievements across a range of social, economic and environmental factors,
outlining the principal activities of Council which are based on the 4 pillars of
sustainability. Council is committed to transparent reporting and accountability to our
community.

Despite the challenging year that it has been, Port Stephens Council always has the
community’s best interests at heart providing the services our community needs in
the best possible way. This report provides not only our achievements and
challenges for 2020 to 2021 but alternate ways that we’ve been providing services
and supporting the community.
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Council achieved the high organisational targets it set for the key result measures of
service delivery, employee engagement, financial sustainability, governance and risk
management. As outlined in the Annual Report, we did not meet the high targets set
for community satisfaction and infrastructure backlog. This is understandable in the
aftermath of the natural disaster in March 2021 and the ongoing impacts of COVID-
19. However, we are firmly focused on reviewing these results in conjunction with the
community’s priorities as part of integrated planning throughout 2021 to 2022.

The key result measures (metrics) for 2020 to 2021 were:

Service Delivery:

e Target: > 95% Integrated Plans delivered on time.
e Achievement: 98% of Operational Plan actions on track after revising workplans
due to COVID-19 and the natural disaster.

Community Satisfaction

e Target: > 80% Community Satisfaction.
e Achievement: 68% overall Community Satisfaction score.

Employee Engagement

e Target: > 70% Employee Engagement.
e Achievement: 81%.

Governance

e Target: > 95% Governance Health Check.
e Achievement: 98.2%

Risk Management

e Target: > 80% Risk Management Maturity score.
e Achievement: 86%.

Financial Sustainability

e Target: Underlying Financial Surplus.
e Achievement: Underlying Financial Surplus of $582,807.

Infrastructure Backlog

e Target: Reduction in Backlog
e Achievement: $14.47m (gap as at 30 June 2021, compared to $13.83 m 30 June
2020).
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CONSULTATION

Compilation of the Annual Report 2020 to 2021 has occurred in consultation with the
following internal key stakeholders:

e Executive Team.
e Section Managers.

e Council Officers.

Information was gathered from across Council to compile the Annual Report 2020 to
2021.

If adopted by Council, the Annual Report 2020 to 2021 will be placed on Council’s
website, with the appropriate web link advised to the Office of Local Government and
hard copies distributed to Council’s Libraries and the State Library of New South
Wales.

OPTIONS
1) Accept the recommendation.

2) Amend the recommendation.
3) Reject the recommendation.

ATTACHMENTS

1) Annual Report 2020 to 2021 - Volume 1. (Provided under separate cover)
2) Annual Report 2020 to 2021 - Volume 2. (Provided under separate cover)
3) Annual Report 2020 to 2021 - Volume 3. (Provided under separate cover)
COUNCILLORS ROOM

Nil.

TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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ITEM NO. 12 FILE NO: 21/250264
EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00180

2020 - 2021 ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REPORT OF: TIM HAZELL - FINANCIAL SERVICES SECTION MANAGER
GROUP: CORPORATE SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Adopt the 2020-2021 Annual Financial Statements (ATTACHMENT 1) and
accept the Auditor’s reports, as submitted by the Audit Office of New South
Wales.

2) Place the 2020-2021 Annual Financial Statements on public exhibition, with
submissions accepted until 5pm on 2 November 2021 in line with legislation.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

289 Councillor Paul Le Mottee
Councillor Glen Dunkley

It was resolved that Council:

1) Adopt the 2020-2021 Annual Financial Statements (ATTACHMENT 1)
and accept the Auditor’s reports, as submitted by the Audit Office of
New South Wales.

2) Place the 2020-2021 Annual Financial Statements on public exhibition,
with submissions accepted until 5pm on 2 November 2021 in line with
legislation.

The motion was carried.
BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to advise Council that the 2020-2021 Annual Financial
Statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards, the Local Government Act 1993 and associated regulations and the Local
Government Code of Accounting Practice.

The 2020-2021 Annual Financial Statements have been reviewed by Council’s
Auditors (The Audit Office of NSW) and the Audit Committee. This report is to
formally present Council’s Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL 137



MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

2021, together with the Auditor’'s Report, to the public in accordance with sections
418 and 419 of the Local Government Act 1993.

Included with the 2020-2021 Annual Financial Statements is a Holiday Parks and
Investment Property Report, which shows the financial result for all holiday parks
operated by Council, together with the financial result for Council's investment
property portfolio and the Newcastle Airport.

A summary of the key points of the 2020-2021 Annual Financial Statements is shown
at (ATTACHMENT 2) to assist with legibility.

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction Delivery Program 2018-2022

Financial Management Maintain strong financial sustainability.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | No

(S7.11)

External Grants No

Other No

LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

There are no known legal or policy implications. The risk implications are listed in the
table below.

Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within
Rankin Existing
Resources?
There is a risk that Low Adopt the recommendations. | Yes

the Annual Financial
Statements will not
be adopted by
Council and
contravene
legislation.
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SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

Completion of the 2020-2021 Annual Financial reports provides Council with the
information needed to facilitate prudent financial management decision making which
will have a positive impact on the community.

CONSULTATION

Consultation with key stakeholders has been undertaken by the Financial Services
Section.

The 2020-2021 Annual Financial Statements, including the Auditor’s reports, have
been circulated separately to the Mayor and Councillors for their information and a
two-way conversation held with one of the auditors in attendance to discuss the
reports.

Internal

e Senior Leadership Team.
e Audit Committee.

External

e The Audit Office of New South Wales.

Public notice of the presentation of the audited 2020-2021 Annual Financial
Statements was advertised on Council’s website from 19 October 2021 with copies of
the Annual Financial Statements made available on Council's website.

Submissions from the public on the audited 2020-2021 Annual Financial Statements
will be accepted for 7 days after the Council meeting, from 27 October 2021 to 2
November 2021 inclusive, in accordance with relevant legislation.

OPTIONS

1) Accept the recommendations.
2) Amend the recommendations.
3) Reject the recommendations.

ATTACHMENTS

1) Annual Financial Statements 2020 - 2021
2) Annual Financial Statements - Key Discussion Points.

COUNCILLORS ROOM

Nil.
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TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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ITEM 12 - ATTACHMENT 1 ~ ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020 - 2021

Port Stephens Council

GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2021

el )
PORT STEFHENS
"A great lifestyle in a treasured environment” B
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ITEM 12 - ATTACHMENT 1 ~ ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020 - 2021

Port Stephens Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Contents Page

Statement by Councillors and Management 3

Primary Financial Statements:

Income Statement

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of Cash Flows

U] 0~ O, N

Notes to the Financial Statements

Independent Auditor’s Reports:
On the Financial Statements (Sect 417) 91

Overview

Port Stephens Council is constituted under the Local Government Act 1893 (NSW) and has its principal place of
business at:

116 Adelaide Street
Raymond Terrace NSW 2324

Council's guiding principles are detailed in Chapter 3 of the LGA and includes:

« principles applying to the exercise of functions generally by council,

principles to be applied when making decisions,

principles of community participation,

principles of sound financial management, and

principles for strategic planning relating to the development of an integrated planning and reporting framework.

A description of the nature of Council’s operations and its principal activities are provided in Note B1-2.

Through the use of the internet, we have ensured that our reporting is timely, complete and available at minimum
cost. All press releases, financial statements and other information are publicly available on our website:
www.portstephens.nsw.gov.au.

Page 2
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ITEM 12 - ATTACHMENT 1 ~ ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020 - 2021

Port Stephens Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Statement by Councillors and Management
Statement by Councillors and Management made pursuant to Section 413(2)(c) of the Loca/
Government Act 1993 (NSW)
The attached general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with:
- the Local! Govemnment Act 1993 and the regulations made thereunder,
» the Australian Accounting Standards and other pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board

+ the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements:
» present fairly the Council’s operating result and financial position for the year
= accord with Council's accounting and other records.
We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 10 August 2021.

Ryan Palmer Paul Le Mottee
Mayor Gouncillor
10 August 2021 10 August 2021

allis Tim Hazell
General Manager Responsible Accou Officer

Wayn
10 August 2021 10 August 2021
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ITEM 12 - ATTACHMENT 1

Port Stephens Council

Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Original
unaudited
budget Actual Actual
2021 $°'000 Notes 2021 2020
Income from continuing operations
63,648 Rates and annual charges B2-1 63,396 59,812
46,024 User charges and fees (*) B2-2 39,886 42,042
3,572 Other revenue B2-3 4,516 2,937
Grants and contributions provided for operating B24
12,408 purposes 15,032 12,837
Grants and contributions provided for capital B24
9,623 purposes 29,992 24,318
1,213 Interest and investment income B2-5 1,042 884
4,160 Other income (*) B2-6 4197 4,070
8,272 Net gains from the disposal of assets B4-1 2,349 -
148,820 Total income from continuing operations 160,410 146,900
Expenses from continuing operations
52,267 Employee benefits and on-costs B3-1 51,662 49,812
55,158 Materials and services (*) B3-2 50,601 51,816
893 Borrowing costs B33 854 797
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment for B34
17,002 non-financial assets 18,331 17,073
4,203 Other expenses (¥) B3-5 6,153 4,765
— Net losses from the disposal of assets B4-1 - 2,570
129,613 Total expenses from continuing operations 127,601 126,833
19,207 Operating result from continuing operations 32,809 20,067
19,207 Net operating result for the year attributable to Council * 32,809 20,067
9.684 Net operating result for the year before grants and 2,817 4,251)

The above Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

contributions provided for capital purposes

) Items have been reclassified in accordance with The Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting 2020/21.
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ITEM 12 - ATTACHMENT 1 ~ ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020 - 2021

Port Stephens Council

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2021

$ 000 Notes 2021 2020
Net operating result for the year — from Income Statement 32,809 20,067
Other comprehensive income:
Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating result
Gain (loss) on revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment  c1-8 10,818 (4,503)
Gain (loss) on revaluation of intangible assets c1-10 311 -
Total items which will not be reclassified subsequently to the
operating result 11,129 (4,503)
Total other comprehensive income for the year 11,129 (4,503)
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to
Council 43,938 15,564
The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ITEM 12 - ATTACHMENT 1 ~ ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020 - 2021

Port Stephens Council

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2021

$'000 Notes
ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents C1-1
Investments C1-2
Receivables C1-4
Inventories C1-5
Contract assets and contract cost assets C1-6
Non-current assets classified as 'held for sale' c1-7
Other C1-11

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Investments c1-2
Receivables C1-4
Inventories c15
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment c1-8
Investment property c1-9
Intangible Assets c1-10
Right of use assets C2-1
Investments accounted for using the equity methed 02-2
Other c1-11

Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Payables C3-1
Contract liabilities C3-2
Lease liabilities C2-1
Borrowings C3-3
Employee benefit provisions C3-4
Provisions €35

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Payables C3-1
Lease liabilities C2-1
Borrowings c3-3
Employee benefit provisions C3-4

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Accumulated surplus c4-1
IPPE revaluation reserve C4-1
Total equity

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

2021 2020
21,542 16,525
36,145 22,913

9,673 8,406
977 5,149

577 -

42 -

1,051 946
70,007 53,939
1,102 3,939
160 172
10,605 9,820
1,031,239 1,001,598
42,295 37,575
5,876 5,835
3,854 4,740
431 540

29 37
1,095,591 1,064,256
1,165,598 1,118,195
15,288 13,888
6,339 2,513

831 794
2,966 3,332
15,937 16,138
331 428
41,692 37,093
2,922 3,280
3,209 4,069
29,594 29,515
776 771
36,501 37,635
78,193 74,728
1,087,405 1,043 467
673,059 640,250
414,346 403,217
1,087,405 1,043,467
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Port Stephens Council

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2021

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020 - 2021

as at 30/06/21

as at 30/06/20

IPPE IPPE

Accumulated revaluation Total Accumulated  revaluation Total
$ '000 Motes surplus reserve equity surplus reserve equity
Opening balance at 1 July 640,250 403,217 1,043,467 618,886 409,017 1,027,903
Restated opening balance 640,250 403,217 1,043,467 618,886 409,017 1,027,903
Net operating result for the year 32,809 - 32,809 20,067 - 20,067
Other comprehensive income
Gain {loss} on revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment c1-8 - 10,818 10,818 - (4,503} (4,503)
Gain (loss} on revaluation of intangibles - 311 311 - - -
Other comprehensive income - 11,129 11,129 - (4,503} (4,503}
Total comprehensive income 32,809 11,129 43,938 20,067 (4,503} 15,564
Transfers between equity items - - - 1,297 (1,297} -
Closing balance at 30 June 673,059 414,346 1,087,405 640,250 403,217 1,043,467
The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020 - 2021

Original
unaudited
budget Actual Actual
2021 $°'000 Notes 2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts:
63,308 Rates and annual charges 62,905 59,588
45,282 User charges and fees 43,758 44,342
1,213 Investment and interest revenue received 464 1,262
19,381 Grants and contributions 38,863 33,183
— Bonds, deposits and retention amounts received - 281
2,762 Other 10,556 13,532
Payments:
(65,211) Employee benefits and on-costs {52,029) (48,826)
(43,293) Materials and services {55,570) (56,047)
(893) Borrowing costs {854) (796)
— Bonds, deposits and retention amounts refunded {198) -
(6,152) Other {6,467) (6,301
26,397 Net cash flows from operating activities Gi-1a 11,428 40,218
Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts:
— Sale of investment securities 15,500 35,084
12,950 Sale of real estate assets 6,499 -
250 Sale of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 273 2,095
Payments:
— Purchase of investment securities {25,299) (25,736)
— Purchase of investment property {88) (2,012)
(23,529) Purchase of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment {31,895) (58,380)
— Purchase of real estate assets {181) (1,075)
— Purchase of intangible assets {138) (193)
(10,329) Net cash flows from investing activities {35,329) (50,217)
Cash flows from financing activities
Receipts:
— Proceeds from borrowings 3,000 18,100
Payments:
(4,359) Repayment of borrowings {3,287) (4,782)
—  Principal component of lease payments {795) (742)
(4,359) Net cash flows from financing activities {1,082) 12,576
11,709 Net change in cash and cash equivalents 5,017 2,577
16,525 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 16,525 13,948
28,234 Cash and cash equivalents at end of year C1-1 21,542 16,525
26,852 plus: Investments on hand at end of year C1-2 37,247 26,852
55,086 Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 58,789 43,377
The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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A About Council and these financial statements

A1-1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements were authorised for issue by Council on 26 October 2021. Council has the power to
amend and reissue these financial statements in cases where critical information is received from public submissions
or where the OLG directs Council to amend the financial statements.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below.

These policies have heen consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards
and Australian Accounting Interpretations, the Local Government Act 1993 (Act) and Local Government (General)
Regulation 2005 (Regulation), and the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

Council is a not for-profit entity.
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars.

Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of certain infrastructure, property, plant and equipment and investment property.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Council's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Council and that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
Council makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year include:

i. estimated fair values of investment property — refer Note C1-9

ii. estimated fair values of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment — refer Note C1-8
iii. estimated tip remediation provisions — refer Note C3-5

iv. employee benefit provisions — refer Note C3-4.

Significant judgements in applying the Council's accounting policies

i. Impairment of receivables — refer Note C1-4.

ii. Determination of whether performance obligations are sufficiently specific and whether the contract is within the
scope of AASB 15 Revenue from Conlracts with Customers and / or AASB 1058 Income of Noi-for-Profit Entities
—refer to Notes B2-2 — B2-4.

ii. Determination of the lease term, discount rate (when not implicit in the lease) and whether an arrangement
contains a lease — refer to Note C2-1.
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A1-1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Monies and other assets received by Council

The Consolidated Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 409(1) of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW), all money and property
received by Council is held in the Council's Consolidated Fund. Council does not have any money or property that
is required to be held in a Trust Fund.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is
not recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the Statement
of Financial Position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing
activities that are recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority are presented as operating cash flows.

Volunteer services

Income relating to volunteer services can only be recognised where the amount is material, the services would be
purchased if they were not donated and the amount of all volunteer services can be reliably measured. Council is
not able to reliably satisfy all these aspects therefore no income and corresponding expense has been recognised
in the financial statements.

New accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations (ie. pronouncements) have been published by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2021 reporting period.

Council has elected not to apply any of these pronouncements in these financial statements before their operative
dates.

As at the date of authorisation of these financial statements Council does not consider that any of these new (and
still to be applied) standards and interpretations are likely to have a material impact on the Council's future financial
statements, financial position, financial performance or cash flows.

New accounting standards adopted during the year

During the year Council adopted all accounting standards and interpretations (as issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board) which were mandatorily effective from the first time at 30 June 2021.

Those newly adopted standards which had a material impact on Council's reported financial position, financial
performance and/or associated financial statement disclosures are further discussed in Note G4-1.
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B Financial Performance

B1 Functions or activities

B1-1 Functions or activities — income, expenses and assets

Income, expenses and assets have been directly attributed to the following functions or activities. Details of those functions or activities are provided in Note B1-2.

Income Expenses Operating result Grants and contributions Carrying amount of assets
$'000 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Functions or activities
Our Community 6,038 6,013 9,912 10,050 (3,874) {4,037} 1,005 677 180,876 173,998
Qur Council 88,091 84,549 46,188 46,710 41,903 37,839 8,430 11,249 250,233 229,530
Our Environment 22,248 19,517 21,348 19,321 900 196 787 446 4,321 4,383
Our Place 44,033 36,821 50,153 50,752 (6,120) (13,931) 34,802 24,782 730,168 710,369
Total functions and activities 160,410 146,900 127,601 126,833 32,809 20,067 45,024 37,155 1,165,598 1,118,195
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B1-2 Components of functions or activities

Details relating to the Council’s functions or activities as reported in B1-1 are as follows:
Our Community

Port Stephens is a thriving and strong community respecting diversity and heritage
Children's Services; Community Services; Contract and Services; Library Services.

Community Development and Engagement; Economic Development and Tourism; Strategic Planning; Volunteer
Management; Delivery of Council's Financial Assistance Programs.

Management of Aboriginal Places in Port Stephens.
Our Place
Port Stephens is a liveable place supperting local economic growth

Asset Systems; Building and Developer Relations; Building Trades; Civil Assets Planning; Civil Contracts; Civil
Projects; Community and Recreation; Community Development and Engagement; Construction; Contract and
Services; Designh; Emergency Management; Engineering Services; Environmental Health and Compliance;
Mechanical and Maintenance Stores; Parks; Planning and Developer Relations; Roads; Roadside and Drainage;
Strategic Planning; Survey and Land Information.

Economic Development and Tourism; Development, construction and maintanence of Koala Sanctuary, Hospital
and Tourism Facility.

Our Environment
Port Stephens’ environment is clean, green, protected and enhanced

Tree Assessment Services; Tree Permit System; Community and Recreation; Rehabilitate, monitor and manage
decommissioned landfill sites; Waste Management.

Coastal Management; Community support and advocacy; Deliver Environmental Education and Grant Programs;
Develop and implement projects to protect and enhance the local environment; Ecological and Environmental
Planning Services; Management and Regulation of Biosecurity Risks; Strategic guidance, current knowledge and
best practice advice.

Our Council
Port Stephens Council leads, manages and delivers valued community services in a responsible way

Business Excellence; Citizenship Ceremonies; Commercial Investments; Community Development and
Engagement; Corporate Reporting; Corporate Systems and Business Improvement; Customer Relations; Digital
and Website; Environmental Management; Facilities Management; Finance; Governance; Holiday Parks; Human
Resources; Information and Communication Technologies; Information Services; Liasion with other government
agencies; Manage strategic and operational matters; Marketing and Promotions; Public Relations and Marketing;
Risk Management; Statutory Property; Support commercial aviation services; Support services for the Mayor,
Councillors and senior executive officers; Work Health and Safety.
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B2 Sources of income

B2-1 Rates and annual charges

$ '000

Ordinary rates
Residential
Farmland
Business

Less: pensioner rebates (mandatory)

Rates levied to ratepayers

Pensioner rate subsidies received
Total ordinary rates

Annual charges
{pursuant to 5 496, 5. 496A, 5.496B, 5.501 & s.611}

Domestic waste management services
Waste management services (non-domestic)

Section 611 charges

Less: pensioner rebates (mandatory)

Annual charges levied

Pensioner subsidies received:
— Domestic waste management
Total annual charges

Total rates and annual charges

Council has used 2019 year valuations provided by the NSW Valuer General in calculating its rates.

Accounting policy

Timing

2021 2020
35,441 34,362
866 821
8,579 8,158
(1,067) (1,066)
43,819 42,275
591 598
44,410 42,873
15,134 14,131
4,061 2,997
1 1
(481) (456)
18,725 16,683
261 256
18,986 16,939
63,396 59,812

Rates and annual charges are recognised as revenue at the beginning of the rating period to which they relate.
Prepaid rates are recognised as a financial liability until the beginning of the rating period.

Pensioner rebates relate to reductions in rates and certain annual charges for eligible pensioners’ place of residence

in the local government council area that are not subsidised by the NSW Government.

Pensioner rate subsidies are received from the NSW Government to provide a contribution towards the pensioner
rebates and are recognised within the underlying revenue item based on their substance.
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B2-2 User charges and fees (*)

$ 000 Timing 2021 2020

Specific user charges

(per s.502 - specific "actual use' charges)

Waste management services (non-domestic) 2 1,697 1,486
Total specific user charges 1,697 1,486

Other user charges and fees
(i) Fees and charges - statutory and regulatory functions (per s.608)

Private works — section 67 2 94 95
Section 10.7 certificates (EP&A Act) 2 218 184
Section 603 certificates 2 208 145
Building inspection fees 2 299 283
Building services 2 1,036 1,115
Shop inspection fees 2 223 182
Subdivision fees 2 380 316
Total fees and charges — statutory/regulatory 2,458 2,320
(il) Fees and charges — other (incl. general user charges (per s.608))

Animal control 9 4
Cemeteries 2 186 181
Child care 1 2,671 2,377
Holiday parks 1 14,506 9,956
Leisure centre 2 1,898 2,183
Library 84 86
Newcastle airport @ 2 7,816 14,026
Waste disposal tipping fees 2 426 352
Transport for NSW works (state roads not controlled by Council) 2 4,892 6,110
Parking meters 2 957 439
Parks, gardens and other community services 4 2
Sewerage management fees 1 655 644
Other 1,264 1,239
Rental income - other Council properties * 2 363 637
Total fees and charges — other 35,731 38,236
Total user charges and fees 39,886 42,042
Timing of revenue recognition for user charges and fees

User charges and fees recognised over time (1) 17,833 12,977
User charges and fees recognised at a point in time (2) 22,053 29,065
Total user charges and fees 39,886 42,042

Accounting policy
Revenue arising from user charges and fees is recognised when or as the performance obligation is completed and
the customer receives the benefit of the goods / services being provided.

The performance obligation relates to the specific services which are provided to the customers and generally the
payment terms are within 30 days of the provision of the service or in some cases such as caravan parks, the
customer is required to pay on arrival or a deposit in advance. There is no material obligation for Council in relation
to refunds or returns.

Where an upfront fee is charged such as joining fees for the leisure centre the fee is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the expected life of the membership.

Licences granted by Council are all either short-term or low value and all revenue from licences is recognised at the
time that the licence is granted rather than over the term of the licence.

) ltems have been reclassified in accordance with The Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting 2020/21.
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B2-2 User charges and fees (*) (continued)

(e} ltems in relation to Newcastle Airport have been reclassified as other revenue rather than user charges and fees.
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B2-3 Other revenue

$ 000 Timing
Ex gratia rates 2
Fines — parking 2
Fines — other 3
Legal fees recovery —rates and charges (extra charges)

Legal fees recovery — other 2
Commissions and agency fees 4
Insurance claims recoveries 3

Events and promotions

Long service leave receipts

Private works 4
Royalties - sand extraction 2
Other revenue - Newcastle airport partnership 2

Other

Total other revenue

Timing of revenue recognition for other revenue
Other revenue recognised over time (1)

Other revenue recognised at a point in time (2)
Total other revenue

Accounting policy for other revenue

2021 2020
116 108
278 398
220 252

3 17

3 212
226 179
328 481
46 52

- 2

223 301
1,406 67
768 60
899 808
4,616 2,937
449 480
4,067 2,457
4,516 2,937

Where the revenue is earned for the provision of specified goods / services under an enforceable contract, revenue

is recognised when or as the obligations are satisfied.

Statutory fees and fines are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided, the payment is received

or when the penalty has been applied, whichever occurs first.

Other revenue is recorded when the payment is due, the value of the payment is notified, or the payment is received,

whichever occurs first.

(a) ltems in relation to Newcastle Airport have been reclassified as other revenue rather than user charges and fees.
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B2-4 Grants and contributions

Operating Operating Capital Capital
$ '000 Timing 2021 2020 2021 2020
General purpose grants and non-developer
contributions {untied)
General purpose {(untied)
Current year allocation
Financial assistance 2 3,232 3,343 - -
Payment in advance - future year allocation
Financial assistance 2 3,459 3,542 - -
Amount recognised as income during current
year 6,691 6,885 - -
Special purpose grants and non-developer
contributions (tied)
Cash contributions
Previously specific grants:
Bushfire and emergency services 2 1,106 1,192 - 800
Child care 1 631 287 - -
Environmental programs 1 619 174 90 -
Heritage and cultural 1 18 12 - -
Library 2 246 238 - -
LIRS subsidy 2 37 48 — _
Recreation and culture 1 1,370 11 1,581 4,367
Newcastle airport 1 - — 2,682 5,392
Youth development 1 116 77 - -
Street lighting 2 75 75 - -
Weed control 1 233 107 - -
Transport (roads to recovery) 1 781 1,081 - -
Transport 1 - 68 8,442 3,330
Other specific grants 1 67 43 25 -
Previously contributions:
Drainage 2 - — 4 _
Kerb and gutter 2 - - 40 33
Natural disaster funding contributions 2 4141 - 155 -
Recreation and culture 2 - - 357 114
Transport for NSW contributions (regional roads,
block grant) 2 1,079 1,073 - -
Other contributions 2 293 117 - 412
Economic development and tourism 2 - 1 - -
Environmental projects 2 26 59 - -
Risk management 2 130 237 - -
Total special purpose grants and
non-developer contributions — cash 7,268 4,900 13,376 14,448
Non-cash contributions
Dedications — subdivisions (other than by 7.4
and s7.11 — EP&A Act, s64 of the LGA) 2 - - 8,790 5,804
Total other contributions — non-cash - - 8,790 5,804
Total special purpose grants and
non-developer contributions (tied) 7,268 4,900 22,166 20,252
Total grants and non-developer
contributions 13,959 11,785 22,166 20,252
Comprising:
— Commonwealth funding 8,659 7,985 4,643 119
continued on next page ... Page 19
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B2-4 Grants and contributions (continued)

Operating Operating Capital Capital
$ "000 Timing 2021 2020 2021 2020
— State funding 5,270 3,741 8,333 13,770
— Other funding 30 59 9,190 6,363

13,959 11,785 22,166 20,252
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B2-4 Grants and contributions (continued)

Developer contributions

Operating Operating Capital Capital
$'000 Notes Timing 2021 2020 2021 2020
Developer contributions: G5
(s7.4 & s7.11 - EP&A Act, s64 of the
LGA):
Cash contributions
S 7.11 — contributions towards
amenities/services 2 318 294 7,452 1,456
S 7.12 —fixed development consent
levies 2 - - 374 129
Repealed Funds 2 - - - 2,481
Haulage 2 755 758 - -
Total developer contributions — cash 1,073 1,052 7,826 4,066
Total developer contributions 1,073 1,052 7,826 4,066
Total contributions 1,073 1,052 7,826 4,066
Total grants and contributions 15,032 12,837 29,992 24,318
Timing of revenue recognition for grants and
contributions
Grants and contributions recognised
over time (1) 3,834 1,858 12,821 13,090
Grants and contributions recognised at
a point in time (2) 11,198 10,979 17171 11,228
Total grants and contributions 15,032 12,837 29,992 24,318
continued on next page ... Page 21
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B2-4 Grants and contributions (continued)

Unspent grants and contributions

Certain grants and contributions are obtained by Council on the condition they be spent in a specified manner
or in a future period but which are not yet spent in accordance with those conditions are as follows:

Operating Operating Capital Capital
$'000 2021 2020 2021 2020

Unspent grants and contributions
Unspent funds at 1 July 168 47 352 101
Add: capital grants received for the

provision of goods and services in a

future period (2021) 79 168 4,700 352
Less: Funds recognised as revenue in

previous years that have been spent

during the reporting year - - - -
Less: Funds received in prior year but

revenue recognised and funds spent

in current year (168) (47) (352) (101)
Unspent funds at 30 June 79 168 4,700 352

Contributions
Unspent funds at 1 July 2,776 2,553 1,754 17,300
Add: contributions recognised as revenue

in the reporting year but not yet spent

in accordance with the conditions 1,074 980 7.825 4,138
Add: contributions received and not

recoghised as revenue in the current

year 20 26 17 102
Add: Interest 1 18 1 121
Less: contributions recognised as revenue

in previous years that have been

spent during the reporting year {628) (801) {1,359) (9,893)
Less: Transfer of repealed funds - - - (10,014)
Unspent contributions at 30 June 3,243 2,776 8,238 1,754

Accounting policy
Grants and contributions - enforceable agreement with sufficiently specific performance obligations

Grant and contribution revenue from an agreement which is enforceable and contains sufficiently specific
performance obligations is recognised as or when control of each performance obligations is transferred.

The performance obligations vary according to the agreement. Payment terms vary depending on the terms of the
grant, cash is received upfront for some grants and on the achievement of certain payment milestones for others.

Performance obligations may be satisfied either at a point in time or over time and this is reflected in the revenue
recognition pattern. Point in time recognition occurs when the beneficiary obtains control of the goods / services at
a single time (e.g. completion of the project when a report / outcome is provided), whereas over time recognition
is where the control of the services is ongoing throughout the project (e.g. provision of community health services
through the year).

Where control is transferred over time, generally the input methods being either costs or time incurred are deemed
to be the most appropriate methods to reflect the transfer of benefit.
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B2-4 Grants and contributions (continued)

Capital grants

Capital grants received by Council under an enforceable contract for the acquisition or construction of infrastructure,
property, plant and equipment to identified specifications which will be under Council's control on completion are
recognised as revenue as and when the obligation to construct or purchase is completed.

For construction projects, this is generally as the construction progresses in accordance with costs incurred since
this is deemed to be the most appropriate measure of the completeness of the construction project.

For acquisitions of assets, the revenue is recognised when the asset is acquired and controlled by the Council.
Developer contributions

Council has obligations to provide facilities from contribution revenues levied on developers under the provisions of
sections 7.4, 7.11 and 7.12 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (EP&A Act).

While Council generally incorporates these amounts as part of a Development Consents Order, such developer
contributions are only recognised as income upon receipt by Council, due to the possibility thatindividual development
consents may not be acted upon by the applicant and, accordingly, would not be payable to Council.

Developer contributions may only be expended for the purposes for which the contributions were required, but Council
may apply contributions according to the priorities established in work schedules for the contribution plan.

Other grants and contributions
Assets, including cash, received from other grants and contributions are recognised at fair value when the asset is
received. Council considers whether there are any related liability or equity items associated with the asset which

are recognised in accordance with the relevant accounting standard.

Once the assets and liabilities have been recognised then income is recognised for any remaining asset value at
the time that the asset is received.
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B2-5 Interest and investment income

$ "000

Interest on financial assets measured at amortised cost

— Overdue rates and annual charges (incl. special purpose rates)
— Cash and investments

— Newcastle airport

Fair value adjustments

— Movements in investments at fair value through profit and loss
Finance income on the net investment in the lease

Total interest and investment income (losses)

Interest and investment income is attributable to:
Unrestricted investments/financial assets:
General Council cash and investments

Restricted investments/funds — external:
Development contributions

— Section 7.11

Total interest and investment income

Accounting policy

2021 2020
100 186
31 659
35 128
596 (89)
1,042 884
1,040 745
2 139

1,042 884

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate at the date that interest is earned.

Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss when the shareholder's right to receive payment is established

unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

B2-6 Other income (*)

$ '000 Notes 2021 2020
Fair value increment on investment properties

Fair value increment on investment properties 889 13
Total fair value increment on investment properties c1-9 889 13
Rental income

Investment properties and PPE

Lease income (excluding variable lease payments not dependent on

an index or rate) 2,978 3,146
Lease income relating to variable lease payments not dependent on

an index or a rate 330 371
Total Investment properties 3,308 3,517
Total rental income c22 3,308 3,517
Net share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the equity

method

Joint ventures - Arrow Collaborative Services - 540
Total net share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the

equity method D2-2 - 540
Total other income * 4,197 4,070

() ltems have been reclassified in accordance with The Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting 2020/21.
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B3  Costs of providing services

B3-1 Employee benefits and on-costs

$ '000 2021 2020
Salaries and wages 37,580 34,858
Salaries and wages — Newcastle airport partnership 3,482 3,655
Travel and other allowances 2,895 3,068
Employee leave entitlements (ELE) 8,250 8,209
Superannuation 4,652 4,443
Workers' compensation insurance 1,570 1,069
Fringe benefit tax (FBT) 18 13
Protective clothing 170 155
Corporate uniform 39 19
Employee medical assessments 10 6
Other 27 29
Total employee costs 58,693 55,524
Less: capitalised costs {7,031) (6,712)
Total employee costs expensed 51,662 49,812

Accounting policy
Employee benefit expenses are recorded when the service has been provided by the employee.

All employees of the Council are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death. Council contributes to various
defined benefit plans and defined contribution plans on behalf of its employees.

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as they become payable. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Council participates in a defined benefit plan under the Local Government Superannuation Scheme, however,
sufficient information to account for the plan as a defined benefit is not available and therefore Council accounts for
its obligations to defined benefit plans on the same basis as its obligations to defined contribution plans, i.e. as an
expense when it becomes payable — refer to Note E3-1 for more information.
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B3-2 Materials and services (*)

$'000 Notes

Raw materials and consumables
— Waste collection (2019 only) and disposal contract
— Other contractor and consultancy costs

Audit Fees F2-1
Previously other expenses (*):
Councillor and Mayoral fees and associated expenses F12

Bank charges

Electricity and heating

Insurance

Street lighting

Telephone and communications

Travel expenses

Training costs (other than salaries and wages)
Other expenses

Memberships

Newcastle airport

Legal expenses:

— Legal expenses

Expenses from short-term leases
Expenses from leases of low value assets
Expenses from Peppercorn leases
Variable lease expense relating to usage
Other

Total materials and services ~

Accounting policy

2021 2020
7,304 7,071
8,759 8,200

19,340 18,294
192 190
373 307
492 346

1,361 1,434
1,887 1,642
8§92 876
272 255

- 7

3N 528
520 397
167 137
3,897 6,820
460 482
70 57

7 22

1 1
4,074 4,562
162 188
50,601 51,816

Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as the Council receives the goods or services.

) Items have been reclassified in accordance with The Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting 2020/21.
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B3-3 Borrowing costs

$ "000

(i} Interest bearing liability costs
Interest on leases

Interest on overdraft

Interest on loans

Interest — Newcastle Airport

Interest on leases - Newcastle Airport
Total interest bearing liability costs

Less: capitalised costs
Total interest bearing liability costs expensed

(if) Other borrowing costs

Fair value adjustments on recognition of advances and deferred debtors
Interest applicable on interest free (and favourable) lcans to Council
Total other borrowing costs

Total borrowing costs expensed

Accounting policy

2021 2020
135 174
38 4
455 459
223 240
14 -
865 877
(11 ®1)
854 796
- 1
- 1
854 797

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time

that is required tc complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are

expensed as incurred.

Page 27

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

167




MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

ITEM 12 - ATTACHMENT 1 ~ ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020 - 2021

B3-4 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial assets

$ 000 Notes 2021 2020

Depreciation and amortisation

Plant and equipment 1,882 1,939
Office equipment 358 631
Furniture and fittings 27 18
Land improvements (depreciable) 93 80
Infrastructure: c1-8

— Buildings — specialised 4,851 4,085
— Other structures 8§47 505
— Roads 2,838 2,796
— Bridges 53 53
— Footpaths 380 376
— Car parks 141 140
— Stormwater drainage 732 712
— Swimming pools 117 176
— Other open space/recreational assets 1,620 1,382
— Other infrastructure 370 337
Right of use assets c2-1 858 865
Other assets:

— Heritage collections 2 2
— Library books 308 301
— Newcastle airport 2,445 2,168
Intangible assets c1-10 408 507
Total depreciation and amortisation costs 18,331 17,073

Impairment / revaluation decrement
Inventory - Real Estate - -

Total impairment / revaluation decrement costs / (reversals) charged
to Income Statement - -

TOTAL DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT / REVALUATION DECREMENT 18,331 17,073

Accounting policy

Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation are calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Council assets held at fair value that are not held primarily for their ability to generate net cash flow, and that are
deemed to be specialised, are not tested for impairment since these assets are assessed on an annual basis to
ensure that the carrying amount is not materially different from fair value and therefore an impairment loss would
be captured during this assessment.

Intangible assets not yet available for use, are tested annually forimpairment, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.

Other non-financial assets that do not meet the criteria above are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately

identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units).
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B3-4 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses for revalued assets are firstly offset against the amount in the revaluation surplus for the class of
asset, with only the excess to be recognised in the Income Statement.
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B3-5 Other expenses (*)

$'000 Notes

Impairment of receivables
Other
Total impairment of receivables c14

Net share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the equity
method

Joint ventures

Total net share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the
equity method D2-2

Other

Contributions/levies to other levels of government
— NSW rural fire service levy

— Lands department levy (holiday parks)

— Waste levy

Donations, contributions and assistance to other organisations
(Section 356)

Rehabilitation and restoration expenses
Total other

Total other expenses *

Accounting policy

Other expenses are recorded on an accruals basis when Council has an obligation for the expenses.

Impairment expenses are recognised when identified.

2021 2020
28 332

28 332
109 -
109 -
1,048 801
485 378
3,223 2,377
1,053 877
207 -
6,016 4,433
6,153 4,765

) ltems have been reclassified in accordance with The Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting 2020/21.
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B4 Gains or losses

B4-1 Gain or loss from the disposal, replacement and de-recognition of assets

$ 000 Notes

Buildings & Property (excl. investment property) c1-8
Proceeds from disposal — property

Less: carrying amount of property assets sold/written off

Gain {or loss) on disposal

Gain (or loss) on disposal of plant and equipment c1-8
Proceeds from disposal — plant and equipment

Less: carrying amount of plant and equipment assets sold/written off

Gain {or loss) on disposal

Newcastle airport partnership c1-8
Less: carrying amount of infrastructure assets sold/written off
Gain {or loss) on disposal

Gain (or loss) on disposal of real estate assets held for c1-5
sale

Proceeds from disposal — real estate assets

Less: carrying amount of real estate assets sold/written off

Gain {or loss) on disposal

Gain (or loss) on disposal of investments 12
Proceeds from disposal/redemptions/maturities — investments

Less: carrying amount of investments sold/redeemed/matured

Gain {or loss) on disposal

Net gain (or loss) on disposal of assets

Accounting policy

2021 2020

- 1,990
(1,762) (4,006)
(1,762) (2,016)
273 105
(246) (205)
27 (100)

{12) (32)
(12) (32)
6,499 -
(2,403) (422)
4,096 (422)
15,500 35,084
{15,500) (35,084)
2,349 (2,570)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. The gain or loss
on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to the buyer and the asset is

de-recognised.
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B5  Performance against budget

B5-1 Material budget variations

Council’'s original budget was adopted by the Council on dd/MM/yyyy and is not required to be audited. The original
projections on which the budget was based have been affected by a number of factors. These include state and
federal government decisions, including new grant programs, changing economic activity, environmental factors,
and by decisions made by Council.

While these General Purpose Financial Statements include the original budget adopted by Council, the Act requires
Council to review its financial budget on a quarterly basis, so it is able to manage the variation between actuals and
budget that invariably occur during the year.

Material variations of more than 10% between original budget and actual results or where the variance is
considered material by nature are explained below.

Variation Key: F = Favourable budget variation, U = Unfavourable budget variation.

2021 2021 2021
$ 000 Budget Actual -------- Variance --------
REVENUES
Rates and annual charges 63,648 63,396 {252) 0%
User charges and fees 46,024 39,886 (6,138) (13)%

The userfees & charges related to the Newcastle Airport Parthership were impacted due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Other revenues 3,572 4,516 944 26% F

Other income has exceeded the original budget due to income received by the Newcastle Airport Partnership

Operating grants and contributions 12,408 15,032 2,624 21% F

During the financial year Council was successful in obtaining operating grants and contributions for various projects
from Federal & State bodies that had not been orginally budgeted.

Capital grants and contributions 9,523 29,992 20,469 215% F

During the financial year Council was successful in obtaining a number of capital grants and contributions for various
infrastructure projects from Federal & State bodies that had not been orginally budgeted.

Interest and investment revenue 1,213 1,042 {171) (14)% U

Interest income is less than the orginal budget to inflationary effects of COVID-19 which affected the Newcastle
Airport Partnerships cash reserves.

Net gains from disposal of assets 8,272 2,349 (5,923) (72)% U

The sale of commercially developed land was delayed and has now occurred in the 2022 financial year.

Other income 4,160 4,197 37 1% F
EXPENSES

Employee benefits and on-costs 52,267 51,662 605 1% F
Materials and services 55,158 50,601 4,557 8% F
Borrowing costs 893 854 39 4% F
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B5-1 Material budget variations (continued)

2021 2021 2021
$'000 Budget Actual =mmmee= VATIANCE =mmnmeme
Deprecu_-:tlon,_amortlsatlon and impairment 17,082 18,331 (1,239) % U
of non-financial assets
Other expenses 4,203 6,153 (1,950) (46)% U

Other expenses is above budget due increased levies from the EPA for domestic waste disposal, emgergency
services levy and tip remediation costs.

Net losses from disposal of assets - - - < F

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Cash flows from operating activities 26,397 41,428 15,031 57% F

During the financial year Council was sucessful in obtaining a number of capital and operating grants for various
projects that were not originally budgted for.

Cash flows from investing activities (10,329) (35,329) (25,000) 242% U

As a result of sucessful grant applications, Council increased ithe size of its capital works program.

Cash flows from financing activities {4,359) {1,082) 3,277 (78)% F

During the year the Newcastle Airport Partnership obtained loan proceeds which were not originally budgted for.
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C Financial position
C1  Assets we manage

C1-1 Cash and cash equivalents

$ '000 2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand and at bank 10,526 16,024
Cash-equivalent assets

— Deposits at call 3,500 -
— Managed funds 7,516 501
Total cash and cash equivalents 21,542 16,525

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents per Statement of Financial Position 21,542 16,525
Balance as per the Statement of Cash Flows 21,542 16,525

Accounting policy

For Statement of Cash Flow presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents include: cash on hand; deposits held
at call with financial institutions; other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value; and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the Statement
of Financial Position.

C1-2 Financial investments

2021 2021 2020 2020
$'000 Current Non-current Current  Non-current
Financial assets at fair value through the profit and loss
Managed funds 8,992 - 3,910 -
Total 8,992 - 3,910 -
Financial assets at amortised cost
Long term deposits 27,153 1,102 19,003 3,939
Total 27,153 1,102 19,003 3,939
Total financial investments 36,145 1,102 22,913 3,939
Total cash assets, cash equivalents and
investments 57,687 1,102 39,438 3,939

Accounting policy

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Council becomes party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for instruments
measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred).

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.
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C1-2 Financial investments (continued)

Classification
On initial recognition, Council classifies its financial assets into the following categories — those measured at:
« amortised cost
« fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
« fair value through other comprehensive income — equity instrument (FVOCI-equity)
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition.
Amortised cost
Assets measured at amortised cost are financial assets where:
« the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows, and
« the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Council's financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables,term deposits and cash
and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method
less provision for impairment.

Interest income, impairment and gains or loss on de-recognition are recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income — equity instruments

Council has a number of strategic investments in entities over which they do not have significant influence nor
control. Council has made an irrevocable election to classify these equity investments as fair value through other
comprehensive income as they are not held for trading purposes.

These investments are carried at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income
(financial asset reserve). On disposal any balance in the financial asset reserve is transferred to accumulated surplus
and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Other net gains and losses excluding dividends are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income Statement.

Financial assets through profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income
as described above are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Net gains or losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Council's financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss comprise investments in FRNs and NCDs in
the Statement of Financial Position.
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C1-3 Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments

2021 2021 2020 2020
$'000 Current Non-current Current  Non-current
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 57,687 1,102 39,438 3,939
$'000 2021 2020
Details of restrictions
External restrictions — included in liabilities
Specific purpose unexpended grants — general fund 4,779 520
Deposits, retentions and bonds 1,034 1,232
External restrictions — included in liabilities 5,813 1,752

External restrictions — other

External restrictions included in cash, cash equivalents and investments
above comprise:

Developer contributions — general 11,481 4,530
Domestic waste management 2,930 4,561
Crown reserve 2,891 1,430
External restrictions — other 17,302 10,521
Total external restrictions 23,115 12,273

Internal restrictions
Council has internally restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments as

follows:

Asset rehabilition 1,352 -
Commercial properties 4,989 -
Election reserve 400 -
Federal assistance grant in advance 3,459 3,542
Fleet 2,410 -
Newcastle airport partnership 10,542 11,874
Other waste services reserve 183 -
Parking meters 178 -
Section 355C committees 626 674
IT Reserve 380 -
Unexpended loan funds 5,000 5,000
Repealed funds 5,581 10,014
Transport and Environment Reserve 46 —
Administration building reserve 502 -
Ward funds 26 -
Total internal restrictions 35,674 31,104
Total restrictions 58,789 43,377

Internal restrictions over cash, cash equivalents and investments are those assets restricted only by a
resolution of the elected Council.
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2021 2021 2020 2020
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Purpose
Rates and annual charges 3,413 - 2,922 —
Interest and extra charges 202 - 229 -
User charges and fees 739 - 1,060 -
Miscellanecus debtors 328 - 797 -
Contributions to works 143 - 26 -
Accrued revenues
— Interest on investments 192 - 183 -
— Other income accruals 1,515 - 1,284 -
Government grants and subsidies 169 - 12 -
Net GST receivable 558 - 361 -
Newcastle airport partnership 2,549 - 1,902 -
Other debtors - 160 - 172
Total 9,808 160 8,776 172
Less: provision of impairment
User charges and fees (135) - {79) -
Newcastle airport partnership - - (291) -
Total provision for impairment —
receivables {135) - (370) -
Total net receivables 9,673 160 8,406 172
Externally restricted receivables
Domestic waste management 815 - 705 —
Crown reserve - - 153 -
Total external restrictions 815 - 858 -
Internally restricted receivables
Community Loans 200 - 200 -
Newcastle Airport Partnership 2,549 - 1,902 -
Commercial properties 616 - 31 -
Administration building reserve - - 734 -
Sustainable energy and water reserve 171 - 148 -
Other waste services reserve 239 - 451 -
Asset Rehabilitation - - 409 -
Drainage reserve 196 - 38 -
Election reserve 200 - 400 -
Fleet - - 1,315 -
Parking meters - - 590 -
IT 305 - 176 -
Ward funds - - 39 -
Internally restricted receivables 4,478 - 6,433 _
Unrestricted receivables 4,382 160 1,115 172
Total net receivables 9,673 160 8,406 172
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C1-4 Receivables (continued)

$ 000 2021 2020
Movement in provision for impairment of receivables

Balance at the beginning of the year 370 5
+ new provisions recognised during the year 137 371
— amounts already provided for and written off this year {(71) (5)
— amounts written off but not provided for (2) 3
— amounts provided for but recovered during the year {291) -
— previous impairment losses reversed (8) “4)
Balance at the end of the year 135 370

Accounting policy

Receivables are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting
date which are classified as non-current assets.

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. Receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days.

Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.
Impairment
Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, and
when estimating ECL, the Council considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on
Council's historical experience and informed credit assessment, and including forward-looking information.

Council uses the simplified approach for trade receivables where the expected lifetime credit losses are recoghised
on day 1.

When considering the ECL for rates debtors, Council takes into account that unpaid rates represent a charge against
the rateable property that will be recovered when the property is next sold. For non-rates debtors, Council uses the
presumption that an asset which is more than 30 days past due has seen a significant increase in credit risk.

The Council uses the presentation that a financial asset is in default when:
« the other party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Council in full, without recourse by the Council to
actions such as realising security (if any is held) or
« the financial assets (for non-rates debtors) are more than 90 days past due.

Credit losses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in
accordance with the contract, and the cash flows expected to be received. This is applied using a probability weighted
approach. On initial recognition of the asset, an estimate of the expected credit losses for the next 12 months is
recognised. Where the asset has experienced significant increase in credit risk then the lifetime losses are estimated
and recognised.

Council uses the simplified approach for trade receivables where the expected lifetime credit losses are recognised
on day 1. There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the current
reporting period.

The Council writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the receivables are deemed uncollectable, whichever occurs first.
None of the receivables that have been written off are subject to enforcement activity.

Where the Council renegotiates the terms of receivables due from certain customers, the new expected cash flows

are discounted at the original effective interest rate and any resulting difference to the carrying value is recognised
in profit or loss.

continued on next page ... Page 38

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

178




MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

ITEM 12 - ATTACHMENT 1 ~ ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020 - 2021

C1-4 Receivables (continued)

Rates and annual charges outstanding are secured against the property.
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C1-5 Inventories

2021 2021 2020 2020
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
At cost
Real estate 977 10,605 4,992 9,820
Stores and materials - - 157 -
Total inventories at cost 977 10,605 5,149 9,820
Total inventories 977 10,605 5,149 9,820

2021 2021 2020 2020
$ '000 Current  Non-current Current Non-current
Real estate development
Residential 752 2,324 - 3,027
Industrial/commercial 225 8,281 4,992 6,793
Total real estate held for resale 977 10,605 4,992 9,820

Accounting policy
Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of purchased
inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Land held for resale

Land held for resale is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is assigned by specific identification
and includes the cost of acquisition, and development and borrowing costs during development. When development
is completed, borrowing costs and other holding charges are expensed as incurred.

Borrowing costs included in the cost of land held for resale are those costs that would have been avoided if the

expenditure on the acquisition and development of the land had not been made. Borrowing costs incurred while
active development is interrupted for extended periods are recognised as expenses.

C1-6 Contract assets and Contract cost assets

$ '000 2021 2020
Contract assets 577 -
Total contract assets and contract cost assets 577 _

Contract assets

2021 2021 2020 2020
$ 000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Work relating to infrastructure grants 577 - - -
Total contract assets 577 — — —
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C1-6 Contract assets and Contract cost assets (continued)

Accounting policy

Contract assets
Contract assets represent Councils right to payment in exchange for goods or services the Council has transferred
to a customer when that right is conditional on something other than the passage of time.

Contract assets arise when the amounts billed to customers are based on the achievement of various milestones
established in the contract and therefore the amounts recognised as revenue in a given period do not necessarily
coincide with the amounts billed to or certified by the customer. Once an invoice or payment claim is raised or the
relevant milestone is reached, Council recognises a receivable.

Impairment of contract assets is assessed using the simplified expected credit loss model where lifetime credit losses
are recognised on initial recognition.

Contract cost asset — costs to fulfil a contract
Where costs are incurred to fulfil a contract and these costs are outside the scope of another accounting standard,
they are capitalised as contract cost assets if the following criteria are met:

—the costs relate directly to a contract

— the costs generate or enhance resources of Council that will be used to satisfy performance obligations in the
future and

— the costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised costs are recognised in the Income statement on a systematic basis consistent with the timing of
revenue recognition.

Refer to B3-4 for the accounting policy for impairment of contract cost assets.

C1-7 Non-current assets classified as held for sale

2021 2021 2020 2020
$ 000 current Non-current Current Non-current
Non-current assets held for sale
Land 42 - - -
Total non-current assets classified as
held for sale 42 — — —

2 Coachwood Drive, Medowie, valued at its carrying amount of $42,000, has been transferred from operational land
to non-current assets held for sale in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards.

It is fully expected that the sale of 2 Coachwood Drive, Medowie will be completed within 12 months of 30 June 2021.

Accounting policy

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continued use and are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while they
are classified as held for sale.
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EB:S:%%T:g:tEd At 1July 2020 Asset movements during the reporting period At 30 June 2021
Tirs Revaluation
Accumulated from/(to) Tfrs increments/ Accumulated
depreciation Net Carrying ‘held for from{{to) (decrement) Gross  depreciation Net

Gross camying and camying Additions Additions value of Depreciation sale’ investment to equity camying and carrying
$ '000 amount impairment amount renewals ' new assets i T category properties (ARR} amount impaiment amount
Capital work in progress 20,993 (91} 20,902 844 6,003 (229) - {13,136) - - - 14,456 (72) 14,384
Plant and equipment 25,406 (15,089} 10,317 77 340 {246) (1,882) 842 - - - 27,113 (17,665) 9,448
Office equipment 3,301 (2,205) 1,086 13 184 - (359) - - - - 3,498 {2,564) 934
Furniture and fittings 1,418 {1,108} 311 237 57 - (27) - - - - 1,712 (1,135) 577
Land:
— Operational land 39,704 {573} 39,131 30 972 - - (113) (42) (1,490) - 39,061 (573) 38,488
- Community land 42,885 - 42,885 - 40 - - 113 - - 4,316 47,353 - 47,353
- Crown land 29,223 - 29,223 - - - - - - - - 29,223 - 29,223
— Land under roads (post 1/7/08) 1,985 - 1,985 - 286 — — — — — _ 2,271 _ 2,271
- Newcastle airport 10,126 - 10,126 - - - - - - - - 10,126 - 10,126
Land improvements — depreciable 9,384 {2,398} 6,986 11 - - (93) 844 - - - 10,302 (2,554) 7,748
Infrastructure:
— Buildings — specialised 194,077 {91,466} 102,611 1,408 254 - (4,851) 5,325 - {1,245) 148 194,920 {91,270) 103,650
— Other structures 10,423 {4,776} 5,647 61 775 - (847) 2,693 - - - 13,888 (5,559) 8,329
— Roads 417,927 (52,765} 365,162 7,557 4,124 (1,532) (2,838) 3,148 - - - 429,541 (53,918) 375,623
— Bridges 14,941 (2,024} 12,917 119 - - (53) - - - - 15,081 (2,078) 12,983
- Footpaths 67,815 (10,709} 57,108 2,177 1,178 - (380) 213 - - - 71,383 (11,089) 60,294
- Car parks 15,603 2,171} 13,432 1,473 - - (141) - - - - 17,076 (2,312) 14,764
— Stormwater drainage 235,581 {26,902} 208,679 1,544 2,961 - (732) 378 - - - 240,464 (27,634) 212,830
— Swimming pools 7,794 {4,690} 3,104 a5 - - (117) (792) - - 1,500 4,882 (1,152) 3,730
— Other open space 33,853 (12,349} 21,504 1,380 - - {1,620) 535 - - - 35,785 (13,986) 21,799
— Ofther infrastructure 11,428 {4,052} 7,376 515 22 - (370) (50) - - 4,854 19,547 {7,200) 12,347
Other assets:
— Heritage collections 237 (77) 160 - - - (2) - - - - 237 (79) 158
— Library books 5,705 (3,671} 2,034 - 246 - (308) - - - - 5,950 (3,979) 1,971
— Newcastle airport 58,227 (19,323} 38,904 - 5,762 {12) (2,445) - - - - 63,895 (21,686) 42,209
Total infrastructure, property,
plant and equipment 1,258,037 (256,439} 1,001,598 17,481 23,204 (2,019) (17,085) - (42) (2,735) 10,818 1,297,744 (266,505) 1,031,239
(1) Renewals are defined as the replacement of existing assets (as opposed to the acquisition of new assets).
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C1-8 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

E:S:gg%::g:ted At 1 July 2019 Asset movements during the reporting period At 30 June 2020
Revaluation
Accumulated Net increments / Accumuleted Net

Gross carmying depreciation carying Additions Addiions new  Carrying value Depreciation (decrements) (o Gross carmying depreciation carrying
$ '000 amount and impairment amount renewals ' assets of disposals expense Transfers equity (ARR) amount and impairment amount
Capital work in progress 9,311 {91) 9,220 5,333 7,480 {115} - {1,015} - 20,993 {91) 20,902
Plant and equipment 25,300 (13,788) 11,512 939 10 (208} {1,939) - - 25,406 (15,089} 10,317
Office equipment 3,051 (1,580} 1,471 257 - - {831) - - 3,301 (2,205) 1,096
Furniture and fittings 1,300 (1,089) 211 118 - - {18) - - 1,418 (1,108} 3
Land:
- Operational land 39,506 {573) 38,932 61 228 (980} - 890 - 39,704 {573) 39,131
— Community land 42,518 - 42,518 - 368 - - - - 42,885 - 42,885
— Crown land 29,223 - 29,223 - - - - - - 28,223 - 29,223
— Land under roads (post
1/7/08) 1,985 - 1,985 - - - - - - 1,985 - 1,985
Land improvements —
depreciable 9,187 (2,412) 6,775 302 - {11} {80) - - 9,384 (2,398) 6,986
- Newcastle airport - - - - 10,126 - - - - 10,126 - 10,126
Infrastructure:
— Buildings — specialised 183,879 (88,879) 95,000 6,593 4,756 {304} {4,085) 649 - 194,077 (91,466} 102,611
- Other structures 9,700 (4,321} 5,379 642 116 27} {505) 41 - 10,423 (4,776} 5,647
- Roads 443,749 (53,919} 389,830 5,203 3,753 (2,413} {2,796) 57 (28,472) 417,927 (52,765} 385,162
— Bridges 11,257 {333) 10,924 20 - - {53) - 2,026 14,941 (2,024} 12,917
— Footpaths 63,126 (8,435) 54,691 - 1,596 - {376) - 1,196 67,815 (10,709} 57,106
— Stormwater drainage 202,514 (6,435) 196,078 1,440 1,425 {25} {(712) 189 10,284 235,581 (26,902) 208,679
— Swimming pools 7,584 (4,513} 3,071 209 - - {176) - - 7,794 (4,690} 3,104
— Other open space 32,237 (10,957} 21,280 1,547 25 - {1,382} 34 - 33,853 (12,349) 21,504
— Other infrastructure 10,817 (3,715) 7,102 559 52 - {337) - - 11,428 (4,052) 7,376
— Car parks 11,610 (8,804) 2,806 408 - (105} {140} - 10,463 15,603 (2,171} 13,432
Other assets:
— Heritage collections 237 (79) 162 - - - 2) - - 237 " 160
- Library books 5,455 (3,370} 2,085 250 - - {301} - - 5,705 (3,671} 2,024
- Newcastle airport 48,806 (18,091} 30,715 5,771 2,822 (32} (2,168) 1,795 - 58,227 (19,323) 38,904
Total infrastructure,
property, plant and
equipment 1,192,351 (231,380) 960,971 29,652 32,757 (4,220} (15,701) 2,640 (4,503} 1,258,037 (256,439) 1,001,588
(1) Renewals are defined as the replacement of existing assets (as opposed to the acquisition of new assets).
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C1-8 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Accounting policy
Initial recegnition of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPPE})

IPPE is measured initially at cost. Cost includes the fair value of the consideration given to acquire the asset (net of
discounts and rebates) and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended
use (inclusive of import duties and taxes.

When infrastructure, property, plant and equipment is acquired by Council at significantly below fair value, the assets
are initially recognised at their fair value at acquisition date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to Council and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Income Statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Useful lives of IPPE

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Plant and equipment Years Other equipment Years

Office equipment 51010 Playground equipment 20

Office furniture 10to 20 Benches, seats etc. 25

Computer equipment 4

Vehicles 5to 8 Buildings

Heavy plant/road making equipment 5to8 Buildings 151065

Other plant and equipment 510 15

Transportation assets Stormwater assets

Sealed roads Drains 80 to 100
- Base 50 Culverts 50 to 80
- Seal 1510 25 Flood control structures 80 to 100
- Sub-base 100

Unsealed roads 100 Other infrastructure assets

Bridge concrete 100 Bulk earthworks 20

Bridge other 6010 100 Swimming pools 50

Kerb, gutter and footpaths 80 Other open space/recreational assets 20

Other infrastructure 20

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.
Revaluation model

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment are held at fair value. Comprehensive valuations are performed at least
every five years, however the carrying amount of assets is assessed by Council at each reporting date to confirm
that it is not materially different from current fair value.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation are credited to the IPPE revaluation reserve. To the extent
that the increase reverses a decrease previously recognising profit or loss relating to that asset class, the increase
is first recognised as profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of assets in the same class are first
charged against IPPE revaluation reserve to the extent of the remaining reserve attributable to the class; all other
decreases are charged to the Income Statement.

Land under roads

Land under roads is land under roadways and road reserves including land under footpaths, nature strips and median
strips.
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C1-8 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Council has elected not to recognise land under roads acquired before 1 July 2008 in accordance with AASB 1051
Land Under Roads.

Land under roads acquired after 1 July 2008 is recognised in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant and
Equipment.

Crown reserves
Crown reserves under Council's care and control are recognised as assets of the Council. While ownership of the
reserves remains with the Crown, Council retains operational control of the reserves and is responsible for their

maintenance and use in accordance with the specific purposes to which the reserves are dedicated.

Where the Crown reserves are under a lease arrangement they are accounted for under AASB 16 Leases, refer
to Note C2-1.

Improvements on Crown reserves are also recorded as assets, while maintenance costs incurred by Council and
revenues relating to the reserves are recognised within Council’s Income Statement.

Rural Fire Service assets
Under Section 119 of the Rural Fire Services Act 1997 (NSW), “all firefighting equipment purchased or constructed
wholly or from money to the credit of the Fund is to be vested in the council of the area for or on behalf of which the

firefighting equipment has been purchased or constructed”.

These Rural Fire Service assets are recognised as assets of the Council in these financial statements.
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C1-9 Investment properties
$'000

Owned investment property
Investment property on hand at fair value
Total owned investment property

Owned investment property

At fair value

Opening balance at 1 July

Capitalised subsequent expenditure

Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments
Transfers from/(to) inventories (Note C1-5)
Transfers from/(to) owner occupied (Note C1-8)
Closing balance at 30 June

Accounting policy

2021 2020
42295 37,575
42,295 37,575
37,575 35,550

88 2,012

889 13

1,008 -
2,735 -
42295 37,575

Investment property, principally comprising freehold office buildings, is held for long-term rental yields and is not
occupied by the Council. Changes in fair values are recorded in the Income Statement as part of other income.
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C1-10 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are as follows:

$'000 2021 2020
Intangibles

Opening values at 1 July

Gross book value 8,876 8,690
Accumulated amortisation (3,041) (2,541)
Net book value — opening balance 5,835 6,149
Movements for the year

Purchases 138 218
Amortisation charges {408) (507)
Disposals - (25)
Revaluation 311 -

Closing values at 30 June

Gross book value 9,325 8,876
Accumulated amortisation (3,449) (3,041)
Total Intangibles— net book value 5,876 5,835

Accounting policy

IT development and software

Software development costs include only those costs directly attributable to the development phase (including
external direct costs of materials and services, direct payroll, and payroll-related costs of employees’ time spent
on the project) and are only recognised following completion of technical feasibility, and where the Council has
an intention and ability to use the asset. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over pericds
generally ranging from three to five years.

Right to Operate
Fit out costs incurred for the international processing area within the terminal required by the Department of Home

Affairs for border security activities required for international flights represents NAP's contractual / legal right to
operate international airport services, and is recognised at cost as an intangible asset.
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C1-11 Other

Other assets

2021 2021 2020 2020
$ '000 Current  Non-current Current Non-current
Prepayments 860 - 826 -
Prepayments - Newcastle airport partnership 191 29 120 37
Total other assets 1,051 29 946 37
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C1-11 Other (continued)

Current other assets not anticipated to be settled within the next 12 months

The following inventories and other assets, even though classified as current are not expected to be recovered
in the next 12 months;

2021 2021 2020 2020
$ '000 Current  Non-current Current Non-current
Total externally restricted assets - - - -
Total internally restricted assets - - - -
Total unrestricted assets 1,051 29 946 37
Total other assets 1,051 29 946 37
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C2 Leasing activities

C2-1 Council as a lessee

Council has leases over a range of assets including land, vehicles, carparks and IT equipment. Information relating
to the leases in place and associated balances and transactions is provided below.

Terms and conditions of leases:

Plant and equipment

Council leases vehicles and equipment with lease terms varying from 5 to 10 years and include a renewal option to
allow Council to renew for another year at their discretion. The lease contains an annual pricing mechanism bhased
on either fixed increases or CPl movements at each anniversary of the lease inception.

Office and IT equipment

Leases for office and IT equipment are generally for low value assets, except for significant items such as
photocopiers. The leases are for between 2 and 3 years with a renewal option of another 3 years, the payments are
fixed, however some of the leases include variable payments based on usage.

Other assets - Other

Council leases car parks with lease term of 3 years and include an option to allow Council to renew for another two
years at their discretion. The lease contains an annual pricing mechanism based on either fixed increases or CPI
movements at each anniversary of the lease inception.

Land

Council leases land for their holiday park, with a lease term of 40 years and no renewal option. The lease contains
an annual pricing mechanism based on CPl movements at each anniversary of the lease inception.

Newcastle Airport leases land with a lease term of 81 years and includes 3 renewal options to allow the Airport to
renew for another 30 years at their discretion. There are fixed lease payments as well as variable lease payments,
the fixed payments increase by CPI at each anniversary of the lease inception and the variable payment is based
on a percentage of revenue.

Extension options

Council includes options in some of the leases to provide flexibility and certainty to operations and reduce costs of
moving premises; and the extension options are at Council’s discretion.

At commencement date and each subsequent reporting date, Council assesses where it is reasonably certain that
the extension options will be exercised.

(a) Right of use assets

Land -

Plant & Newcastle Office  Other assets - QOperational
$'000 Equipment Airport equipment Other Land Total
2021
Opening balance at 1
July 3,167 338 462 318 455 4,740
Adoption of AASB 16 at
1 July 2019 — first time
lease recognition - - - - - -
Adjustments to
right-of-use assets due
to re-measurement of
lease liability - - - (8) (22) (28)
Depreciation charge (528) {4) {(179) (98) (49) (858)
Balance at 30 June 2,639 334 282 215 384 3,854
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C2-1 Council as a lessee (continued)

Land -
Plant & Newcastle Office  Other assets - Operational
$'000 Equipment Airport equipment Other Land Total

2020

Adoption of AASB 16 at 1

July 2019 — first time

lease recognition 3,696 342 641 418 509 5,606
Adjustments to

right-of-use assets due to

re-measurement of lease

liability — - — - — _
Depreciation charge (529) (4) {179) {100} (53} (865}
Balance at 30 June 3,167 338 462 318 455 4,740

(b) Lease liabilities

2021 2021 2020 2020
$'000 current Nonh-current Current Non-current
Lease liabilities 830 2,872 794 3,728
Lease liabilities - Newcastle Airport 1 337 - 341
Total lease liabilities 831 3,209 794 4,069

(c) (i) The maturity analysis

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows and therefore the
amounts will not be the same as the recognised lease liability in the statement of Financial Position:

Total per
Statement of
Financial
$ '000 <1 year 1-5Syears > 5 years Total Position
2021
Cash flows 953 2,960 1,287 5,200 4,040
2020
Cash flows 944 3,234 2,008 6,187 4,863
(il) Lease liabilities relating to restricted assets
2021 2021 2020 2020
$'000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Externally restricted assets
Crown reserve 43 362 42 427
Domestic waste reserve 500 2,270 475 2,770
Lease liabilities relating to externally
restricted assets 543 2,632 517 3,197
Total lease liabilities relating to
restricted assets 543 2,632 517 3,197
Total lease liabilities relating to
unrestricted assets 288 577 277 872
Total lease liabilities 831 3,209 794 4,069
continued on next page ... Page 51

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL 191




MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

ITEM 12 - ATTACHMENT 1 ~ ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020 - 2021

C2-1 Council as a lessee (continued)

(d) Income Statement

The amounts recognised in the Income Statement relating to leases where Council is a lessee are shown

below:

$'000 2021 2020

Interest on lease liabilities 149 174

Variable lease payments based on usage not included in the measurement of

lease liabilities 4,074 4,562

Depreciation of right of use assets 858 865

Expenses relating to short-term leases 70 57

Expenses relating to low-value leases 7 22

Expenses relating to peppercorn leases 1 1
5,160 5,682

(e) Statement of Cash Flows

Total cash outflow for leases 5,093 5,558
5,093 5,558

() Leases at significantly below market value — concessionary / peppercorn leases

Council has a lease at significantly below market for land and buildings which is used to provide emergency facilities.

The lease is for 5 years that require payment of $1,000 per year and include a renewal option to allow Council to renew
for up to twice the non-cancellable lease term at their discretion. The lease contains an annual pricing mechanism
based on CPl movements at each anniversary of the lease inception. The use of the right-to-use asset is restricted
by the lessors to specified community services which Council must provide, these services are detailed in the leases.

Council does not believe that the lease in place is material from a statement of financial position or performance
perspective.

Accounting policy

At inception of a contract, Council assesses whether a lease exists — i.e. does the contract convey the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration?

Council has elected not to separate non-lease components from lease components for any class of asset and has
accounted for payments as a single component.

At the lease commencement, Council recognises a right-of-use asset and associated lease liability for the lease
term. The lease term includes extension periods where Council believes it is reasonably certain that the option will
be exercised.

The right-of-use assetis measured using the cost model where cost on initial recognition comprises: the lease liability,
initial direct costs, prepaid lease payments, estimated cost of removal and restoration, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use is depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis and assessed for impairment
in accordance with the impairment of asset accounting policy.

The lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the commencement
of the lease. The discount rate is the rate implicit in the lease, however where this cannot be readily determined then
the Council's incremental borrowing rate for a similar term with similar security is used.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate

method. The lease liability is re-measured when there is a lease modification, or change in estimate of the lease
term or index upon which the lease payments are based (e.g. CPI).
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C2-1 Council as a lessee (continued)

Where the lease liability is re-measured, the right-of-use asset is adjusted to reflect the re-measurement.
Exceptions to lease accounting

Council has applied the exceptions to lease accounting for both short-term leases (i.e. leases with a term of less
than or equal to 12 months) and leases of low-value assets. Council recognises the payments associated with these
leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases at significantly below market value / concessionary leases

Council has elected to measure the right of use asset arising from the concessionary leases at cost which is based
on the associated lease liability at initial recognition.

C2-2 Council as a lessor

Operating leases

Council leases out a number of properties to community groups; these leases have been classified as operating
leases for financial reporting purposes and the assets are included in the Statement of Financial Position as:

—investment property — where the asset is held predominantly for rental or capital growth purposes (refer note C1-9)

— property, plant and equipment — where the rental is incidental, or the asset is held to meet Councils service delivery
ohjective (refer note C1-8).

$ 000 2021 2020

(i) Assets held as investment property
Investment property operating leases relate to the assets held predominately for rental purposes.

The amounts recognised in the Income Statement relating to operating leases where Council is a lessor are
shown below

Lease income (excluding variable lease payments not dependent on an index

or rate) 2,839 3,146
Lease income relating to variable lease payments not dependent on an index

or a rate 330 371
Total income relating to operating leases for investment property assets 3,169 3,517

Operating lease expenses

Direct operating expenses that generated rental income 538 546
Total expenses relating to operating leases 539 546

Repairs and maintenance: investment property

Contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance 31 2
Total repairs and maintenance: investment property 31 2
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C2-2 Council as a lessor (continued)

$ 000 2021 2020

(ii) Assets held as property, plant and equipment

Council provides operating leases on Council buildings for the purpose of

service delivery objectives, the table below relates to operating leases on

assets disclosed in C1-8.

Lease income (excluding variable lease payments not dependent on an index

or rate) 139 91
Total income relating to operating leases for Council assets 139 a1

Amount of IPPE leased out by Council under operating leases

Buildings 6,446 6,602
Furniture and Fittings 53 -
Land - Council Land 1,786 1,786
Open Space Other 187 234
Other Assets - Carparks 184 -
Other Structures 30 30
Total amount of IPPE leased out by Council under operating leases 8,686 8,652

(iii) Maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments to be received
after reporting date for all operating leases:

Maturity analysis of future lease income receivable showing the undiscounted lease
payments to be received after reporting date for operating leases:

<1 year 2,726 2,431
1-2 years 2,413 1,798
2-3 years 1,558 1,797
3—4 years 273 1,265
4-5 years 204 217
> 5 years 635 476
Total undiscounted lease payments to be received 7,810 7,984

Accounting policy

When Council is a lessor, the lease is classified as either an operating or finance lease at inception date, based on
whether substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset have heen transferred to the
lessee. If the risks and rewards have been transferred then the lease is classified as a finance lease, otherwise it
is an operating lease.

When Council has a sub-lease over an asset and is the intermediate lessor then the head lease and sub-lease are
accounted for separately. The classification of the sub-lease is based on the right-of-use asset which arises from the
head lease rather than the useful life of the underlying asset.

If the lease contains lease and non-lease components, the non-lease components are accounted for in accordance
with AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The lease income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term for an operating lease and as finance
income using amortised cost basis for finance leases.

Page 54

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020 - 2021

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

194




MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

ITEM 12 - ATTACHMENT 1 ~ ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020 - 2021

C3 Liabilities of Council
C3-1 Payables

2021 2021 2020 2020
$'000 current Non-current Current Non-current
Payables
Goods and services 9,245 2,922 8,097 3,280
Accrued expenses:

— Other expenditure accruals 3,579 - 3,197 -
Security bonds, deposits and retentions 1,034 - 1,232 -
Unclaimed monies 2 - 12 —
Rates in advance 1,423 - 1,230 -
Other 5 - 120 -
Total payables 15,288 2,922 13,888 3,280
Total payables 15,288 2,922 13,888 3,280

Current payables not anticipated to be settled within the next twelve months

$ '000 2021 2020

The following liabilities, even though classified as current, are not expected to be

settled in the next 12 months.

Payables — security bonds, deposits and retentions 396 396
Total payables and borrowings 396 396

Accounting policy
Council measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently financial liabilities
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The financial liabilities of the Council comprise trade payables, bank and other loans and finance lease liabilities.
Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the council prior to the end of financial
year that are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

C3-2 Contract Liabilities

2021 2021 2020 2020
$'000 Notes Current Non-current Current Non-current

Grants and contributions received in

advance:

Unexpended capital grants {to

construct Council controlled

assets) @) 4,635 - 946 -
Unexpended operating grants

(received prior to performance

obligation being satisfied) (ii) 144 - 671 -
Total grants received in advance 4,779 - 1,617 —

User fees and charges received in

advance:

Fees - holiday park deposits (it} 1,337 - 881 -
Fees - rent {iii} - - 15 -
Fees - Newcastle airport {iii} 223 - - -
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C3-2 Contract Liabilities (continued)

2021 2021 2020 2020
$ ‘000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Total user fees and charges
received in advance 1,560 - 896 -
Total contract liabilities 6,339 - 2,513 —

Notes

(i) Council has received funding to construct assets including transport infrastructure, recreation and cultural facilities
and other infrastructure. The funds received are under an enforceable contract which require Council to construct an
identified asset which will be under Council’s control on completion. The revenue is recognised as Council constructs
the asset and the contract liability reflects the funding received which cannot yet be recognised as revenue. The
revenue is expected to be recognised in the next 12 months.

(i) The contract liability relates to grants, mostly environmental protection and child care that were received
prior to the revenue recognition criteria in AASB 15 being satisfied since the performance obligations are
ongoing.

(iii) Fees paid in advance do not meet the definition of a performance obligation and therefore the funds

received in advance for holiday park fees and Newcastle airport fees are recorded as a contract liability on
receipt and recognised as revenue once the service has been fully delivered.

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period

$ '000 2021 2020

Grants and contributions received in advance:
Capital grants (to construct Council controlled assets) 892 101
Operating grants (received prior to performance obligation being satisfied) 653 47

Total revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability
balance at the beginning of the period 1,545 148

Accounting policy

Contract liabilities are recorded when consideration is received from a customer / fund provider prior to Council
transferring a good or service to the customer, Council presents the funds which exceed revenue recognised as a
contract liability.

Where the amounts billed to customers are based on the achievement of various milestones established in the
contract, the amounts recognised as revenue in a given period do not necessarily coincide with the amounts billed
to or certified by the customer.

When a performance obligation is satisfied by transferring a promised good or service to the customer before the
customer pays consideration or before the paymentis due, Council presents the work in progress as a contract asset,
unless the rights to that amount of consideration are unconditional, in which case Council recognises a receivable.

The contract liabilities have arisen on adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058. Previously income received in advance
was recognised for reciprocal contracts. The increase in a contract liability is primarily due to grants in the scope of
AASB 15 and capital grants received by Council to acquire or construct assets which will be under Council’s control.
Prior to financial year 2020, revenue was recognised on receipt of the funds.

C3-3 Borrowings

2021 2021 2020 2020
$ ‘000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
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C3-3 Borrowings (continued)

2021 2021 2020 2020
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Loans —secured ! 2,966 14,744 3,332 17,665
Loans — Newcastle airport partnership - 14,850 - 11,850
Total borrowings 2,966 29,594 3,332 29,515
() Loans are secured over the general rating income of Council.

Disclosures on liability interest rate risk exposures, fair value disclosures and security can be found in Note E.
(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
2020 Non-cash movements 2021
Acquisition
due to change
Cpening Fairvalue  in accounting Other non-cash Closing
$'000 Balance Cash flows Acquisition changes policy movement balance
Loans - secured 20,997 (3,314) - - - 27 17,710
Lease liability {Note C2-1b) 4,863 (823) - - - - 4,040
Loans — Newcastle airport 11,850 3,000 - - - - 14,850
Total liabilities from financing
activities 37,710 (1,137) - - - 27 36,600
2019 Non-cash movements 2020
Acquisition due
to change in
Opening Fair value accounting  Other non-cash
$ '000 Balance Cash flows Acquisition changes policy movement Closing balance
Loans — secured 13,278 7,704 - 1 - 14 20,997
Lease liability {Note C2-1b) - 4,863 - - - - 4,863
Loans — Newcastle airport 6,250 5,600 - - - - 11,850
Total liabilities from financing
activities 19,528 18,167 - 1 - 14 37,710
{b) Financing arrangements
$ '000 2021 2020
Total facilities
Bank overdraft facilities ! 2,500 2,500
Credit cards/purchase cards 1,000 1,000
Bank loan facilities - Port Stephens Council 7,500 7,500
Bank loan facilities - Newcastle Airport 25,000 25,000
Total financing arrangements 36,000 36,000
Drawn facilities
— Credit cards/purchase cards M4 366
— Bank loan facilities - Newcastle Airport 14,850 11,850
Total drawn financing arrangements 15,264 12,216
Undrawn facilities
— Bank overdraft facilities 2,500 2,500
— Credit cards/purchase cards 586 634
— Bank loan facilities - Port Stephens Council 7,500 7,500
— Bank loan facilities - Newcastle Airport 10,150 13,150
Total undrawn financing arrangements 20,736 23,784
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C3-3 Borrowings (continued)

Additional financing arrangements information

Breaches and defaults
During the current and prior year, there were no defaults or breaches on any of
Councils loans.

During the financial year the Newcastle Airport Partnership amended its facility
agreement with the ANZ Bank as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. The
amendment waived in full any material adverse effects on its financial covenants
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic up to and including 30 June 2021.
Management are currently in negotiations to extend this waiver as a result of the
continued adverse effects of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Security over loans
Loans are secured over the general rating income of Council.

(1} The bank overdraft facility may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank if any events of default specified in the contract
oceur.

Accounting policy

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the Income Statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective-interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the drawdown occurs.
To the extent that there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the Statement of Financial Position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liahilities assumed, is recognised in other income or finance cost.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless Council has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
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C3-4 Employee benefit provisions

2021 2021 2020 2020
$ "000 Current  Non-current Current Non-current
Annual leave 4,349 - 4,447 _
Sick leave 2,677 - 2,962 -
Long service leave 8,592 776 8,393 771
Flexi time / RDC leave 319 - 336 -
Total employee benefit provisions 15,937 776 16,138 771

Employee benefit provisions relating to restricted assets

Total employee benefit provisions relating to
restricted assets - - - -

Total employee benefit provisions relating to
unrestricted assets 15,937 776 16,138 771

Total employee benefit provisions 15,937 776 16,138 771

Current employee benefit provisions not anticipated to be settled within the next twelve months

$ 000 2021 2020

The following provisions, even though classified as current, are not expected to
be settled in the next 12 months.

Provisions — employees benefits 10,545 11,156
10,545 11,156

Description of and movements in provisions

Accounting policy

Employee benefit provisions are presented as current liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position if Council does
not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date, regardless of when
the actual settlement is expected to occur and therefore all annual leave and vested long service leave (or that which
vests within 12 months) is presented as current.

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries (including non-monetary henefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave
expected to be wholly settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service) are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liability for annual leave and accumulating
sick leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. All other short-term employee benefit obligations are
presented as payables.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liability for long-service leave and annual leave that is not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service is recognised in the provision for employee
benefits and measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided
by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to
expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future
payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with
terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

On-costs

The employee benefit provisions include the aggregate on-cost liabilities that will arise when payment of current employee
benefits is made in future periods.
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C3-4 Employee benefit provisions (continued)

These amounts include superannuation, payroll tax and workers compensation expenses which will be payable upon the future
payment of certain leave liabilities which employees are entitled to at the reporting pericd.

C3-5 Provisions

2021 2021 2020 2020
$'000 Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
Other provisions
Other - Commercial concessions
Newcastle airport partnership 331 - 165 -
Sub-total — other provisions 331 - 165 -
Asset remediation/restoration:

Asset remediation/restoration (future

works) - - 263 _
Sub-total — asset

remediation/restoration - - 263 -
Total provisions 331 - 428 -

Description of and movements in provisions

Other provisions

Net
Asset Other carrying
$'000 remediation  Provisions amount
2021
At beginning of year 263 165 428
Additional provisions 207 - 207
Amounts used (payments) (470) - (470)
Total other provisions at end of year - 165 165
2020
At beginning of year 1,355 900 2,255
Additional provisions - 165 165
Amounts used (payments) (1,092 {900} (1,992)
Total other provisions at end of year 263 165 428

Nature and purpose of provisions

Asset remediation

Council has a legal/public obligation to make, restore, rehabilitate and reinstate the council tip.
Legal costs provision

Council has a legal obligation to pay legal costs as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required when legal proceedings are finalised.

Provision for commercial concessions - Newcastle Airport

Newcastle airport has an obligation to pay commercial concessions, mostly rent and fees to its tenants as a result
of Covid-19.
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C3-5 Provisions (continued)

Accounting policy

Provisions are recognised when Council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’'s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as borrowing cost.

Asset remediation - tips and quarries

Close-down and restoration costs include the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure, and the removal of residual
materials and remediation of disturbed areas. Estimated close-down and restoration costs are provided for in the
accounting period when the obligation arising from the related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during the
development or during the operation phase, based on the net present value of estimated future costs. Provisions for
close-down and restoration costs do not include any additional obligations which are expected to arise from future
disturbance. The cost estimates are calculated annually during the life of the operation to reflect known developments,
e.g. updated cost estimates and revisions to the estimated lives of operations, and are subject to formal review at
regular intervals.

The ultimate cost of environmental remediation is uncertain and cost estimates can vary in response to many factors,
including changes to the relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new restoration techniques, or experience at
other locations. The expected timing of expenditure can also change, for example in response to changes in quarry
reserves or production rates. As a result, there could be significant adjustments to the provision for close down and
restoration and environmental clean-up, which would affect future financial results.

Other movements in the provisions for close-down and restoration costs, including those resulting from new
disturbance, updated cost estimates, changes to the estimated lives of operations, and revisions to discount rates,
are capitalised within infrastructure, property, plant and equipment. These costs are then depreciated over the lives
of the assets to which they relate.

Provision for legal costs

Liabilities for legal costs expected to be wholly settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting date are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position if the Council does not have
an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Provision for commercial concessions - Newcastle Airport

Liabilities for commercial concessions, that are a result of Covid-19 are expected to be wholly settled within 12
months after the end of the reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities

are settled.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position if the Council does not have
an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
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C4 Reserves

C4-1 Nature and purpose of reserves

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve

The infrastructure, property, plant and equipment {IPPE) revaluation reserve is used to record increments and
decrements in the revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment.

D Council structure
D1  Results by fund

Council utilises only a general fund for its operations.
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D2 Interests in other entities

D2-1 Subsidiaries

Council has no interest in any controlled entities (subsidiaries).

D2-2 Interests in joint arrangements

Joint arrangements
Arrow Collaborative Services Limited (Hunter Councils)

Council has an interest in Arrow Collaborative Services Limited, along with other Member Councils of Hunter
Councils. The activities of this organisation are not controlled by any one Council.

Arrow Collaborative Services Limited has been established to improve the quality and efficiency of local government
service throughout the Hunter Region. One such service is the establishment and provision of a Record Repository
Centre for the use of the Member Councils and to outsource this service to other organisations.

This Organisation was established in January 2003 as Hunter Councils Limited after receiving Minister's consent,
pursuant to Section 358(1) (a) of the Local Government Act 1993. Arrow Collaborative Services Limited was
previously known as Strategic Services Australia Limited.

Arrow Collaborative Services Limited has the same year end date as Council.

Aggregate information for joint ventures that are not individually material

The Group has interests in a number of joint ventures none of which is considered individually material. The table
below summarises, in aggregate, the financial information of individually immaterial joint ventures.

Council's share

Percentage Owned (%)

Arrow Collaborative Services Limited 11.71%

{a) Summarised financial information for individually immaterial joint ventures

$ '000 2021 2020

Arrow Collaborative Services Limited
Carrying Amount of Investment in joint ventures that are not individually

material 431 540
Council's Share of those joint ventures:

Profit/(loss) from continuing operations {109) 540
Total comprehensive income — individually immaterial joint ventures (109) 540

{b) Unrecognised share of losses

The unrecognised share of losses of joint ventures due to the Council's interest, reduce to zero under the equity
methods are $0 for the reporting period and $0 on a cumulative basis.
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D2-2 Interests in joint arrangements (continued)

{c) Risk associated with the interests in joint ventures

$ 000

Commitments relating to joint ventures held

Contingent liabilities incurred jointly with other investments over joint ventures
held

2021

2020

Each of the partners in Arrow Collaborative Services Limited are jointly and severally liable for the debts of the

organisation.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of joint ventures to transfer funds to the group in the form of cash

dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the council.

(i) Joint operations

{a) Council is involved in the following joint operations {JO’s)

Interest in
ownership
2021 2020

Interest in
voting
2021 2020

. . I . Place of
Name of joint operation  Principal activity business
Newcastle Airport Airport Operation Williamtown

Partnership and

Newcastle Airport Pty Ltd

Greater Newcastle Airport Operation Williamtown
Aerotropolis Partnership

& Greater Newcastle

Aerotropolis Pty Ltd

Council assets employed in the joint operations

50% S0%

50% 50%

50% S50%

50% 50%

$ '000 2021 2020
Council’s share of assets jointly owned with other partners

Current assets 13,282 13,606
Current liabilities (4,227) (5,158)
Non current assets 54,300 51,083
Non-current liabilities {18,139) (15,515)
Total net assets employed — Council and jointly owned 45,216 44,016
Share of joint operations expenditure commitments

Capital commitments

Payable not later than 1 year 901 11,034
Total capital commitments 901 11,034
Contingent liabilities of joint operations

Share of contingent liabilities incurred jointly with other participants 100 100
Share of contingent liabilities for which Council is severally liable 100 100
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D2-2 Interests in joint arrangements (continued)

Accounting policy for joint arrangements:

AASB 11 Joint Arrangements defines a joint arrangement as an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control and classifies these arrangements as either joint ventures or joint operations.

The council has determined that it has joint operations and joint ventures.

Joint ventures:

Joint ventures are those joint arrangements, which provide Council with rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in accordance with AASB 128 Associates and
Joint Ventures. Under this method, the investment is initially recognised as cost and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the Council's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the investee

after the date of acquisition.

If the Council's share of losses of a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture, the Council
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.

Council's share in the joint ventures gains or losses arising from transactions between itself and its joint venture
are eliminated.

Adjustments are made to the joint ventures accounting policies where they are different from those of Council for
the purpose of the consolidated financial statements.
Joint operations:

In relation to its joint operations, where the Council has the rights to the individual assets and obligations arising from
the arrangement, the Council has recognised:

« its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly

« its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly

« its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation
« its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

These figures are incorporated into the relevant line item in the primary statements.

D3  Discontinued operations
D3-1 Discontinued operations

Council did not have any discontinued operations during the year ended 30 June 2021.
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E Risks and accounting uncertainties

E1-1 Risks relating to financial instruments held

Council's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of Council.

Council's objective is to maximise its return on cash and investments while maintaining an adequate level of liquidity
and preserving capital. The finance team manage the cash and investments portfolio with the assistance of
independent advisers. Council has an investment policy which complies with s 625 of the Act and the Ministerial
Investment Order. The policy is regularly reviewed by Council and a monthly investment report is provided to Council
setting out the make-up and performance of the portfolio as required by local government regulations.

Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to foreign
currency risk.

Financial risk management is carried out by the finance team under policies approved by the Councillors.
The fair value of Receivables, loans, investments and financial liabilities approximates the carrying amount.

The risks associated with the financial instruments held are:

« interest rate risk — the risk that movements in interest rates could affect returns

« liquidity risk — the risk that Council will not be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due

« credit risk — the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument resulting
in a financial loss to Council.

Council manages these risks by diversifying its portfolio and only purchasing investments with high credit ratings or

capital guarantees. Council also seeks advice from its independent advisers before placing any cash and
investments.

(a) Market risk — interest rate and price risk

$ '000 2021 2020

The impact on the result for the year of a reasonably possible movement in interest
rates is shown below. The reasonably possible movements were determined based
on historical movements and economic conditions in place at the reporting date.

It is assumed that the change in interest rates would have been constant throughout
the reporting period.
Impact of a 1% movement in interest rates

— Equity / Income Statement 229 363
Impact of a 10% movement in price of investments
— Equity / Income Statement 391 —

(b) Credit risk

Council's major receivables comprise (i) rates and annual charges and (i) user charges and fees.

Council manages the credit risk associated with these receivables by monitoring outstanding debt and employing
stringent debt recovery procedures. Council also encourages ratepayers to pay their rates by the due date through

incentives.

The credit risk for liquid funds and other short-term financial assets is considered negligible, since the counterparties
are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual customers, specific
industry sectors and/or regions.

The level of outstanding receivables is reported to the financial services section manager on a monthly basis and
monitoring of acceptable collection performance is carried out.
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E1-1 Risks relating to financial instruments held (continued)

Council makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as required and carries out credit checks on most non-
rate debtors.

There are no material receivables that have been subjected to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.

Credit risk profile

Receivables — rates and annual charges

Creditrisk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council to secure a charge over the land relating

to the debts — that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. Council is also able to charge interest on overdue
rates and annual charges at higher than market rates which further encourages the payment of debt.

Not yet <1 year 1-2years 2 - 5 years > 5 years
$'000 overdue overdue overdue overdue overdue Total
2021
Gross carrying amount - 2,724 268 259 162 3,413
2020
Gross carrying amount - 2,279 272 237 134 2,922

Receivables - non-rates and annual charges and contract assets

Council applies the simplified approach for non-rates and annual charges debtors and contract assets to provide for
expected credit losses, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision at inception. To measure the
expected credit losses, non-rates and annual charges debtors and contract assets have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The loss allowance provision is determined as follows. The expected credit losses incorporate forward-looking

information.
Not yet 0 - 30 days 31 - 60 days 61 - 90 days > 91 days

$'000 overdue overdue overdue overdue overdue Total
2021

Gross carrying amount 3171 1,242 1,103 447 592 6,555
Expected loss rate (%) 0.13% 0.04% 0.06% 219% 2.78% 0.48%
ECL provision 4 - 1 10 16 31
2020

Gross carrying amount 2,883 968 120 782 1,273 6,026
Expected loss rate (%) 0.06% 29.91% 1.58% 0.77% 5.61% 6.15%
ECL provision 2 289 2 6 7 370

(c) Liquidity risk
Payables, lease liabilities and borrowings are subject to liquidity risk — the risk that insufficient funds may be on hand
to meet payment obligations as and when they fall due.

Council manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an adequate
cash buffer.

Payment terms can (in extenuating circumstances) also be extended and overdraft facilities utilised as required.
Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk — the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely affect
funding costs and debt servicing requirements. Council manages this risk through diversification of borrowing types,

maturities and interest rate structures. The finance team regularly reviews interest rate movements to determine if it
would be advantageous to refinance or renegotiate part or all of the loan portfolio.
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E1-1 Risks relating to financial instruments held (continued)

The timing of cash flows presented in the table below to settle financial liabilities reflects the earliest contractual
settlement dates. The timing of expected outflows is not expected to be materially different from contracted cashflows.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the undiscounted contracted cash flows for non-lease liabilities (i.e. principal
and interest) and therefore the balances in the table may not equal the balances in the statement of financial position

due to the effect of discounting.

Weighted
average
interest

$'000 rate
2021

Trade/other payables 0.00%
Loans and advances 1.63%
Lease liabilities 0.00%
Total financial liabilities

2020

Trade/other payables 0.00%
Loans and advances 1.89%
Lease liabilities 0.00%

Total financial liabilities

Subject payable in: Actual
to no 1-5 Total cash carrying
maturity €1 Year Years > Years outflows values
1,036 14,253 2,921 - 18,210 18,210
- 3,464 29,262 1,136 33,862 32,560

- 953 2,960 1,287 5,200 4,040
1,036 18,670 35,143 2,423 57,272 54,810
1,244 13,274 6,560 - 21,078 17,168
- 3,757 22,095 9,104 34,956 32,847

- 794 2,886 1,184 4,864 4,864

1,244 17,825 31,541 10,288 60,898 54,879
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E2-1 Fair value measurement

The Council measures the following asset and liability classes at fair value on a recurring basis:
— Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

—Investment property

— Financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with various accounting standards for either
recognition and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a ‘level’
in the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)

Fair value measurement hierarchy

Level 2 Significant Level 3 Significant

observable inputs unobservable inputs Total
$ '000 Notes 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets
Financial investments C1-2
at fair value through profit or loss 8,992 3,910 - - 8,992 3,910
Total financial assets 8,992 3,910 - — 8,992 3,910
Investment property c1-2
Investment properties held 42,295 37,575 - - 42,295 37,575
Total investment property 42,295 37,575 - - 42,295 37,575
Infrastructure, proeperty, plant and equipment c1-8
Plant and equipment - - 9,448 10,317 9,448 10,317
Office equipment - - 934 1,096 934 1,096
Furniture and fittings - - 577 311 577 311
Land 48,614 49,257 78,847 74,093 127,461 123,350
Land Improvements - - 7,748 6,986 7,748 6,986
Buildings — specialised - - 103,650 102,611 103,650 102,611
Other Structures - - 8,329 5,647 8,329 5,647
Infrastructure - - 714,370 689,280 714,370 689,280
Other Assets - - 44,338 41,098 44,338 41,098
Total infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 48,614 49,257 968,241 931,439 1,016,855 980,696
Non-current assets classified as held for sale C1-7
Land 42 - - - 42 -
Total NCA’s classified as held for sale 42 — - — 42 _
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchies for recurring fair value
measurements.

Council's policy for determining transfers between fair value hierarchies is:
- at the date of the event or change in circumstances that casued the transfer.

Valuation techniques

Where Council is unable to derive fair valuations using quoted market prices of identical assets (ie. level 1 inputs)
Council instead utilises a spread of both observable inputs (level 2 inputs) and unobservable inputs (level 3 inputs).

The fair valuation technigues Council has employed while utilising level 2 and level 3 inputs are as follows:
Investment property

Council obtains valuations of its investment properties every year or when there are indicators of a change in the
carrying value of the asset.

The best evidence of Fair Value is the current price in an active market for similar assets. The following information
is used where necessary:

The investment property held by Council has heen valued by the valuer using valuation techniques that are appopriate
and for which sufficient data was available to measure fair value, maxmising the use of observable inputs namely
Level 2 inputs (based on per square metres). The income approach is used to value the investment properties and
has not changed from prior years.

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment {IPPE)
Plant & Equipment, Office Equipment, Furniture & Fittings

Plant & Equipment, Office Equipment and Furniture & Fittings are valued at cost but are disclosed at fair value in
the notes. The carrying amount of these assets is assumed to approximate fair value due to the nature of the items.
Examples of assets within these classes are as follows:

+ Plant and Equipment - Graders, trucks, rollers, tractors and motor vehicles.
« Office Equipment - Computers, photocopiers, calculators etc.
« Furniture & Fittings - Chairs, desks and display boards.

Land
The main components of Land include Community Land, Operational Land & Land Under Roads.

Community Land is based on either the Land Value provided by the Valuer-General or an average unit rate based
on the Land Value for similar properties where the Valuer-General did not provide a Land Value having regard to
the highest and best use for the land.

Operational Land has been valued at market value, having regard to the “highest and best use”, after identifying all
elements that would be taken into account by buyers and sellers in settling the price, including but not limited to:

1.The land’s description and/or dimensions;
2.Planning and other constraints on development; and
3.The potential for alternative use.

Sale prices of comparable land parcels in close proximity were adjusted for differences in key attributes such as size
and configuration. The most significant inputs into this valuation approach are price per square metre.

Since extensive professional judgements were required to determine the inputs these assets were classified as
having been valued using Level 2 valuation inputs. There has been no change to the valuation techniques during
the reporting period.

Land Under Roads was valued in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standard AASB 116 Property, Plant
and Equipment, and the Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)

Values were determined using valuation of Council's total Land under Roads at the average rate unit of land and
applying discounting factors which reflects the restrictions placed on land under roads. This asset class is classified
as Level 3 asset as significant inputs used in this methodology are unobservable.

There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.
Buildings - Specialised & Other Structures

The approach estimated the replacement cost of each building and componentising of significant parts with different
useful lives and taking into account a range of factors. The unit rates could be supported by market evidence (Level
2 inputs), other inputs (such as estimates of residual value, useful life and asset condition) required extensive
professional judgement and impacted significantly on the final determination of fair value.

As such, these assets have been valued using Level 3 inputs. There has been no change to the valuation

Infrastructure

The main components of infrastructure include Roads, Bridges, Footpaths, Stormwater Drainage, Recreational and
open areas

Roads bridges and footpaths are valued using the cost replacement approach. Valuations for these asset classes
were undertaken in-house based on actual costs and assumptions from Council's Engineering Department.

No market based evidence (Level 2) inputs are available therefore Level 3 valuation inputs were used for this asset
class. There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.

Assets within this class comprise pits, pipes, open channels, headwalls and various types of water quality devices.

The ‘Cost Approach’ estimated the replacement cost for each asset by componentising the assets into significant
parts with different useful lives and taking into account a range of factors. While the unit rates based on linear
metres of certain diameter pipes and prices per pit or similar could be supported from market evidence (Level 2)
other inputs (such as estimates of pattern of consumption, residual value, asset condition and useful life) required
extensive professional judgement and impacted significantly on the final determination of fair value. Additionally
due to limitations in the historical records of very long lived assets there is uncertainty regarding the actual design,
specifications and dimensions of some assets. There has been no change to the valuation process during the
reporting period.

Councils recreational areas and swimming pools have been valued in house by experienced engineering and asset
management staff using the cost approach. The approach estimated the replacement cost for each pool by
componentising its significant parts.

Other Assets

Other Assets include Other assets in this class includes heritage collections library books, carparks and joint venture
operations.

All other asset classes have also been recorded at replacement cost.

While some elements of gross replacement values could be supported from market evidence (Level 2 input) other
inputs (such as estimates of pattern of consumption, residual value, asset condition and useful life) required extensive
professional judgement and impacted significantly on the final determination of fair value. Therefore, Level 3 is best
suited.

There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020 - 2021

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

Significant unobservable valuation inputs used (for level 3 asset classes) and their relationship to fair value.

The following table summarises the quantitative information relating to the significant unobservable inputs used in deriving the various level 3 asset class fair values.

Fair value
(30/6/21)
$'000 2021 Valuation technique/s Unobservable inputs
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Plant & Office Equipment 10,382 Cost approach Current replacement cost of modern
equivalent asset, asset condition,
useful life and residual value
Furniture & Fittings 577 Cost approach Current replacement cost of modern
equivalent asset, asset condition,
useful life and residual value
Land & Land Improvements 86,595 Community Land - land values Land value, land area
obtained from the NSW
Valuer-General. Crown Land - land
values based on the NSW Valuer-
General where applicable, otherwise
compared to similar properties. Any
restrictions on land such as zoning,
has been taken into consideration.
Buildings - Specialised 103,650 Cost approach Unit price
Other Structures 8,329 Cost approach Current replacement cost of modern
equivalent asst, asset condition, useful
life and residual value
Infrastructure 714,370 Cost approach Current replacement cost of modern
equivalent asst, asset condition, useful
life and residual value
Other Assets 44,338 Cost approach Current replacement cost of modern

continued on next page ...
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)

A reconciliation of the movements in recurring fair value measurements allocated to Level 3 of the hierarchy is provided below:

Plant and office equipment Furniture and fittings Land and land improvements Buildings
$ '000 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Opening balance 11,413 12,984 311 211 81,079 80,503 102,611 95,000
Transfers from/(to) another asset class 842 - - - 957 - 5,325 649
Purchases 614 1,206 293 118 336 667 1,662 11,349
Disposals (246) (208) - - - {11} - {304)
Depreciation and impairment (2,241) (2,569) (27) (18) (93) {80) (4,851) (4,083)
Revaluation increments/decrements - - - _ 4,316 — 148 _
Transfers from/(to) Note C1-9 - _ - — - _ {1,245) _
Closing balance 10,382 11,413 577 31 86,595 81,079 103,650 102,611
Other structures Infrastructure Other assets Total

$'000 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Cpening balance 5,647 5,379 689,280 685,783 41,098 32,962 931,439 912,822
Transfers from/(to) ancther asset class 2,693 42 3,432 280 - 1,795 13,249 2,766
Purchases 836 758 23,085 16,237 6,008 8,843 32,834 39,178
Disposals - {27) (1,532) (2,543) (12) {32) (1,790) (3,125)
Depreciation and impairment (847) (505) (6,249) (5,972) (2,756) (2,470) (17,064) (15,697)
Revaluation increments/decrements - - 6,354 (4,505) - - 10,818 (4,505)
Transfers from/(to) Note C1-9 - - - - - - {1,245) -
Closing balance 8,329 5647 714,370 689,280 44,338 41,098 968,241 931,439
Highest and best use
All of Council's non-financial assets are considered as being utilised for their highest and best use.
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E3-1 Contingencies

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but their
knowledge and disclosure is considered relevant to the users of Council’s financial report.

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED

1. Guarantees
(i) Defined benefit superannuation contribution plans

Council is party to an Industry Defined Benefit Plan under the Local Government Superannuation Scheme, named
The Local Government Superannuation Scheme — Pool B (the Scheme) which is a defined benefit plan that has been
deemed to be a ‘multi-employer fund’ for purposes of AASB119 Employee Benefits for the following reasons:

« Assets are not segregated within the sub-group according to the employees of each sponsoring employer.

« The contribution rates have been the same for all sponsoring employers. That is, contribution rates have not
varied for each sponsoring employer according to the experience relating to the employees of that sponsoring
employer.

+ Benefits for employees of all sponsoring employers are determined according to the same formulae and without
regard to the sponsoring employer.

« The same actuarial assumptions are currently used in respect of the employees of each sponsoring employer.

Given the factors above, each sponsoring employer is exposed to the actuarial risks associated with current and
former employees of other sponsoring employers, and hence shares in the associated gains and losses (to the extent
that they are not borne by members).

Description of the funding arrangements.

Pooled employers are required to pay standard employer contributions and additional lump sum contributions to
the fund.

The standard employer contributions were determined using the new entrant rate method under which a contribution
rate sufficient to fund the total benefits over the working life-time of a typical new entrant is calculated. The current
standard employer contribution rates are:

Division B 1.9 times employee contributions for non 180 Point
Members. Nil for 180 Point Members

Division C 2.5% salaries

Division D 1.64 times employee contributions

The additional lump sum contribution for each Pooled Employer is a share of the total additional contributions of
$40.0 million per annum from 1 July 2018 to to 30 June 2021, apportioned according to each employer's share of
the accrued liabilities as at 30 June 2021. These additional lump sum contributions are used to fund the deficit of
assets to accrued liabilities.

The adequacy of contributions is assessed at each triennial actuarial investigation and monitored annually between
triennials.

Description of the extent to which Council can be liable to the plan for other Council’s obligations under the terms
and conditions of the muiti-employer plan

As stated above, each sponsoring employer (Council) is exposed to the actuarial risks associated with current and
former employees of other sponsoring employers and hence shares in the associated gains and losses.

However, there is no relief under the Fund's trust deed for employers to walk away from their defined benefit
obligations. Under limited circumstances, an employer may withdraw from the plan when there are no active
members, on full payment of outstanding additional contributions. There is nho provision for allocation of any surplus
which may be present at the date of withdrawal of the Council.

There are no specific provisions under the Fund's trust deed dealing with deficits or surplus on wind-up.
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The amount of Council employer contributions to the defined benefit section of the Local Government Superannuation
Scheme and recognised as an expense for the year ending 30 June 2021 was $480,225. The last valuation of the
Fund was performed by Mr Richard Boyfield, FIAA as at 30 June 2020.

The amount of additional contributions included in the total employer contribution advised above is $337,700.
Council's expected contribution to the plan for the next annual reporting period is $528,360.

The estimated employer reserves financial position for the Pocled Employers at 30 June 2020 is:

Employer reserves only * $millions Asset Coverage
Assets 2,620.5

Past Service Liabilities 2,445.6 107.2%
Vested Benefits 2,468.7 106.2%

* excluding member accounts and reserves in hoth assets and liabilities.

The share of any surplus or deficit that is broadly attributed to Council is 0.84% as at 30 June 2021.

Council's share of that deficiency cannot be accurately calculated as the Scheme is a mutual arrangement where
assets and liabilities are pooled together for all member councils. For this reason, no liahility for the deficiency has
been recognised in Council's accounts. Council has a possible obligation that may arise should the Scheme require
immediate payment to correct the deficiency.

The key economic long term assumptions used to calculate the present value of accrued benefits are:

Investment return 5.75% per annum
Salary inflation 3.5% per annum
Increase in CPI 2.5% per annum

* Plus promotional increases

The contribution requirements may vary from the current rates if the overall sub-group experience is not in line with
the actuarial assumptions in determining the funding program; however, any adjustment to the funding program
would be the same for all sponsoring employers in the Pooled Employers group.

(ii) Statewide Limited

Council is a member of Statewide Mutual, a mutual pool scheme providing liability insurance to local government.
Membership includes the potential to share in either the net assets or liabilities of the fund depending on its past
performance. Council's share of the net assets or liabilities reflects Council’s contributions to the pool and the result

of insurance claims within each of the fund years.

The future realisation and finalisation of claims incurred but not reported to 30/6 this year may result in future liabilities
or benefits as a result of past events that Council will be required to fund or share in respectively.

(iii) StateCover Limited
Council is a member of StateCover Mutual Limited and holds a partly paid share in the entity.

StateCover is a company providing workers compensation insurance cover to the NSW local government industry
and specifically Council.

Council has a contingent liability to contribute further equity in the event of the erosion of the company’s capital hase
as a result of the company’s past performance and/or claims experience or as a result of any increased prudential
requirements from APRA.

These future equity contributions would be required to maintain the company’'s minimum level of net assets in
accordance with its licence requirements.
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E3-1 Contingencies (continued)

(iv) Other guarantees

Council has provided no other guarantees other than those listed above.
2. Other liabilities

(i) Third party claims

The Council is involved from time to time in various claims incidental to the ordinary course of business including
claims for damages relating to its services.

Council believes that it is appropriately covered for all claims through its insurance coverage and does hot expect
any material liabilities to eventuate.

(ii) Potential land acquisitions due to planning restrictions imposed by Council
Council has classified a number of privately owned land parcels as local open space or bushland.
As a result, where notified in writing by the various owners, Council will be required to purchase these land parcels.

At reporting date, reliable estimates as to the value of any potential liability (and subsequent land asset) from such
potential acquisitions has not been possible.

(iii) Legal Matters

Council is dealing with general matters as part of normal operations. No specific disclousre is made as these matters
do not represent a significant and probable outflow of resources other than those already provided for.

ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED

(i) Land under roads

As permitted under AASB 1051, Council has elected not to bring to account land under roads that it owned or
controlled up to and including 30/6/08.

(ii) Infringement notices/fines

Fines and penalty income, the result of Council issuing infringement notices is followed up and collected by the
Infringement Processing Bureau.

Council's revenue recognition policy for such income is to account for it as revenue on receipt.
Accordingly, atyear end, there is a potential asset due to Council representing issued but unpaid infringement notices.

Due to the limited information available on the status, value and duration of outstanding notices, Council is unable
to determine the value of outstanding income.
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F People and relationships
F1 Related party disclosures
F1-1 Key management personnel (KMP)

Key management personnel (KMP) of the council are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the

coungcil, directly or indirectly.

The aggregate amount of KMP compensation included in the Income Statement is:

$ '000 2021 2020
Compensation:

Shortterm benefits 3,762 3,893
Post-employment benefits 31 332
Termination benefits 292 279
Total 4,365 4,504

Other transactions with KMP and their related parties

Qutstanding

Impairment

Nature of the transaction balances provision on

Transactions including outstanding Impairment
$ '000 Ref during the year commitments Terms and conditions balances expense
2021
Director remuneration 1 53 - - -
Director remuneration 2 26 - - -
Payment of contributions, annual membership and advertising 3 590 - - -
Legal services 4 245 1 - -
Tourism services and annual subscription 5 120 - - -
Training service 6 18 - - -
Cleaning services 7 23 - - -
Sub lease of Council buildings 8 68 - - -
Supply of goods, contributions, mayoral donation and painting
services 9 299 - - -
Supply of goods 10 41 - - -
2020
Director remuneration 1 66 — - -
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F1-1 Key management personnel (KMP) (continued)

OQutstanding Impairment

Nature of the transaction balances provision on

Transactions including outstanding Impairment
$ '000 Ref during the year commitments Terms and conditions balances expense
Director remuneration 2 32 — _ _
Payment of contributions, annual membership and advertising 3 408 - - -
Legal services 4 215 — _ _
Tourism services and annual subscription 5 92 - — —
Training service B 10 - - -
Cleaning services 7 20 — — _
Sub lease of Council buildings 8 B4 - - -
Supply of goeds, contributions, mayoral donation and painting
services 9 11 4 - -
Supply of goods 10 26 - - —
1 Members of Council's KMP is remunerated for the provision of board member services by Newcastle Airport Pty Ltd which Port Stephens Council has a 50% shareholding in

Members of Council's KMP is remunerated for the provision of board member services by Greater Newcastle Aerotropolis Pty Ltd which Port Stephens Council has a 50%
shareholding in.

A member of Council's KMP is a board member of Destination Port Stephens {a non profit organisation) which receives an annual contribution from Council towards generating
3 economic activity within the LGA, payments were alsc made for annual membership and advertising services. The KMP member is not remunerated by Destination Port Stephens

for their Directorship

Port Stephens Council paid for legal services from Local Government Legal (a division of Strategic Services Australia Ltd) which is a joint operation between 11 Hunter Councils. A

4 member of Council's KMP is a Director of Strategic Services Australia and is not remunerated for their Directorship.

5 Port Stephens Council paid for tourism promotion services from Screen Hunter {a division of Strategic Services Australia Ltd) which is a joint operation between 11 Hunter Councils
and an annual subscription to core funding. A member of Council's KMP is a Director of Strategic Services Australia and is not remunerated for their Directorship

6 Port Stephens Council paid for training services from Local Government Training Solutions (a division of Strategic Services Australia Ltd) which is a joint operation between 11
Hunter Councils. A member of Council's KMP is a Director of Strategic Services Australia and is not remunerated for their Directorship.

7 Port Stephens Council purchased cleaning services from Crest Birubi Beach Pty Ltd during the year, a company which has a member of Council's KMP as a director. Amounts were
billed based on normal rates for such supplies and were due and payable under normal payment terms following the council's procurement processes.

a Crest Birubi Beach Pty Ltd (a company which has a member of Council's KMP as a director) have a sublease with Birubi Point Surf Lifesaving Club in relation to a Council owned
building. The rent is based on current market rates and subject to periodic review.
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F1-1 Key management personnel (KMP) (continued)

During the 2020 financial year Port Stephens Council paid expenses to Port Stephens Koalas in relation to a grant recieved on their behalf. During the 2021 financial year Port

9 Stephens Council paid contributions, a mayoral donation and recieved payment for painting services provided to Port Stephens Koalas. Port Stephens Koalas has 2 members of

Council's KMP as a director.

Port Stephens Council purchased products from S & K latham Pty Ltd during the year, a company which has a member of Council’s KMP as a director. Amounts were billed based

10

on normal rates for such supplies and were due and payable under normal payment terms following the council’'s procurement processes.
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F1-2 Councillor and Mayoral fees and associated expenses
$'000

The aggregate amount of Councillor and Mayoral fees and associated
expenses included in materials and services expenses in the Income
Statement are:

Mayoral fee
Councillors’ fees
Other Councillors’ expenses (including Mayor)

Total

2021 2020
84 63
219 184
70 60
373 307
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F1-3 Other related parties

Qutstanding Impairment
balances provision on
Transactions including outstanding Impairment
$ '000 Ref during the year commitments Terms and conditions balances expense
2020
Shareholder dividend 1 2,000 - - -

Port Stephens Council is a 50% shareholder in the joint operation of Newcastle Airport Pty Ltd for which it receives an annual dividend from. No dividend was received for the year

1 ended 30 June 2021.
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F2  Other relationships
F2-1 Audit fees

$ 000 2021 2020

During the year, the following fees were incurred for services provided by the

auditor of Council, related practices and non-related audit firms

Auditors of the Council - NSW Auditor-General:

(i) Audit and other assurance services

Audit and review of financial statements 81 99

Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 81 []¢]

Total Auditor-General remuneration 81 99

Non NSW Auditor-General audit firms

(i) Audit and other assurance services

Internal audit services - PKF Lawler M 47

Internal audit services - Newcastle airport partnership 15 13

Audit and review of financial statements - Newcastle airport partnership 55 31

Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 111 91

Total remuneration of non NSW Auditor-General audit firms 111 91

Total audit fees 192 190
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G Other matters

G1-1 Statement of Cash Flows information

(a) Reconciliation of net operating result to cash provided from operating activities

$ '000 2021 2020
Net operating result from Income Statement 32,809 20,067
Adjust for non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation 18,331 17,073
Net losses/{gains) on disposal of assets {2,349) 2,570
Non-cash capital grants and contributions (8,790) (5,804)
Losses/(gains) recognised on fair value re-measurements through the P&L:
— Investments classified as ‘at fair value’ or ‘held for trading’ (596) 89
— Investment property (889) (13)
Amortisation of premiums, discounts and prior peried fair valuations
— Interest exp. on interest-free loans received by Council (previously fair
valued) - 1
Share of net {profits)/losses of associates/joint ventures using the equity
method 109 (540)
+/— Movement in operating assets and liabilities and other cash items:
Decrease/(increase) in receivables {1,020) 159
Increase/(decrease) in provision for impairment of receivables {235) 365
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 157 (14)
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets (97) 1,401
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets (577) -
Increase/(decrease) in payables 790 2,633
Increase/(decrease) in other accrued expenses payable 382 661
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities (130) (471)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities 3,826 2,513
Increase/(decrease) in provision for employee benefits {196) 1,355
Increase/(decrease) in other provisions (97) (1.,827)
Net cash provided from/{used in) operating activities
from the Statement of Cash Flows 41,428 40,218
(b) Non-cash investing and financing activities
Dedicated subdivisions 8,790 5,804
RFS assets - -
Total non-cash investing and financing activities 8,790 5,804
(c) Net cash flows attributable to discontinued operations
There are no cash flows that relate to discontinued operations
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G2-1 Commitments

Capital commitments (exclusive of GST)

$ '000 2021 2020
Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not

recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment

Road and civil infrastructure 1,994 -
Buildings 1,285 723
Plant and equipment 676 561
Newcastle airport 901 11,034
Aquatic Structures 1,505 -
Other 564 564
Total commitments 6,925 12,882
These expenditures are payable as follows:

Within the next year 6,925 12,882
Total payable 6,925 12,882

Details of capital commitments

The majority of Councils capital commitments relate to the Newcastle Airport building terminal development and

development of Little Beach boat ramp.

G3-1 Events occurring after the reporting date

Council is unaware of any material or significant ‘non-adjusting events’ that should be disclosed.

G4  Changes from prior year statements

G4-1 Changes in accounting policy
Adoption of new accounting standards — not retrospective

No newly adopted standards had a material impact on Council's reported financial position, financial
performance and/or associated financial statement disclosures for the year ended 30 June 2021.

G4-2 Correction of errors

Correction of prior period errors
There was no correction of prior period errors for the year ended 30 June 2021.

G4-3 Changes in accounting estimates

Changes in accounting estimates
There were no changes in accounting estimates for the year ended 30 June 2021.
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G5  Statement of developer contributions as at 30 June 2021

G5-1 Summary of developer contributions "2

Contributions Held as Cumulative
Opening received during the year Interest and restricted  balance of internal
balance at investment Amounts Intemal asset at 30 June borrowings
$ 000 1 July 2020 Cash Non-cash income earned expended borrowings 2021 {to)/from
Civic Administration 7 319 - - (242) - 84 -
Civic Administration - Works Depot 487 263 - - - - 750 -
Town Centre Upgrades 68 256 - - - - 324 —
Public Open Space, Parks and
Reserves 243 1,209 - - (120) - 1,332 -
Sports and Leisure Facilities 772 3,357 - - - - 4,129 -
Community and Cultural Facilities 27 734 - - - - 761 —
Road Works 145 824 - - (313) - 656 -
Medowie, Traffic and Transport 68 390 - - - - 458 -
Shared Paths 76 145 - - (23) - 198 -
Bus Facilities 8 6 - - - - 14 -
Fire and Emergency 11 72 - - - - 83 -
Flood and Drainage Works 36 213 - - - - 249 -
Cross Boundary Contributions 3 3) - - - - - -
Haulage 2,450 775 - 1 (1,044) - 2,182 -
Kings Hill Urban Release Area — 4 - - - - 4 -
S7.11 contributions — under a plan 4,401 8,564 - 1 (1,742) - 11,224 -
$7.12 levies — under a plan 129 374 - - (246) - 257 —
Total S7.11 and $7.12 revenue under
plans 4,530 8,938 - 1 (1,988) - 11,481 -
Fern Bay - Repealed Funds 1,510 - - 1 - - 1,511 -
Total contributions 6,040 8,938 - (1,988) - 12,992 -

(1) Interestis earned according to the opening balance for the year

(2) Total internally levied contributions included in ‘Cash' contributions is $37,393

Under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, Council has significant obligations to provide Section 7.11 (contributions towards provision or improvement of amenities or
services) infrastructure in new release areas. It is possible that the funds confributed may be less than the cost of this infrastructure, requiring Council to borrow or use general revenue to

fund the difference.
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G5-2 Developer contributions by plan

Contributions Held as Cumulative
Opening received during the year Interest and restricted balance of internal
balance at cash Non-cash . investment Amounts Inte_mal asset at 30 June horrowings
$ "000 1 July 2020 income earned expended borrowings 2021 {to)/from
CATCHMENT DISTRICT - RAYMOND
TERRACE - RURAL
Town Centre Upgrades 17 81 - - - - 98 -
Public Open Space, Parks and
Reserves 68 303 - - - - 371 -
Sports and Leisure Facilities 240 922 - - - - 1,162 -
Community and Cultural Facilities — 123 — - - - 123 _
Road Works 58 292 - - (313) - 37 -
Shared Paths 9 51 - - (23) - 37 -
Bus Facilities - - - - - - - -
Fire and Emergency [ 27 - - - - 33 -
Flood and Drainage Works 2 13 - - - - 15 -
Kings Hill Urban Release Area - 1 - - - - 1 -
Total 400 1,813 - - (336) - 1,877 -
CATCHMENT DISTRICT — CENTRAL
GROWTH CORRIDOR
Town Centre Upgrades 28 77 - - - - 105 -
Public Open Space, Parks and
Reserves 85 431 - - - - 516 -
Sports and Leisure Facilities 264 1,342 - - - - 1,606 -
Community and Cultural Facilities - 100 - - - - 100 —
Road Works 62 276 - - - - 338 -
Medowie, Traffic and Transport 68 390 - - - - 458 -
Shared Paths 6 15 - - - - 21 -
Bus Facilities - 1 - - - - 1 -
Flood and Drainage Works 17 96 - - - - 113 -
Kings Hill Urban Release Area - 2 - - - - 2 -
Total 530 2,730 - - - - 3,260 -
CATCHMENT DISTRICT - TOMAREE
Town Centre Upgrades 15 77 - - - - 92 -
Public Open Space, Parks and
Reserves 33 473 - - (120) - 386 -
Sports and Leisure Facilities 80 1,083 - - - - 1,163 -
Community and Cultural Facilities 27 511 - - - - 538 —
Road Works 25 256 - - - - 281 -
continued on next page ... Page 87
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G5-2 Developer contributions by plan (continued)

Contributions Held as Cumulative
Opening received during the year Interest and restricted balance of internal
balance at cash Non-cash . investment Amounts Inte_mal asset at 30 June borrowings
$ '000 1 July 2020 income earned expended borrowings 2021 {to)/from
Shared Paths 12 63 - - - - 75 -
Bus Facilities - - - - - - - -
Fire and Emergency 5 45 - - - - 50 -
Flood and Drainage Works 17 104 - - - - 121 —
Kings Hill Urban Release Area - 1 - - - - 1 -
Total 214 2,613 - - (120) - 2,707 -
CATCHMENT DISTRICT - FERN BAY
Town Centre Upgrades 8 21 - - - - 29 -
Public Open Space, Parks and
Reserves 57 2 - - - - 59 -
Sports and Leisure Facilities 188 10 - - - - 198 -
Community and Cultural Facilities - - - - - - - -
Shared Paths 49 16 - - - - 65 -
Road Works - - - - - - - -
Bus Facilities 8 5 - - - - 13 -
Cross Boundary Contributions 3 3) - - - - - -
Fern Bay - Repealed Funds 1,510 - - 1 - - 1,511 —
Total 1,823 51 - 1 - - 1,875 -
CATCHMENT DISTRICT - SHIRE
WIDE
Haulage 2,450 775 - 1 (1,044) - 2,182 -
Civic Administration 7 319 - - (242) - 84 -
Civic Administration - Works Depot 487 263 - - - - 750 -
Total 2,944 1,357 - 1 (1,286) - 3,016 -
§7.12 Levies — under a plan
$7.12 LEVIES - UNDER A PLAN
Section 7.12 129 374 - - (246) - 257 -
Total 129 374 - - (246) - 257 -
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G6  Statement of performance measures

G6-1 Statement of performance measures — consolidated results

Amounts Indicator Indicators Benchmark
$'000 2021 2021 2020 2019
1. Operating performance ratio
Total continuing operating revenue
excluding capital grants and centributions
less operating expenses "2 (284) (0.22)% (1.56)% 261% >0.00%
Total continuing operating revenue 127,180
excluding capital grants and contributions '
2. Own source operating revenue ratio 3
Total continuing operating revenue
excluding all grants and centributions ! 112,148 71.63% 74.57%  76.86% > 60.00%
Total continuing operating revenue ! 156,576
3. Unrestricted current ratio
Current assets less all external restrictions 47179
Current liabilities less specific purpose 22,692 2.08x 2.17x 1.59x > 1.50x
liabilities
4. Debt service cover ratio
Operating result before capital excluding
interest and
depreciation/impairment/amortisation ' 18,901
Principal repayments (Statement of Cash 4936 3.83x 2:53x 3.71x > 2.00x
Flows) plus borrowing costs (Income
Statement)
5. Rates and annual charges outstanding
percentage *
Rates and annual charges outstanding 2,192 o o o o
Rates and annual charges collectable 66,650 3.29% 3.05% 2.95% <10.00%
6. Cash expense cover ratio
Current year's cash and cash equivalents
plus all term deposits 49,797 5.01 4.03 5.22 >3.00
Monthly payments from cash flow of 9,933 mths mths mths mths

operating and financing activities

(1) Excludes fair value increments on investment properties, reversal of revaluation decrements, reversal of impairment losses on
receivables, net gain on sale of assets and net share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the equity method and includes
pensioner rate subsidies

2) Excludes impairment/revaluation decrements of IPPE, fair value decrements on investment properties, net loss on disposal of assets
and net loss on share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the equity method

3} Reclassification has occurred on comparative figures for this line item
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H Additional Council disclosures (unaudited)

H1-1 Council information and contact details

Principal place of business:
116 Adelaide Street
Raymond Terrace NSW 2324

Contact details

Mailing Address:
PO Box 42
Raymond Terrace NSW 2324

Telephone: 02 4988 0255
Facsimile: 02 4988 0130

Officers
General Manager
Wayne Wallis

Responsible Accounting Officer
Tim Hazell

Public Officer
Tony Wickham

Auditers
The Audit Office of New South Wales

Level 19, Tower 2 Darling Park, 201 Sussex St,

Sydney NSW 2000

Other information
ABN: 16 744 377 876

Opening hours:
8:30am - 5:00pm
Monday to Friday

Internet: www.portstephens.nsw.gov.au
Email:  council@portstephens.nsw.gov.au

Elected members
Mayor
Ryan Palmer

Councillers

Cr John Nell

Cr Glen Dunkley
Cr Jaimie Abbott
Cr Chris Doohan
Cr Steve Tucker
Cr Sarah 8mith

Cr Paul Le Mottee
Cr Ken Jordan

Cr Giacomo Arnott
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the general purpose financial statements

Port Stephens Council

To the Councillors of the Port Stephens Council
Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Port Stephens Council (the Council), which
comprise the Statement by Councillors and Management, the Income Statement and Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2021, the Statement of Financial Position as at
30 June 2021, the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended and notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information. The financial statements include the consolidated financial statements of the Council and
the entities it controlled at the year’s end or from time to time during the year.

In my opinion:

- the Council’s accounting records have been kept in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Government Act 1993, Chapter 13, Part 3, Division 2 (the Division)

. the financial statements:

- have been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the requirements of this
Division

- are consistent with the Council’s accounting records

- present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Council as at
30 June 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards

. all information relevant to the conduct of the audit has been obtained
. no material deficiencies in the accounting records or financial statements have come to light
during the audit.

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the
standards are described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of my report.

| am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the:

. Australian Auditing Standards

. Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (APES 110).

| have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.

Level 19, Darling Park Tower 2, 201 Sussex Street, Sydney NSW 2000
GPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001 | t 02 9275 7101 | mail@audit.nsw.gov.au | audit.nsw.gov.au
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Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

. providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an
Auditor-General

. mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of councils

. precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services.

| believe the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Other Information

The Council's annual report for the year ended 30 June 2021 includes other information in addition to
the financial statements and my Independent Auditor's Report thereon. The Councillors are
responsible for the other information. At the date of this Independent Auditor's Report, the other
information | have received comprise the Special Schedules (the Schedules).

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information. Accordingly, | do not
express any form of assurance conclusion on the other information. However, as required by the Local
Government Act 1993, | have separately expressed an opinion on the Special Schedule - Permissible
income for general rates.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude there is a material misstatement of the other
information, | must report that fact.

| have nothing to report in this regard.

The Councillors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local Government Act 1393, and for such
internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or efror.

In preparing the financial statements, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the Council’'s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to:

. obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
. issue an Independent Auditor's Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take
based on the financial statements.

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL 232




MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

ITEM 12 - ATTACHMENT 1 ~ ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020 - 2021

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board website at: www.auasb.gov.au/auditors responsibilities/ar3.pdf. The
description forms part of my auditor’s report.

The scope of my audit does not include, nor provide assurance:

. that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically

- on the Griginal Budget information included in the Income Statement, Statement of Cash Flows,
and Note B5-1 Material budget variations

. on the Special Schedules. A separate opinion has been provided on Special
Schedule - Permissible income for general rates

- about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial
statements on any website where they may be presented

. about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the financial statements.

Furgan Yousuf
Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales

8 Cctober 2021
SYDNEY
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OR-Gg,
o Ve,

Cr Ryan Palmer

M ayor Contact: Furgan Yousuf
Port Stephens Council Phone no: 02 9275 7470
PO Box 42 our ref: D2120680/1779

RAYMOND TERRACE NSW 2324

8 Cctober 2021

Dear Cr Palmer

Report on the Conduct of the Audit
for the year ended 30 June 2021
Port Stephens Council

| have audited the general purpose financial statements (GPFS) of Port Stephens Council (the
Council) for the year ended 30 June 2021 as required by section 415 of the Local Government Act
1993 (the Act).

| expressed an unmodified opinion on the Council's GPFS.

This Report on the Conduct of the Audit (the Report) for the Council for the year ended 30 June 2021
is issued in accordance with section 417 of the Act. This Report should be read in conjunction with my
audit opinion on the GPFS issued under section 417(2) of the Act.

INCOME STATEMENT

Operating result

2021 2020 Variance
$m $m %
Rates and annual charges
revenue 63.4 59.8
Grants and 45.0 37.2

contributions revenue

Operating result
from continuing 32.8 201
operations

Net operating result
before capital grants and 2.8 (4.3)
contributions

DBBE

Level 19, Darling Park Tower 2, 201 Sussex Street, Sydney NSW 2000
GPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001 | t 02 5275 7101 | mail@audit.nsw.gov.au | audit.nsw.gov.au
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The Council’s operating result from continuing operations ($32.8 million including depreciation and
amortisation expense of $18.3 million) was $12.7 million higher than the 2019-20 result. This was
mainly due to:

+  $7.8 million higher grants and contributions revenue

+  $3.6 million higher rates and annual charges revenue

+  $2.3 million higher income from disposal of assets primarily due to sale of real estate assets.
The net operating result before capital grants and contributions ($2.8 million) was $7.1 million higher
than the 2019-20 result. This was mainly due to higher revenue from rates, annual charges and

income from disposal of real estate assets. This was partially offset by $2.2 million increase in capital
grants and contributions revenue for the year.

Rates and annual charges revenue ($63.4 million) increased by $3.6 million (6.0 per cent) in
2020-21 mainly due to:

+ annual rate peg increase applied to ordinary rates (2.6 per cent)

+ increase of $1.1 million for non-domestic waste management services

Grants and contributions revenue ($45.0 million) increased by $7.8 million {21.0 per cent) in 2020-21
mainly due to $3.8 million increase in cash developer contributions collected under the Environmental
Planning & Assessment Act 1379 (EP8A Act) and $3.0 million increase in revenue from non-cash
asset dedications.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The Statement of Cash Flows

. Net cash flows for the year
illustrates the flow of cash and 60 -

cash equivalents moving in and

out of Council during the year. 40 1
The increase in cash provided < 20
from operating activities is mainly o 0 {
due to increase in grants and E 20)
contributions receipt during the P

year. (40) -
The decrease in cash used in (80) -
investing activities is mainly due to (80) 1
lower payments for purchases of 100)

infrastructure, property, plant and (
equipment. property, p 2019 2020 2021

The decrease in cash provided Year ended 30 June

from financing activities is due to m Operating activities  Investing activities ®Financing activities
reduced borrowings during the
year.

The Council’s cash and cash
equivalent balances at 30 June
2021 was $58.8 million {2020:
$43.4 million). The net cash flow
for the year was an increase of
$5.0 million.
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FINANCIAL POSITION

Cash and investments

Cash and investments 2021 2020 Commentary

$m $m
Total cash, cash 58.8 434 - Cash and investments increased by $15.1 million.
equivalents and +  Extemally restricted cash and investments are
investments restricted in their use by extemnally imposed

requirements. Council’s extemally restricted cash
and investments have increased by $10.8 million
primarily due to increase in available cash balance
»  External restrictions 2341 12.3 relating to the developer contributions and specific
311 purpose unexpended grants.

Restricted cash and
investments:

s Intemal restrictions 35.7
+ Internally restricted cash and investments are due

to Council policy or decisions to restrict funds for
forward plans including strategic capital projects.
The increase is mainly due to a in the intermal
restrictions of $4.6 million is mainly due to increase
in Asset Rehabilitation, Commercial Properties and
Fleet reserve balances. This increase was partially
offset by the decrease in Repealed Fund balance.

Debt
The Council has $32.6 million of borrowings as at 30 June 2021 (2020: $32.8 million)

The Council has an accumulated drawdown facility limit of $36.0 million as at 30 June 2021
(2020: $36.0 million), of which $25.0 million pertains to the Newcastle Airport Partnership joint venture.
As at 30 June 2021, $20.7 million of the total facility remains unutilised.

PERFORMANCE

Performance measures

The following section provides an overview of the Council’s performance against the perfermance
measures and performance benchmarks set by the Office of Local Government (OLG) within the
Department of Planning, Industry and Environment.

Operating performance ratio

The ‘operating performance ratio’ Operating performance ratio
measures how well council contained
operating expenditure within operating
revenue (excluding capital grants and
contributions, fair value adjustments,
and reversal of revaluation
decrements). The benchmark set by
OLG is greater than zero per cent.
The Council did not meet the OLG
benchmark for the current reporting
period.

Ratio (%)

RN RN =2 2O =~ 2NN WW
n

(

2019 2020 2021
Year ended 30 June
mmmm Operating performance ratio
= OLG benchmark > 0%
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Own source operating revenue ratio

The ‘own source operating revenue Own source operating revenue ratio

ratio’ measures council’s fiscal a0 -

flexibility and the degree to which it 80

relies on external funding sources 70 1

such as operating grants and 60 -

contributions. The benchmark set by § 50 |

OLG is greater than 60 per cent. g 40 |

The Council met the OLG benchmark = 30 4

for the current reporting period. 20

The 2019-20 ratio was restated as a 10 4

result of the reclassifications in

. 0 " T )

accordance with the Local 2019 2020 2021

Government Code of Accounting

Practice and Financial Reporting ) )
2020-21. mmmm Own source operating revenue ratio

()| G benchmark > 60%

Year ended 30 June

Unrestricted current ratio

The ‘unrestricted current ratio’ is
specific to local govermment and
represents council’s ability to meet its

short-term obligations as they fall due.

The benchmark set by OLG is greater

than 1.5 times. 5
The Council met the OLG benchmark ;

for the current reporting period.

2019 2020 2021
Year ended 30 June

Unrestricted current ratio

I
I3
)

[pv]
L

—
w

Ratio (x)

(=)
[#)]

o

mmmm Unrestricted current ratio
()| G benchmark > 1.5x

Debt service cover ratio

The ‘debt service cover ratio’ Debt service cover ratio

measures the operating cash to 4.5 -
service debt including interest, 4
principal and lease payments. The 3.5 4
benchmark set by OLG is greater than 3
two times. §2.5 ]
The Council met the OLG benchmark =
for the current reporting period. 31 5
1 4
0.5 A

0 T T !

2019 2020 2021
Year ended 30 June
= Debt service cover ratio

()| G benchmark > 2x
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Rates and annual charges outstanding percentage

The ‘rates and annual charges Rates and annual charges outstanding
outstanding percentage’ assesses the percentage

impact of uncollected rates and
annual charges on council’s liquidity
and the adequacy of debt recovery
efforts. The benchmark set by OLG is
less than 10 per cent for regional and
rural councils.

The Council met the OLG benchmark

—

Ratio (%)
N i > @ (=]

for the current reporting period. ] . . .
¢

2019 2020 2021
Year ended 30 June
= Rates and annual charges outstanding percentage
e G benchmark < 10%

Cash expense cover ratio

This liquidity ratio indicates the Cash expense cover ratio
number of months the council can 6 -

continue paying for its immediate
expenses without additional cash
inflow. The benchmark set by OLG is
greater than three months.

The Council met the OLG benchmark
for the current reporting period.

Ratio {(months)
w

2019 2020 2021
Year ended 30 June

= Cash expense cover ratio
= (3| G benchmark > 3 months

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment renewals

Council reported asset renewals of $16.6 million in 2020-21 ($24.3 million in 2019-20). Significant
renewals included:

+  road renewals of $7.8 million {$5.2 million in 2019-20)

- footpath renewals of $2.2 million (Nil in 2019-20).

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

238




MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

ITEM 12 - ATTACHMENT 1 ~ ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020 - 2021

OTHER MATTERS

Legislative compliance
My audit procedures did not identify any instances of non-compliance with legislative requirements or
a material deficiency in the Council’'s accounting records or financial statements. The Council’s:

* accounting records were maintained in a manner and form to allow the GPFS to be prepared
and effectively audited
« staff provided all accounting records and information relevant to the audit.

The Council’s:

e accounting records were maintained in a manner and form that facilitated the preparation and
the effective audit of the GPFS

« staff provided all accounting records and information relevant to the audit.

Furgan Yousuf
Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales

cc: Mr Wayne Wallis, General Manager
Mr Ben Niland, Chair of the Audit Committee
Mr Jim Betts, Secretary of the Department of Planning, Industry and Environment
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Port Stephens Council

SPECIAL SCHEDULES
for the year ended 30 June 2021

el )
PORT STEFHENS
"A great lifestyle in a treasured environment” B
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Port Stephens Council

Special Schedules
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Contents Page

Special Schedules:

Permissible income for general rates 3

Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2021 7

Page 2
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Port Stephens Council

Permissible income for general rates

Calculation Calculation
$ '000 Notes 2020721 2021/22
Notional general income calculation *
Last year notional general income yield a 43,572 45,065
Plus or minus adjustments 2 b 334 385
Notional general income c=a+b 43,906 45,450
Permissible income calculation
Or rate peg percentage e 2.60% 2.00%
Or plus rate peg amount i=ex(c+g) 1,142 909
Sub-total k=(ctg+h+i+j) 45,048 46,359
Plus (or minus) last year's carry forward total I 10 -
Less valuation objections claimed in the previous year m - (7)
Sub-total n={l+m) 10 {7)
Total permissible income o=k+n 45,058 46,352
Less notional general income yield P 45,065 46,296
Catch-up or (excess) result g=o-p {7) 56
Plus income lost due to valuation objections claimed 4 r 7 -
Carry forward to next year ° t=q+r+s - 56

Notes

“

The notional general income will not reconcile with rate income in the financial statements in the corresponding year. The statements are
reported on an accrual accounting basis which include amounts that relate to prior years’ rates income.

@

Adjustments account for changes in the number of assessments and any increase or decrease in land value occurring during the year.
The adjustments are called ‘supplementary valuations’ as defined in the valuation of Land Act 1916.

“

Valuation objections are unexpected changes in land values as a result of land owners successfully objecting to the land value issued by
the Valuer-General. Councils can claim the value of the income lost due to valuation objections in any single year.

®) Carmry forward amounts which are in excess (an amount that exceeds the permissible income) require Ministerial approval by order
published in the NSW Government Gazetie in accordance with section 512 of the Local Government Act 1993. The OLG will extract
these amounts from Council’s Pemmissible income for general rates Statement in the financial data return (FDR) to administer this
process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Special Schedule — Permissible income for general rates

Port Stephens Council

To the Councillors of Port Stephens Council
Opinion

| have audited the accompanying Special Schedule — Permissible income for general rates (the
Schedule) of Port Stephens Council (the Council) for the year ending 30 June 2022.

In my opinion, the Schedule is prepared, in all material respects in accordance with the requirements
of the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting 2020—21 (LG Code)
and is in accordance with the books and records of the Council.

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the
standards are described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule’ section of my
report.

| am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the:

. Australian Auditing Standards

. Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (APES 110).

| have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.

Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

. providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an
Auditor-General

. mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of councils

. precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

Without modifying my opinion, | draw attention to the special purpose framework used to prepare the
Schedule. The Schedule has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the Council’s reporting
obligations under the LG Code. As a result, the Schedule may not be suitable for another purpose.

Level 19, Darling Park Tower 2, 201 Sussex Street, Sydney NSW 2000
GPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001 | t 02 9275 7101 | mail@audit.nsw.gov.au | audit.nsw.gov.au
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Other Information

The Council’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2021 includes other information in addition to
the Schedule and my Independent Auditor's Report thereon. The Councillors are responsible for the
other information. At the date of this Independent Auditor's Report, the other information | have
received comprise the general purpose financial statements and Special Schedule ‘Report on
infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2021’

My opinion on the Schedule does not cover the other information. Accordingly, | do not express any
form of assurance conclusion on the other information. However, as required by the Local
Government Act 1993, | have separately expressed an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements.

In connection with my audit of the Schedule, my respensibility is to read the other information and, in
deing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Schedule or my
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude there is a material misstatement of the other
information, | must report that fact.

| have nothing to report in this regard.

The Councillors’ Responsibilities for the Schedule

The Councillors are responsible for the preparation of the Schedule in accordance with the LG Code.
The Councillors’ respensibility also includes such internal control as the Councillors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the Schedule that is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Schedule, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the Council’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule

My objectives are to:

. obtain reasonable assurance whether the Schedule as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
- issue an Independent Auditor's Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take
based on the Schedule.

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the Schedule is located at the Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board website at: www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar8.pdf. The
description forms part of my auditor’s report.
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The scope of my audit does not include, nor provide assurance:

. that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically

. about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited Schedule on any
website where it may be presented

. about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the Schedule.

Furgan Yousuf

Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales

8 Cctober 2021
SYDNEY
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Port Stephens Council

Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2021

Estimated cost

Estimated cost to bring to the Assets in condition as a percentage of

to bring assets agreed level of 2020/21 2020/21 Gross
to satisfactory service set by Required Actual Netcamying replacement gross replacement cost
Asset Class Asset Category standard Council maintenance * maintenance amount cost (GRC)
$'000 $ '000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 1 2 3 4 5

Buildings Other 1,781 1,781 2,498 2,012 103,650 194,745 21.4% 27.7% 43.0% 7.2% 07%

Sub-total 1,781 1,781 2,498 2,012 103,650 194,745 21.4% 27.7% 43.0% 7.2% 0.7%
Other Other structures 61 61 207 238 8,329 19,553 3.6% 51.1% 44.8% 04% 0.1%
structures  Sub-total 61 61 207 238 8,329 19,553 3.6% 51.1% 44.8% 04% 01%
Roads Sealed roads 10,538 10,538 4,021 4,004 308,698 349,731 52.8% 29.2% 13.3% 4.0% 0.7%

Unsealed roads - - 814 828 8,886 10,054 6.4% 41.4% 42.6% 9.6% 0.0%

Bridges — — 20 27 12,983 15,057 38.2% 53.0% 0.7% 8.1% 0.0%

Footpaths 282 282 302 232 60,294 71,398 20.0% 22.4% 51.0% 6.6% 0.0%

Cther road assets 491 491 2175 2,379 72,803 84,265 12.1% 54.8% 23.3% B8.1% 1.7%

Sub-total 11,311 11,311 7,332 7,470 463,664 530,505 40.6% 33.3% 20.2% 52% 0.7%
Stormwater Stormwater drainage 610 610 1,066 1,157 212,830 240,360 24.9% 71.0% 3.2% 08% 0.1%
drainage Sub-total 610 610 1,066 1,157 212,830 240,360 24.9% 71.0% 3.2% 08% 01%
Open space /Swimming pools - - 117 109 3,730 4,917 0.0% 15.0% 85.0% 0.0% 0.0%
recreaticnal Open space 359 359 3,729 3,412 21,799 23,289 15.1% 47.3% 28.2% 7.8% 1.6%
assets Sub-total 359 359 3,846 3,521 25,529 28,206 12.5% 4M.7% 38.1% 64% 1.3%
Other Other 350 350 218 327 12,347 19,248 10.0% 48.0% 32.0% 10.0% 0.0%
infrastructur
e assets Sub-total 350 350 218 327 12,347 19,248  10.0% 48.0% 32.0% 10.0% 0.0%

Total — all assets 14,472 14,472 15,167 14,725 826,349 1,032,617 31.3% 41.8% 21.7% 4.6% 06%

(8) Required maintenance is the amount identified in Council’s asset management plans.

Infrastructure asset condition assessment ‘key’

# Condition Integrated planning and reporting {IP&R) description

1 Excellent/very good No work required (normal maintenance)

2 Good Only minor maintenance work required

continued on next page ... Page 7
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Port Stephens Council

Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2021 (continued)

3 Satisfactory Maintenance work required
4 Poor Renewal required
5 Very poor Urgent renewal/upgrading required

Page 8
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Port Stephens Council

Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2021

Infrastructure asset performance indicators (consclidated) *

Amounts Indicator Indicators Benchmark
$ 000 2021 2021 2020 2019
Buildings and infrastructure renewals ratio
Asset renewals ' 16,269

137.78% 157.37% 114.92% >=100.00%

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 11,808

Infrastructure backlog ratio

Estimated cost to bring assets to a
satisfactory standard 14,472 1.72% 1.69% 1.80% <2.00%
Net carrying amount of infrastructure assets 840,733

Asset maintenance ratio
Actual asset maintenance 14,725

0, 0, 0, 0,
Required asset maintenance 15,167 97.09%  98.93% 99.05% >100.00%

Cost to bring assets to agreed service level
Estimated cost to bring assets to

an agreed service level set by Council 14,472 o
Gross replacement cost 1,032,61 1.40% 1.38% 1.48%
7

) All asset performance indicators are calculated using classes identified in the previous table.

(1) Asset renewals represent the replacement and/or refurbishment of existing assets to an equivalent capacity/performance as opposed to
the acquisition of new assets {or the refurbishment of old assets) that increases capacity/performance.

Page 9
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Port Stephens Council
Holiday Parks and Investment Property Report

Financial Year 2020/2021

1 Net Yield = EBITDA/Capital
vacancies COVID-19

4 Net Yield = Net Profit/Capital

5 The Koala Sanctuary is in its first year of operation.
6 Due to the financial impacts of COVID-19, no dividend was paid by the Newcastle Airport Partnership to Council.

3 EBITDA used as the numerator for Return on Investment calculation in accordance with Crown Lands reporting

Holiday Parks Operating Income Operating Expenditure EBITDA (3) Net Yield % (1) Notes
Fingal Bay Crown 4,906,642 3,757,151 1,149,491 10%
Halifax Crown 3,470,605 2,477,262 993,343 11%
Shoal Bay Crown 1,282,623 873,452 409,171
Council 2,382,014 1,622,125 759,889 8%
3,664,637 2,495,576 1,169,060
Thou Walla Council 1,252,759 1,004,784 247,975 5%
TreEscape Council 1,606,437 1,982,027 (375,591) -3% 5
Investment Property Operating Income Operating Expenditure EBITDA (3) Net Yield % (1) Notes
Total 3,188,677 562,093 2,626,584 6% 2
Newcastle Airport Operating Income Operating Expenditure EBITDA (3) Net Yield % (4) Notes
Total 11,301,175 10,089,913 1,211,263 2% 6
Notes

2 Councils policy on the required return on capital in commercial property investments is between 7-9%. This years returns have been affected by

Page 10
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E

o present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Council as at 30
June 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

o are in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards.

all information relevant to the conduct of the audit has been obtained
no material deficiencies in the accounting records or financial statements have come to
light during the audit.

Council has revalued its Aquatic structures this year which increased by $10.8M

There were no new Accounting Standards adopted this year however OLG made a
significant number of changes to the format of the Code of Accounting which dictates the
Financial Statements and as well as changes to the grouping of income and expenditure.

Income Statement

1. The underlying operating result for Council was a surplus of $583k, which is in line with the

March Quarterly Budget Review result ($§316k) and up on last years' underlying deficit of
$185k. In 2020, Council was severely impacted by a $4m downturn in gross revenue across
Council operations as a result of Covid-19.

2. Total income increased by $13.5m or 9%.
3. Total expenditure grew by $800k or 0.6%.

Statement of Financial Position (Balance Sheet)

Assets

1.

Total cash & investments increased due to unspent grants and the build-up of reserves post
the Covid-19 lockdown in the prior financial year.

2. Receivables increased predominately due to Newcastle Airport Operations.

3. Inventories decreased due to the sale of commercial real estate during the year.

4. IPPE increased in value. The main driver was the capex program of $40m.

5. Investment properties were independently valued and saw a slight increase in fair value.

Liabilities

1. Current Payables slightly increased due to cost control procedures that were implemented
last year.

2. Non-Current Payables represent a Newcastle Airport liability for the purchase of the Asira
lab land.

3. Contract liabilities increased due to unspent grants that were received for projects under
construction.

4.  Borrowings — Council took out no new loans during the year however, Newcastle Airport
drew down on loan facilities related to the construction of the Astra Aero lab.

5. Provisions slightly decreased due to tip remediation provision being completed during the
year which extinguished the financial liability.

6. Employee provisions decreased due to staff taking leave during the year.

7. Lease liabilities decreased in line with repayment schedules.
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Performance Indicators
1. Allfinancial indicators have exceeded the industry benchmarks except for the Operating

Performance Ratio, which was affected by the consolidation of the Newcastle Airport

Operations which had a $1.5 million consolidated deficit. Without this consolidation,

Council would have recorded a positive Operating Ratio.

2. All asset management indicators have met industry benchmark
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ITEM NO. 13 FILE NO: 21/205499
EDRMS NO: PSC2010-03190

END OF TERM REPORT 2017 TO 2021
REPORT OF: TIMOTHY CROSDALE - GROUP MANAGER CORPORATE

SERVICES
GROUP: CORPORATE SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Note the Port Stephens Council End of Term Report 2017 to 2021
(ATTACHMENT 1).

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

290 Councillor John Nell
Councillor Chris Doohan

It was resolved that Council note the Port Stephens Council End of Term
Report 2017 to 2021 (ATTACHMENT 1).

Councillor John Nell left the meeting at 8:43pm.

Councillor Glen Dunkley left the meeting at 8:45pm.
Councillor John Nell returned to the meeting at 8:45pm.
Councillor Glen Dunkley returned to the meeting at 8:47pm.
Councillor Chris Doohan left the meeting at 8:48pm.
Councillor Chris Doohan returned to the meeting at 8:49pm.

The motion was carried.
BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to table the Port Stephens Council End of Term Report
2017 to 2021 (the Report) as required by Section 406 of the Local Government Act
1993 and Essential Element 1.10 of the Integrated Planning and Reporting
Guidelines (Guidelines). These require that a report on the progress of
implementation of the Community Strategic Plan (End of Term Report) be presented
at the final meeting of an outgoing Council.
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COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction Delivery Program 2018-2022
Governance Provide a strong ethical governance
structure.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The End of Term Report 2017 to 2021 provides a snapshot of the highlights and
challenges faced over the past 4 years, together with more detail on the progress and
achievements made in the 4 Focus Areas of the Community Strategic Plan 2018-
2028 (CSP).

The Report has been prepared using information from a range of sources within
Council such as Council’s Annual and Six-monthly reports and other external
information.

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | No

(§7.11)

External Grants No

Other No

LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

Essential Element 1.10 of the Guidelines require that this Report be compiled and
presented at the final meeting of an outgoing Council.

The legislation intends the End of Term Report to be a guide for the incoming Council
to see what has been achieved and what still needs to be done towards achieving the
community's goals. The Report is also required to be attached as an appendix to the
Annual Report (Section 428) the year in which an ordinary election of the Mayor and
Councillors is held.

Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within

Rankin Existing
Resources?

There is a risk that the Low Data obtained from internal Yes

End of Term Report sources and external

2017 to 2021 contains websites has been cross-

errors of fact regarding checked, where possible.

information.
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SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

There are no sustainability implications.
CONSULTATION

Compilation of the Report has occurred in consultation with the following internal key
stakeholders:

e Executive Team
e Section Managers
e Specialist Council Officers

OPTIONS
1) Accept the recommendation.

2) Amend the recommendation.
3) Reject the recommendation.

ATTACHMENTS

1) End of Term Report 2017 to 2021. (Provided under separate cover)
COUNCILLORS ROOM

Nil.

TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021

MOTION

291

Councillor Chris Doohan
Councillor Sarah Smith

It was resolved that the Council meeting be extended for 15 minutes.

The motion was carried.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
AMENDMENT

Councillor Giacomo Arnott

That the Council meeting be extended for 45 minutes.

The amendment lapsed without a seconder.
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ITEM NO. 14 FILE NO: 21/250545
EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00180

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY AND PROSPERITY
FUND

REPORT OF: TIMOTHY CROSDALE - GROUP MANAGER CORPORATE
SERVICES
GROUP: CORPORATE SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Endorse the key directions for ongoing financial sustainability as detailed in this
report.

2) Endorse the establishment of the Prosperity Fund.

3) Receives a report within 6 months to endorse associated governance processes
for the Prosperity Fund.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

292 Councillor Chris Doohan
Councillor John Nell

It was resolved that Council:

1) Endorse the key directions for ongoing financial sustainability as
detailed in this report.

2) Endorse the establishment of the Prosperity Fund.

3) Receives a report within 6 months to endorse associated governance
processes for the Prosperity Fund.

The motion was carried.
BACKGROUND

Council’s financial sustainability has been achieved and enhanced through the
implementation of a range of strategies since the early 2010’s. A central aspect of
this has been maintaining approximately 1% of budget as an underlying operating
surplus. This has enabled ongoing reinvestment into critical works and services.
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Achieving this metric has been supported by our rolling Service Review program that
provides for ongoing efficiency reviews of Council services and aims to deliver
ongoing budget savings.

Effective financial reserve management and ongoing success with grant funding has
also supported Council’'s ongoing achievement of key metrics, such as reduction of
asset backlog, as well as the attainment of financial reporting metrics as determined
by the Office of Local Government. Council has been able to increase its capital
works spend considerably over time as financial sustainability has been achieved.

Council has also pursued a strategy of increasing sources of non-rate revenue to
support the provision of Council services to the community. This has been embedded
into Council’'s Delivery Program and Operational Plans. This strategy has been
successful and has enabled Council to maintain the lowest rates in the region whilst
continuing to deliver services valued by the community.

The key sources of non-rate revenue for Council include returns from:

e Council’s property development and investment portfolio — managed in
accordance with the Property Investment Strategy.

e Council's Beachside Holiday Parks (BSHP) operations — managed in accordance
with the 4 Year Delivery Program.

e A dividend from the operations of Newcastle Airport Pty Limited (NAPL) —
managed in accordance with separate NAPL governance processes.

In addition to these key sources of non-rate revenue Council has also initiated
strategies around additional revenue from Smart Parking in town centres across the
LGA.

The key tool for Council to effectively plan for, and deliver, ongoing financial
sustainability is the Long Term Financial Plan (LTFP). For some time the LTFP has
identified 2021/2022 and 2022/2023 financial years as being tight with predicted
underlying surplus generally being lower than Council’s target of 1% of budget. This
prediction was on account of expected legislated increases in superannuation
contributions amongst other factors.

From 2020, Council has been faced with a challenging financial position as a result of
the COVID-19 pandemic (the pandemic). This included the loss of an annual dividend
from NAPL and impacts to commercial operations from public health orders. The
pressure of the pandemic forced Council to reassess capital projects and
discretionary spending, including recruitment, and produced a small operating deficit
of $185k in the 2019/2020 financial year. This is the first reported underlying deficit
since 2012.

At the time of setting the 2020/2021 budget the impacts of COVID-19 were thought to
result in a budgeted underlying deficit of $4.4 million. Council’s results for the
2020/2021 financial year have resulted in an underlying surplus of $583,000. This
has been achieved through managing discretionary aspects of Council’s budget as
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well as performance from non-rate revenue sources such as the Beachside Holiday
Parks.

Despite Council’'s demonstrated ability to implement effective short term strategies,
the ongoing effects of COVID-19, including lockdown periods through the first part of
2021/2022 are continuing to impact Council’s financial position. The updated LTFP
projections highlight that Council requires the re-setting of strategies to attain ongoing
financial sustainability into the future.

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction Delivery Program 2018-2022

Financial Management Maintain strong financial sustainability.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

These recent results indicate that Council is effective in implementing clear business
decisions to minimise short term impacts to Council’s financial position.

A range of external factors (ATTACHMENT 1) will continue to present ongoing
challenges to the financial sustainability of Council.

Accordingly, Council will implement a range of strategies, initiatives and plans across
a range of focus areas as shown in (ATTACHMENT 2) and include the following key
directions:

e Avoid shocks — focus on reserve management and cash forecasting in order to
recover from recent impacts and continue to have resilience to meet ongoing
impacts.

e Attain underlying surplus — move back to achieving 1% underlying surplus as a
key metric of financial sustainability and review the need to increase this target
over time.

e Prosperity Fund — establish an internally governed reserve for significant
organisational projects, financial sustainability or commercial reinvestment funded
through excess non-rate revenue (as detailed below).

¢ Increase income — to continue to meet community expectations further
opportunities will be examined to increase income sources to Council including
statutory processes relating to rates, fees and charges as well as increasing non-
rate revenue.

e Review and adjust services — continue existing Service Review program to drive
operational efficiencies (budget savings) and reinvest in services and works
expected from the community.

e Advocacy and partnerships — to assist with the success of grants and to minimise
external impacts to the organisation.

What has also been evident in recent history is the growing importance of non-rate
revenue streams. Based on Council’s ongoing management, non-rate revenue
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streams can generate revenue in excess of what is required to maintain services and
reinvest in these revenue sources. In these instances Council have episodically
allocated these excess funds into specific projects or initiatives, commonly
infrastructure projects across the LGA.

Whilst this has enabled Council to fund projects outside of rate revenue or grant
based sources, this has typically been one off projects. Accordingly, there is also an
opportunity for Council to improve decision making around the use of excess non-
rate revenue sources to ensure that Council is strategic in its use of these funds.

Moreover, the ability to align and pool these funds also provides a unique opportunity
for Council to utilise this funding for large scale strategic projects and initiatives such
as:

e Infrastructure in demand for the community.

e Contribute to Council’s financial sustainability such as providing a cash backed
reserve to assist funding emergency response.

e Investment in initiatives to extend and or provide additional returns to Council.

Council has developed the Port Stephens Council Prosperity Fund to provide this
governance and decision framework for the use of excess non-rate revenue for
Council. An overview of the Prosperity Fund is provided at (ATTACHMENT 3).

The overall aim of the Prosperity Fund is to ensure that the use of excess non-rate
revenue is directed towards significant projects, investments or initiatives to achieve
the strategies of Council. The Prosperity Fund includes:

e Clear objectives and criteria for the use of funds towards significant projects,
investments or initiatives to achieve the strategies of Council.

e Clarity on the use of non-rate revenue streams to ensure that these streams can
be perpetuated and enhanced over time to continue to offset Council services and
reliance on rate based revenue.

e Details on the management of the reserve including cash and minimum reserve
levels to maintain effectiveness of this fund.

e Governance processes including the establishment of a Prosperity Fund
Oversight Committee to administer the fund.

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds Yes

Developer Contributions | No

(§7.11)

External Grants No

Other No
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LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal, policy or risk implications from the adoption of the
recommendations of this report. Should Council endorse the broad directions outlined
in this report further detailed governance processes will be developed.

Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within
Rankin Existing
Resources?
There is a risk that Medium | Adopt the recommendations. | Yes

Council face an
increasingly uncertain
long term financial
outlook that may affect
ongoing financial
sustainability.

There is a risk that Medium | Adopt the recommendations. | Yes
Council miss the
opportunity to align the
use of excess non-rate
revenue that would
contribute to financial
sustainability and
significant community
projects.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

The continued attainment and enhancement of financial sustainability is central to
Council’s ability to continue to deliver services valued by our community in the best
possible way.

CONSULTATION

Consultation with key stakeholders has been undertaken in the development of the
key directions for financial sustainability and the Prosperity Fund.

Internal

Senior Leadership Team
Executive Team
Property Advisory Panel
Mayor and Councillors
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OPTIONS
1) Accept the recommendations.

2) Amend the recommendations.
3) Reject the recommendations.

ATTACHMENTS

1) Key internal and external impacts.

2) Key directions for financial sustainability.
3) PSC Prosperity Fund flow chart.
COUNCILLORS ROOM

Nil.

TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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ITEM 14 - ATTACHMENT 1  KEY INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL IMPACTS.
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ITEM 14 - ATTACHMENT 2 KEY DIRECTIONS FOR FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY.

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL 264




MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

ITEM 14 - ATTACHMENT 3  PSC PROSPERITY FUND FLOW CHART.
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ITEM NO. 15 FILE NO: 21/268774
EDRMS NO: PSC2010-05281

SALE OF BIOBANKING CREDITS FROM THE KARUAH BIOBANKING SITE
REPORT OF: TIMOTHY CROSDALE - GROUP MANAGER CORPORATE

SERVICES
GROUP: CORPORATE SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Authorise the sale of a maximum of 267 biodiversity credits (HU833) from the
Karuah Biobanking site at the rate of $4626 per credit.

2) Authorise the sale of a maximum of 581 biodiversity credits (HU804) from the
Karuah Biobanking site at the rate of $1510 per credit.

3) Authorise the General Manager to sign all documentation required to effect the
sale, including the application to transfer biodiversity credits in accordance with
section 377 of the Local Government Act 1993.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

293 Councillor John Nell
Councillor Glen Dunkley

It was resolved that Council:

1) Authorise the sale of a maximum of 267 biodiversity credits (HU833)
from the Karuah Biobanking site at the rate of $4626 per credit.

2) Authorise the sale of a maximum of 581 biodiversity credits (HU804)
from the Karuah Biobanking site at the rate of $1510 per credit.

3) Authorise the General Manager to sign all documentation required to
effect the sale, including the application to transfer biodiversity credits
in accordance with section 377 of the Local Government Act 1993.

The motion was carried.
BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to request Council to approve the sale of the following
biodiversity credits to Transport for New South Wales (TfNSW) to enable it to meet its
conditions of approval for the Newcastle Inner City Bypass project:
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e A maximum of 267 biodiversity credits of HU833 (Smooth-barked Apple — Red
Bloodwood — Brown Stringybark — Hairpin Banksia heathy open forest of coastal
lowlands) and;

e A maximum of 581 of biodiversity credits of HU804 Spotted Gum - Broad-leaved
Mahogany - Red Ironbark shrubby open forest.

TfNSW have invited Council to quote on the sale of Biobanking credits from Council’s
Biobanking site at 210-262 Tarean Road, Karuah (ATTACHMENT 1). TINSW may
elect to purchase a sum, all or none of the credits and should Council be successful
in selling a portion of, or all credits listed above, a significant financial return will be
received.

On 20 March 2013, the land was registered with the Biodiversity Conservation Trust
(BCT) as Biobanking Agreement No 97 (the Agreement) under the Threatened
Species Conservation Act 1995. The Agreement sets out annual maintenance and
management requirements for the land, and required the first $555,819 from credit
sales to be paid into BCT'’s trust fund (known as the Part A Payment). The Part A
payment was finalised in June 2019 and Council receives annual payments from the
trust fund to assist with meeting the annual maintenance and management
requirements, and the proceeds of all future credit sales are retained by Council.

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction Delivery Program 2018-2022

Financial Management Maximise non-rate revenue and
investment to support Council services.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The Biobanking credit market is similar to an exchange whereby buyers and sellers
negotiate a price and make trades. The biodiversity credit market is a public
marketplace and as such previous sales can be examined. The last previous sale is
known as the spot price. Should a purchaser not want to purchase credits from the
open market, the Biodiversity Offset Payment Calculator (BOPC) credit price from the
Biodiversity Conservation Trust can be utilised, this is known as the upper most limit
credit price.

TINSW require 750 of credit type HU833 and 1098 of credit type HUB04.

The spot price of credit type HU833 is $3504 and the BOPC calculator price (upper
most limit) is $5562. The credit type HU833 has been externally valued at $4396. The
proposed credit price of $4626 for HU833 has been derived from the average of the
previous two sales in 2021 and exceeds the independent valuation. It is noted that
sales of this credit type are rare with only 118 credits of HU833 sold in the last 5
years. Council owns 267 of the 717 HU833 credits currently on the open market and
should it be successful in selling all 267 at $4626 per credit, a financial return of
$1,235,142 will be received.
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The spot price of credit type HU804 is $1510 and the BOPC calculator price (upper
most limit) is $3033. The proposed credit price at $1510 for HU804 is the spot price.
The credit type HU804 has been externally valued at $1810. It is noted that sales of
this credit type are common and there is currently a large surplus of this credit type
on the biodiversity credit market. On this basis, and in consideration of the potential
volume of credits as part of this potential transaction, it is recommended Council
maintain the spot price for these credits. Council owns 581 HU804 credits and should
it be successful in selling all 581 at $1510 per credit, a financial return of $877,310
will be received.

The sale of the remaining credits will be ongoing under the processes established
under the scheme.

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds Yes Proceeds from the sale will be
retained in the Property
Reserve.

Developer Contributions | No

(§7.11)

External Grants No

Other No

LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

Biobanking was established by the NSW Government, supported by legislation and is
managed by the BCT. The proposal is consistent with the legislation and the
Agreement.

Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within
Rankin Existing
Resources?
There is a risk that the High Adopt the recommendations. | Yes

purchaser could source
credits from another
Biobanking site.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

Council receives annual payments from the BCT to undertake management actions
and maintenance of the site. It provides a mechanism and method to address the
loss of biodiversity and threatened species.
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CONSULTATION
Internal

Strategic Property Coordinator
Principal Property Planner
Property Planner

Senior Environmental Planner

External

e Biodiversity Conservation Trust
e Transport of New South Wales

OPTIONS
1) Accept the recommendations.

2) Amend the recommendations.
3) Reject the recommendations.

ATTACHMENTS

1) Locality Plan: 210 - 262 Tarean Road, Karuah.
COUNCILLORS ROOM

Nil.

TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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ITEM 15 - ATTACHMENT 1  LOCALITY PLAN: 210 - 262 TAREAN ROAD,
KARUAH.
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ITEM NO. 16 FILE NO: 21/252708
EDRMS NO: A2004-0242

QUARTERLY BUDGET REVIEW TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

REPORT OF: TIM HAZELL - FINANCIAL SERVICES SECTION MANAGER
GROUP: CORPORATE SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Approve the discretionary changes to the adopted budget as detailed in
(ATTACHMENT 1) presented as the 2021-2022 Quarterly Budget Review
Statement — September 2021.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

294 Councillor Chris Doohan
Councillor Glen Dunkley

It was resolved that Council approve the discretionary changes to the
adopted budget as detailed in (ATTACHMENT 1) presented as the 2021-
2022 Quarterly Budget Review Statement — September 2021.

The motion was carried.
BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to amend the budget by bringing to Council’s attention
the proposals and issues that have an impact on the 2021-2022 budget. The
Quarterly Budget Review Statement — September 2021 (ATTACHMENT 1) sets out
the details of variations between Council’s original budget and the proposed budget.

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on Council’s financial position,
with lengthy, detailed analysis across all financial operations undertaken to achieve a
level of clarity.

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction Delivery Program 2018-2022

Financial Management Maintain strong financial sustainability.
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FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Council’s anticipating underlying result is as follows:

Surplus ($) Deficit ($)
Budget 2021 - 2022 $66,000
September 2021 review $2,500,000
December 2021 review
March 2022 review
Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment

(%)

Existing budget Yes
Reserve Funds No
Developer Contributions | No
(S7.11)
External Grants No
Other No

LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

While Council’s financial situation continues to be impacted, financial expenditure will
continue to be carefully managed to ensure minimal financial risk to the organisation

and community.

underlying operating
result may be unsteady
for an unforeseeable
amount of time.

Plan will be reviewed
regularly to ensure that
expenditure remains

sustainable and that revenue

is at appropriate levels.

Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within
Rankin Existing
Resources?
There is a risk that the High The Long Term Financial Yes

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

Council’s budget is fundamental for operational sustainability and for the provision of
facilities and services to the community. The budget will continue to be carefully
managed with conservative expenditure to ensure that the financial outlook continues

to improve.

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

272



https://myport.portstephens.nsw.gov.au/corporateservices/organisationDevelopment/riskManagement/Corporate%20Risk%20Documents/Corporate%20Risk%20Matrix%20(5x5)%20-%20April%202018.pdf
https://myport.portstephens.nsw.gov.au/corporateservices/organisationDevelopment/riskManagement/Corporate%20Risk%20Documents/Corporate%20Risk%20Matrix%20(5x5)%20-%20April%202018.pdf

MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

CONSULTATION

Consultation with key stakeholders has been undertaken by the Financial Services
Section to discuss the overall financial result for the quarter.

Formal communication has been conducted in conjunction with a number of meetings
and it was recommended to submit the Quarterly Budget Review to September 2021
to Council for formal adoption.

Internal

e Executive Team.

External

Nil.

OPTIONS

1) Accept the recommendation.

2) Amend the recommendation.
3) Reject the recommendation.

ATTACHMENTS

1) Quarterly Budget Review Statement — September 2021.
COUNCILLORS ROOM

Nil.

TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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1) Executive Summary
The quarterly budget review has been compiled during period of great uncertainty, not only for Council but for the industry as a
whole. While many possibly scenarios have and will continue to be modelled, the following summary best represents the current
situation as well as it is known.

Financial performance is generally measured through three primary statements. Each are discussed in detail in the attached report.
A summary of the predicted outcomes are provided as follows:

Profit & Loss Statement — operational budget

Original budget — expected result $66Kk surplus
September 2021 review ($2,500k) deficit

The decrement of $2,500k is primarily due to:

Decreased income from:

Holiday Parks $2,350k
Parking Income $500k
Decreased expenditure from:

Emergency Services Levy $250k
Insurance Premiums $100k

This document forms part of Port Stephens Council's Quarterly Budget Review Statement for the quarter ended 30/9/2021 and should be read in conjunction with other documents in the QBRS.
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Capital Works Program — capital budget

Gross Contribution Net
Original budget - total spend $28,402k $12,122k $16,280k
September 2021 review $67,439k* $28,607k $2,707k

The increase of $39,037k is principally due to:

Increased program:

2021/2022 budget revotes $27,768k
Blackspot/safe roads $5,000k
Cycle ways & pathways $4,500k
Commercial investment buildings $1,000k
Recreation upgrades $1,000k

*Total capital works program includes $3,850k for airport works. The net program for Council is $67,439 - $3,850 = $63,589k.

Cash flow
Original budget — cash projected $65,443k
September 2020 review $40,946k

The decline in the anticipated cash position to 30" June 2021 is principally due to the decrease in income is response to the COVID-
19 pandemic and capital works as detailed above being brought to account.

This document forms part of Port Stephens Council's Quarterly Budget Review Statement for the quarter ended 30/9/2021 and should be read in conjunction with other documents in the QBRS.
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1) Executive Summary - continued

Categorising the changes by Group:

Corporate Services: The operating budget change in this Group was $2m (Unfavourable). The operating budget changes
predominately relate to the decrease in holiday parks income in response to the COVID-19 shutdown and a projected increase in
royalties.

Capital budget changes were $906k (Favourable) and mainly relate to the receipt of a grant to refurbish the rooms at the Koala
Sanctuary Park and reduction in the capital works program.

Development Services: Operating budget changes for this Group were $50k (Unfavourable). The operating budget changes
predominately relates to the decrease in infringements and fines in response to the COVID-19 shutdown.

There were no capital budget changes for the quarter.

Facilities & Services: The operating budget change in this Group was $295k (Unfavourable). This is due to the decrease in parking fee
income, children services income and emergency services levy. For new potential operating grants, budget adjustment will be made in
the future.

Changes in the capital budget were $4.6m (Unfavourable) which is mainly due to the inclusion of the 2022 Community Projects program
recently exhibited.

General Manager's Office: The operating budget changes in this Group was $50k (Favourable). The operating budget changes
predominately relate to the decrease in the anticipated motor vehicle insurance premiums.

There were no capital budget changes for the quarter.

Newcastle Airport: There were no budget changes for the quarter. The Newcastle Airport operations are excluded for the purposes of
calculating Councils underlying operating result.

This document forms part of Port Stephens Council's Quarterly Budget Review Statement for the quarter ended 30/9/2021 and should be read in conjunction with other documents in the QBRS.
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. Budget revotes | Budget Budget Budget 2022
Operating Budget 2022 Original | & carry Revision Revision Revision Revised 2022 YTD
Budget forwards Sept Qtr Dec Qtr Mar Qtr Budget Actuals
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Corporate Services 52,259 - (2,044) 50,215 43,103
Development Services (8,104) - (50) (8,154) (1,920)
General Manager's Office (7,007) (31) 50 (6,988) (3,522)
Facilities & Services (32,448) 433 (294) (32,309) 6,867
Newcastle Airport 244 - - 244 61
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) before capital 4,044 402 (2,338) 3,008 44,500
grants
Less: Gain on sale (3,750) - - (3,750) -
Less: Fair value increases & royalties (1,485) - (500) (1,985) (336)
Less: Newcastle Airport (244) - - (244) (61)
Add: NAP Dividend - - - - -
Add: Local election costs 600 - - 600 -
| Underlying Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 66 402 (2,838) (2,370) 44,193
Budget revotes | Budget Budget Budget 2022
2022 Original | & carry Revision Revision Revision Revised 2022 YTD
Capital Budget Budget forwards Sept Qtr Dec Qtr Mar Qtr Budget Actuals
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Corporate Services (4,690) (4,539) 9086 (8,323) (1,449)
Development Services 4,520 - - 4,520 1,815
Facilities & Services (12,2860) (14,338) (4,581) (31,178) (3,073)
General Manager's Office - - - 0 -
Newcastle Airport (3,850) - - (3,850) -
| Total (16,280) (18,876) (3,675) (38,831) (2,707)

Note - + = inflow () = outflow

This document forms part of Port Stephens Council's Quarterly Budget Review Statement for the quarter ended 30/9/2021 and should be read in conjunction with other documents in the QBRS.
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2) Introduction

Clause 203(1) of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 requires Council's responsible accounting officer to prepare and
submit a Quarterly Budget Review Statement (QBRS) to Council. The QBRS must show, by reference to the estimated income &
expenditure that is set out in the operational plan, a revised estimate of income and expenditure for the year.

It also requires the QBRS to include a report by the responsible accounting officer as to whether or not the statement indicates Council
to be in a satisfactory financial position, with regard to Council's original budget.

Council's operational plan sets out the achievements, goals and revenue policy, including estimates of income and expenditure. The
QBRS plays an important role in monitoring Council's progress against the plan and ongoing management of the annual budget.

The QBRS is the mechanism whereby Councillors and the community are informed of Council's progress against the operational plan
(original budget) and the recommended changes and reasons for major variances.

The QBRS is composed of the following components:

Responsible Accounting Officer Statement.
Income & Expenses Budget Review Statement.
Capital Budget Review Statement.

Cash Flow Statement Review.

Budget Review Contracts and Other Expenses.

This document forms part of Port Stephens Council's Quarterly Budget Review Statement for the quarter ended 30/9/2021 and should be read in conjunction with other documents in the QBRS.
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3) Responsible Accounting Officer's Statement

The Regulations require that a budget review statement must include or be accompanied by a report as to whether or not the
Responsible Accounting Officer (RAQO) believes that the QBRS indicates that Council's financial position is satisfactory, having regard to
the original estimate of income and expenditure. If Council's financial position is considered by the RAO to be unsatisfactory, then
recommendations for remedial action must be included.

The following statement is made in accordance with clause 203(2) of the Local Government (General) Regulations 2005.

It is my opinion that the Quarterly Budget Review Statement for Port Stephens Council for the quarter end 30/09/2021 indicates that
Council's projected financial position will not be satisfactory at year-end, having regard to the projected estimates of income and
expenditure and the original budgeted income and expenditure. The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and lock down processes
continues to be monitored and used to model the potential financial impacts on the organisation. A range of austerity measures have
been implemented, aimed at reducing the potential deficit to break even or better. These measures and the impact are monitored on a
weekly basis and reported to the Executives and Council on a regular basis. The cash position is being critically examined and
monitored to ensure that the maximum amount of cash is being retained within the organisation. Potential delays to the capital works
program are being examined and will be separably reported as appropriate.

Name: Tim Hazell

Responsible Accounting Officer, Port Stephens Council

This document forms part of Port Stephens Council's Quarterly Budget Review Statement for the quarter ended 30/9/2021 and should be read in conjunction with other documents in the QBRS.
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4) Income & Expenses Budget Review Statement

Budget revotes | Budget Budget Budget 2022

Consolidated Income Statement 2022 Original | & carry Revision Revision Revision Revised 2022 YTD

Budget forwards Sept Qtr Dec Qtr Mar Qtr Budget Actuals

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Rates and Annual Charges 66,079 - - 66,079 65,087
User Charges & Fees Income 48,862 - (3,037) 45,825 5,142
Interest & Investment Income 1,237 - - 1,237 340
Other Income 7,493 - 228 7,720 1,508
Grants and Cont. 12,161 433 235 12,829 1,895
Grants and Cont.(Capital) 12,122 8,891 7,594 28,607 6,416
Fair value gains 835 - - 835 -
Net Gain on Sale 3,750 - - 3,750 -
Total Revenue 152,539 9,324 5,019 166,882 80,388
Employee Costs 53,672 - 161 53,833 11,252
Borrowing Costs 882 - - 882 59
Materials & Contracts 57,994 - (164) 57,830 13,308
Other Expenses 4,678 31 (235) 4,474 1,081
Depreciation & Impairment 18,247 - - 18,247 3,682
Total Expenditure 135,472 31 (237) 135,266 29,382
gr;;t-:lrtastmg Surplus/(Deficit) after capital 17,067 0,203 5,256 31,616 51,006
Opertasting Surplus/(Deficit) before capital 4,944 402 (2,338) 3,000 44,590
gran
Less: Net Gain on sale (3,750) - - (3,750) -
Less: Fair value increases & royalties (1,485) - (500) (1,985) (336)
Less: Newcastle Airport (244) - - (244) (61)
Add: NAP Dividend - - - - -
Add: Local election costs 600 - - 600 -
Underlying Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 66 402 (2,838) (2,370) 44,192

Motes:

1. Revised Budget = Original Budget +/ approved budget changes in previous quarters.

This document forms part of Port Stephens Council's Quarterly Budget Review Statement for the quarter ended 30/9/2021 and should be read in conjunction with other documents in the QBRS.
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Council's original operating budget for 2021-2022 was incorporated as part of the Integrated Plans that were adopted by Council on 22
June 2021.

This statement sets out the details of variations between Council's original operating budget and the revised budget as part of the
September Quarterly Budget Review. This has altered from an original projected underlying surplus of $66,000 to a revised deficit of
$1,670,000.

Note that for budgetary changes: F = favourable budget change, U = unfavourable budget change.

Budget Change
REVENUE $'000 F/U
Rates and Annual Charges - -
No Change
User Charges and Fees 3,037 u

User charges and fees have decreased due to holiday park revenue, parking meter income and children services fees being
impacted by the COVID-19 lockdown.

Grants and Contributions provided for 235 F
Operating Purposes

Income has increased due to new grants for recreation & culture, transport and environmental protection.

Interest and Investment Revenue - -

No Change

Other Revenues 228 F

This document forms part of Port Stephens Council's Quarterly Budget Review Statement for the quarter ended 30/9/2021 and should be read in conjunction with other documents in the QBRS.
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Other revenue has increased primarily due to the increase in forecasted royalties.

Grants and Contributions provided for Capital
Purposes 7,594 F

Capital grants & contributions have increased primarily due to the following projects:

Salamander Way Foreshore Drive — culvert and road upgrade - $1.5m
Pathways — various - $3.3m

Roads blackspot grant - $2m

Port Stephens Drive Koala blackspot project - $845k

Net Gains from the Disposal of Assets - -

No Change

This document forms part of Port Stephens Council's Quarterly Budget Review Statement for the quarter ended 30/9/2021 and should be read in conjunction with other documents in the QBRS.
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EXPENDITURE $'000 Budget Change
F/U

Borrowing Costs - -

No Change

Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment - -

No Change

Employee Benefits and On-Costs 161 u

Employee benefits and on-costs have increased primarily due to grantincome being received which requires internal labour as part
of the delivery.

Materials and Contracts 164 F

Materials and contracts have been decreased due to lower than anticipated insurance premiums.

Other Expenses 235 F
Other expenses have decreased due to lower emergency service levies than originally budgeted.

This document forms part of Port Stephens Council's Quarterly Budget Review Statement for the quarter ended 30/9/2021 and should be read in conjunction with other documents in the QBRS.
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5) Capital Budget Review Statement

. 2022 Budget Budget Budget Budget 2022

Consolidated - Summary Original revotes & Revision | Revision |Revision |Revised 2022 YTD
Budget carry forwards | Sept Qtr Dec Qtr Mar Qtr Budget Actuals
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Grants and Cont.(Capital) 12,122 8,891 7,594 28,607 6,416

| Total Receipts 12,122 8,891 7,594 28,607 6,416

Capital Equipment & Contracts 28,402 27,768 11,269 67,439 8,955

Property Acquisition & Development - - - - 168

Total Payments 28,402 27,768 11,269 67,439 9,123

Capital Surplus/(Deficit) (16,280) (18,876) (3,675) (38,832) (2,707)

This statement sets out the details of variations between Council's original capital budget and revised capital budget. There are
budgetary changes proposed which result in a net increase in the capital program to the value of $11m.

Note that for budgetary changes: F = favourable budget change, U = unfavourable budget change.

Budget Change
INCOME $'000 FIU
Capital Grants & Contributions 7,594 F

Capital grants & contributions have increased primarily due to the following projects:

Salamander Way Foreshore Drive - culvert and road upgrade - $1.5m

[ ]
e Pathways — various - $3.3m
+ Roads blackspot grant - $2m

Port Stephens Drive Koala blackspot project - $845k

This document forms part of Port Stephens Council's Quarterly Budget Review Statement for the quarter ended 30/9/2021 and should be read in conjunction with other documents in the QBRS.
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EXPENDITURE $'000 Budget Change
F/U

Property Acquisition and Development - -

No Change

Capital Equipment and Contracts 11,269 ]
Capital equipment and contracts have increased primarily due to the following projects:

Sealed Roads - $5m (mainly Foreshore Drive, James Rd, Medowie Rd, One Mile rehab and blackspot)
« Cycleway & pathways - $4.5m (mainly fly point to Halifax, Nelson Bay Rd, William St, Lemon Tree Passage and Kings Park
sports complex)
Commercial investment buildings - $1m (437 Hunter St, 49 William St, 113 Beaumont St and 528 Hunter St)
Sports grounds & facilities - $1m (mainly Kings Park sports complex and Tomaree match field upgrades)

This document forms part of Port Stephens Council's Quarterly Budget Review Statement for the quarter ended 30/9/2021 and should be read in conjunction with other documents in the QBRS.
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The capital works program by section is as follows:

i i 2022 Budget revotes | Budget Budget Budget 2022
Consolidated - Detailed Original & carry Revision Revision Revision Revised 2022 YTD
Budget forwards Sept Qtr Dec Qtr Mar Qtr Budget Actuals
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Capital Funding
Capital Grants & Contributions 12,122 8,891 7,594 28,607 6,416
| Total Capital Funding 12,122 8,891 7,594 28,607 6,416
Capital Expenditure
Corporate Services Group
Commercial Property Reserve & Cluster Plan
Fingal Bay Holiday Park 2,019 679 (1,396) 1,302 610
Halifax Holiday Park 490 53 (64) 479 17
Shoal Bay Holiday park 481 150 (360) 271 138
Thou Walla Sunset Retreat 300 - (105) 195 55
Koala Sanctuary 350 124 62 536 158
Office and Chambers - - - - -
Property Development - - - - 168
Administration Building 250 3,000 - 3,250 259
Property Investments - 93 1,107 1,200 -
| Commercial Property Total 3,890 4,099 (756) 7,234 1,405
Business Improvement Technology 800 439 - 1,239 104
| Corporate Services Group Total 4,690 4,539 (756) 8,473 1,509

This document forms part of Port Stephens Council's Quarterly Budget Review Statement for the quarter ended 30/9/2021 and should be read in conjunction with other documents in the QBRS.
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Consolidated - Detailed 2022 Original :l:::sr'?; revotes ::\?igs?ctm :ggigs?::n :L'gigs?fm 2R?:ﬁsed 2022 YTD
Budget forwards Sept Qtr Dec Qtr Mar Qtr Budget Actuals
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

General Manager's Office

Software - - - - -

General Manager's Office Total - - - - -

Facilities and Services

Assets

Fleet Maintenance 2,213 1,340 - 3,653 -

Drainage and Flooding 600 196 200 996 242

Assets Total 2,813 1,536 200 4,549 242

Community Services

Domestic Waste Management - 17 - 17 0

Library Services 250 - - 250 19

| Community Services 250 17 - 267 19

Capital Works

Capital Works Construction 16,799 21,675 11,825 50,299 7,353

Capital Works Total 16,799 21,675 11,825 50,299 7,353

Facilities and Services Total 19,862 23,229 12,025 55,115 7,614

Newcastle Airport 3,850 - - 3,850 -

Total Capital Expenditure 28,402 27,768 11,269 67,438 9,123

Net Outlay 16,280 18,876 3,675 38,831 2,707

This document forms part of Port Stephens Council's Quarterly Budget Review Statement for the quarter ended 30/9/2021 and should be read in conjunction with other documents in the QBRS.
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6) Reserve Balances

This statement sets out the budgeted reserve balances and funding source change.

i Rollover _ll?pemting Financing Transfers Drig_inal Budget Revision Sept Qtr Bug:lgel Bug:lget Closing
ransfers Transfers between Capital Revision Revision
Reserves Balance | Transfers | G750 | inf(out) | Reserves | Budget Capital Operating Dec Qtr MarQu | Balance
$'000 $°000 $°000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Administration Building Reserve 502 - 102 - - (250) - - 354
Asset Rehabilitation Reserve 1,352 (854) 4,100 (500) - (3,600) (74) - 424
Commercial Properties Reserve 5,605 (2,046) 6,473 (2,209) (100) - (1,107) 456 7,072
Cormmunity Loans 200 - - - - - - - 200
Crown Reserves 2,891 (1,380) 2,717 (400) - (3,640) 1,338 (2,201) -
Developer contributions 11,481 (33) 4,389 - - (632) (474) - 14,730
Domestic Waste 3,744 (197) (77) - - (270) - - 3201
Drainage Reserve 196 (196) 1,417 - - (675) (200) - 542
Election Reserve 600 - (600) - - - - - -
Federal Assistance Grant Reserve 3,459 - (3.459) - - - - - -
Fleet Reserve 2,410 (1,357) 2,180 - - (2,213) - - 1,020
IT Reserve 684 (439) 800 - - (800) - - 245
Newcastle Airport 10,542 - 2,916 - - (3,850) - - 9,608
Other Waste Services Reserve 422 (185) (96) - - - - - 142
Parking Meters Reserve 178 (47) 1,128 - - (130) - (500) 629
Repealed Funds Reserve 5,581 (2,765) - - - - (997) - 1819
Roads / Environmental Reserve 46 (44) 425 - - (425) - - 3
Section 355C committees 626 - - - - - - - 626
Unexpended Grants Reserve 4,779 (1,173) - - - - (3.527) (79) -
Sustainable energy and water reserve 17 - 0 - - - - - 1M
Unexpended Loan Funds Reserve 5,000 (13,424) (1,576) 10,000 - - - - -
Ward Funds Reserve 26 (100) (26) - 100 - - - -
Total 60,497 (24,240) 20,813 6,891 - (16,485) (5,041) (2,325) 40,787

This document forms part of Port Stephens Council's Quarterly Budget Review Statement for the quarter ended 30/9/2021 and should be read in conjunction with other documents in the QBRS.
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Revotes & Budget Budget Budget

7) Cash Flow Statement (Consolidated) Original Carried Revision Revision Revision Revised

Budget Forward Sept Dec Mar Budget
Cash Flows from Operating Activities $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Receipts:
Rates and Annual Charges 64,640 - - - - 64,640
User Charges & Fees Income 48,272 - (3,037) - - 45,235
Interest & Investment Revenue Received 1,237 - - - - 1,237
Other 8,138 - 228 - - 8,366
Grants and Contributions 21,735 9,324 7,828 - - 38,887
Payments:
Employee Benefits & On-Costs (52,134) - (161) - - (562,295)
Borrowing Costs (872) - - - - (872)
Materials & Contracts (47,679) - 164 - - (47,515)
Other (18,633) (31) 235 - - (18,429)
Net Cash provided (or used in) Operating Activities 24,704 9,293 5,256 - - 39,253
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Receipts:
Proceeds from disposal of Property Plant & Equipment 3,750 - - - - 3,750
Proceeds from development & land sales - - - - - -
Payments:
Purghase of Real Esta_te, Infrastructure, Property Plant & (28,402) (27,768) (11,269) _ _ (67,439)
Equipment and Intangibles
Net Cash provided (or used in) Investing Activities (24,652) (27,768) (11,269) - - (63,689)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Receipts:
Proceeds from borrowings 10,000 - - - - 10,000
Payments:
Repayment of Leases, Borrowings & Advances (3,408) - - - - (3,408)
Net Cash provided (or used in) Financing Activities 6,592 - - - - 6,592
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 6,644 (18,474) (6,013) - - (17,843)
plus: Cash & Investments - beginning of year (*) 58,789 - - - - 58,789
Cash & Investments - end of the year 65,433 (18,474) (6,013) - - 40,946

This document forms part of Port Stephens Council's Quarterly Budget Review Statement for the quarter ended 30/9/2021 and should be read in conjunction with other documents in the QBRS.
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*opening balance adjustment made to reflect 30 June 2021 actual closing balance

Cash Flow Statement Funding Reconciliation

The 'Recommended Changes to Budget' in the September QBR constitute an overall decrease in Council's Cash Flow position by
$6m (Unfavourable) after the use of internal reserves and external funding sources are factored in.

PSC is clearly solvent based on the current and estimated cash position from the review changes. PSC's current cash position as
per the September investment report was $42.9m.

8) Budget Review Contracts and Other Expenses

Councillors are currently made aware of tenders of $250,000 or more in accordance with legislation. However, Councillors should
be made aware of other material contracts entered into by Council and details of other expenses that are of particular interest. To
this end, a contract listing and details of legal fees and consultancy expenses are included in the QBRS.

Part A lists contracts (other than employment contracts and contracts entered into from Council's preferred suppliers list) that:

e  Were entered into during the quarter ending 30/09/2021; and
. Have a value equal to or more than $50,000.

Part B of the report shows expenditure as at 30/09/2021 for:

* Consultancies
e Legal fees

For the purposes of this report, a consultancy is defined as a person or organisation engaged under contract on a temporary basis
to provide recommendation or high level specialist or professional advice to assist decision making by management.

This document forms part of Port Stephens Council's Quarterly Budget Review Statement for the quarter ended 30/9/2021 and should be read in conjunction with other documents in the QBRS.
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Part A

Contracts Listing

Contractor Contract Details and Purpose E‘c;nérgszrt VAllE dC:Qmencement EB#%eted
RFQO077-2021 - 9/7/2021 - TILLIGERRY

OASIS SKATE PARKS PTY LTD SKATE PAR, etc 198,000.00 15/07/2021 Y
Remediation of the story walk - Koala

THE TRUSTEE FOR ELZA FAMILY TRUST | Sanctuary 171,721.00 16/08/2021 Y
RFQ83-2020 - 2/9/2021 - SUPPLY & DELIVER

RDO EQUIPMENT PTY LTD JOHN, etc 162,842.00 29/09/2021 Y
RFQ83-2020 - 2/9/2021 - SUPPLY & DELIVER

RDO EQUIPMENT PTY LTD JOHN, etc 137,918.00 03/09/2021 Y

NEW ENGLAND EDUCATION AND

RESEARCH PTY. UNE External Assessments - SRV Project 88,000.00 30/09/2021 Y

CREATIVE RECREATION SOLUTIONS Wetpour Rubber Surfacing Upgrade remove,

PTY supply an 82,413.14 04/08/2021 Y
Block work and pathways at Orana Street

THE TRUSTEE FOR ELZA FAMILY TRUST | Amenity bu 80,894.00 17/09/2021  |Y

UNDERCOVER CANVAS PTY LTD glass doors for 10 x glamping tents 70,000.00 09/07/2021 | Y
This work order is for Phase 1:

SQUIZ AUSTRALIA PTY LTD Neo/Funnelback Imp 68,440.90 06/09/2021 Y

PartB

Consultancy & Legal Expenses

Expenditure Budgeted
Expense YTD ($) (YIN)
Consultancies 69,089 Y
Legal Fees 107,129 Y

This document forms part of Port Stephens Council's Quarterly Budget Review Statement for the quarter ended 30/9/2021 and should be read in conjunction with other documents in the QBRS.
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ITEM NO. 17 FILE NO: 21/230387
EDRMS NO: A2004-0654

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY
REPORT OF: JANELLE GARDNER - STRATEGY & ENVIRONMENT SECTION

MANAGER
GROUP: DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Endorse the Economic Development Strategy 2021-2025 shown at
(ATTACHMENT 1).

2) Revoke the Economic Development and Tourism Strategy 2018-2020
(ATTACHMENT 2).

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

295 Councillor Glen Dunkley
Councillor John Nell

It was resolved that Council:

1) Endorse the Economic Development Strategy 2021-2025 shown at
(ATTACHMENT 1).

2) Revoke the Economic Development and Tourism Strategy 2018-2020
(ATTACHMENT 2).

The motion was carried.
BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to seek Council's endorsement of the Economic
Development Strategy 2021-2025.

Port Stephens Council is committed to leading an integrated and collaborative
approach to the delivery of a vibrant and liveable place supporting economic growth.

The Economic Development Strategy 2021-2025 has been developed, in partnership
with business, to provide a framework for the delivery of actions which support
recovery from the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic and facilitate the strategic
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growth of innovative and successful business which are both strong and globally

competitive.

The Economic Development Strategy 2021-2025 will focus on the delivery of actions
to support the following Strategic Outcomes:

Investment Attraction

Support Local

Workforce for the Future
Sustainability and Resilience

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction

Delivery Program 2018-2022

Active Investment

Strong Economy, Vibrant Businesses,

Support sustainable business
development in Port Stephens.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial or resource implications. Funds for the delivery of actions will
be sourced from existing budgets, partnerships with business, grants or sponsorship.

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | No

(S7.11)

External Grants No

Other No

LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

Endorsement of the strategy demonstrates Council’s commitment to supporting a
strong local economy, vibrant business and active investment in Port Stephens.

Risk

Risk
Rankin

Proposed Treatments Within

Existing
Resources?
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There is a risk that Low A formal consultation Yes
Council’s reputation may process has been

be damaged as a result undertaken that has informed

of decisions made in the Strategy

relation to a Strategy that

does not reflect the Adopt the recommendations

needs of residents,

visitors and the

community

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

With an improved focus on investment attraction, business resilience, workforce
development and local supply chains, Council can help build capacity in the local
business community, facilitate employment opportunities and increase the wellbeing
of the resident population.

CONSULTATION
Internal

Consultation was undertaken with the Assets, Strategy & Environment, Development
Services, Corporate Services and Communications sections.

A Two Way Conversation with the Mayor and Councillors was held on 21 September
2021 to provide an overview of the strategy.

External

A formal consultation process was undertaken to increase local awareness of the
Economic Development Strategy within the business community, seek an
understanding of local business priorities for the future and gather business feedback
on proposed Council initiatives and actions.

Over 230 community and businesses participated in consultation activities from May
to September 2021.

The process included an online business workshop with key industry representatives,
consultation with the Economic Development Advisory Panel (EDAP), online surveys
and targeted business surveys.

A summary of engagement activities and key findings is outlined in (ATTACHMENT
3).
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OPTIONS

1) Accept the recommendations.
2) Amend the recommendations.
3) Reject the recommendations.

ATTACHMENTS

1) Economic Development Strategy 2021-2025.

2) Economic Development and Tourism Strategy 2018-2020.

3) Economic Development Strategy Engagement Summary.
COUNCILLORS ROOM

Nil.

TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2021-2025.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2021-2025.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2021-2025.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2021-2025.

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL 301




MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2021-2025.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2021-2025.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2021-2025.

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL 304




MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2021-2025.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2021-2025.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 1  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2021-2025.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 2 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND TOURISM STRATEGY 2018-2020.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 2 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND TOURISM STRATEGY 2018-2020.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 2 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND TOURISM STRATEGY 2018-2020.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 2 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND TOURISM STRATEGY 2018-2020.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 2 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND TOURISM STRATEGY 2018-2020.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 2 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND TOURISM STRATEGY 2018-2020.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 2 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND TOURISM STRATEGY 2018-2020.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 2 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND TOURISM STRATEGY 2018-2020.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 2 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND TOURISM STRATEGY 2018-2020.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 2 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND TOURISM STRATEGY 2018-2020.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 2 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND TOURISM STRATEGY 2018-2020.

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL 318




MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 2 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND TOURISM STRATEGY 2018-2020.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 3  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY
ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY.
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ITEM 17 - ATTACHMENT 3  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY
ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY.
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ITEM NO. 18 FILE NO: 21/268439
EDRMS NO: PSC2021-02594

LOCAL STRENGTHENING FUNDS/GRANTS FUNDING
REPORT OF: STEVEN BERNASCONI - COMMUNICATIONS SECTION

MANAGER
GROUP: DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Approves the provision of financial assistance from applications received for the
Local Strengthening Fund 2021 to 2022 (round 1) under Section 356 of the
Local Government Act 1993.

a) $6000 to Caring for Our Port Stephens Youth (COPSY) - Early Intervention
Complete Coverage

b) $6,000 to Nelson Bay Junior Australian Football Club - Footy for All
c) $6,000 to Thou-Walla Family Centre - Starting School

d) $6,000 to The MindStorm Foundation (The Cooper Storm Memorial
Foundation Ltd) - Entrepreneurs Pitch & Innovation Challenge

e) $6,000 to Rotary Club of Raymond Terrace - BBQ trailer refurbishment

f) $2,800 to Anna Bay All Abilities Recreational Play Park Inc - Bird Habitat
Landscaping

g) $4,186.51 to Birubi point Surf Life Saving Club — Surf sport training
equipment.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

296 Councillor Chris Doohan
Councillor Glen Dunkley

It was resolved that Council approves the provision of financial assistance
from applications received for the Local Strengthening Fund 2021 to 2022
(round 1) under Section 356 of the Local Government Act 1993.

a) $6000 to Caring for Our Port Stephens Youth (COPSY) - Early
Intervention Complete Coverage

b) $6,000 to Nelson Bay Junior Australian Football Club - Footy for All
c) $6,000 to Thou-Walla Family Centre - Starting School

d) $6,000 to The MindStorm Foundation (The Cooper Storm Memorial
Foundation Ltd) - Entrepreneurs Pitch & Innovation Challenge
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e) $6,000 to Rotary Club of Raymond Terrace - BBQ trailer
refurbishment

f) $2,800 to Anna Bay All Abilities Recreational Play Park Inc - Bird
Habitat Landscaping

g) $4,186.51 to Birubi point Surf Life Saving Club — Surf sport training
equipment.

The motion was carried.
BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to seek Council's endorsement of the Round 1 recipients
of the Local Strengthening Fund 2021 to 2022.

The Local Strengthening Fund is a new funding stream which replaces the previous
COVID-targeted response grant stream, the Community Support Fund.

The Local Strengthening Fund aims to build sustainable local communities and
environments, and enhance the wellbeing and development of the Port Stephens
community. This grant welcomes applications from community groups and not-for-
profit organisations seeking support for projects, activities and events that address
community and environmental needs.

Round 1 of the Local Strengthening Fund program opened on 1 September 2021 and
closed 5 October 2021, in conjunction with several other grant streams including the:

e Vibrant Spaces Fund
e The Community Event Development Fund
e My Incredible Place Micro Fund

The overall response rate for the funding program included 27 applicants across the
all streams.

The assessment panel for the Local Strengthening Fund includes assessment by a
panel of Councillors, the Mayor and two Council staff. The assessment process was
carried out in accordance with the fund guidelines.

Table 1 details the recipients recommended for Round 1 of the Local Strengthening
Fund program 2021 to 2022. A total of $36,986.51 is recommended for funding.

Table 1: Local Strengthening Fund recommended projects
Organisation Project Title Amount Brief Description
Caring for Our Port | Early $6,000 Establish new youth
Stephens Youth Intervention counselling service in
(COPSY) Inc Complete Raymond Terrace
Coverage
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Table 1: Local Strengthening Fund recommended projects
Organisation Project Title Amount Brief Description
Nelson Bay Junior Footy for All $6,000 Program to increase local

Australian Football women and girls'

Club participation in AFL, Rugby
Union and Soccer

Thou-Walla Family | Starting School | $6,000 School resource bags for

Centre new kindergarten students

The MindStorm Entrepreneurs $6,000 Youth entrepreneurship and

Foundation (The Pitch & local projects program

Cooper Storm Innovation

Memorial Challenge

Foundation Ltd)

Rotary Club of BBQ Trailer $6,000 Refurbishment of existing

Raymond Terrace refurbishment BBQ trailer

Anna Bay All Bird Habitat $2,800 Native tree planting and

Abilities Landscaping building local bird nesting

Recreational Play boxes

Park Inc.

Birubi Point Surf Life | Surf sport $4,186.51 | Surf sport training

Saving Club training equipment for little nippers

Incorporated equipment

Table 2 below outlines the successful applications for the Vibrant Spaces fund
following the recent assessment process. A total of $21,000 will be allocated for
funding in round 1. Table 2 is for information only.

Table 2: Vibrant Spaces approved projects
Applicant Project Title Amount
Homegrown Markets Homegrown Port $6,000
Stephens, Summer in the
Bay
Raymond Terrace Rotary | King St Heritage Festival | $6,000
Club
UP & UP Inspirations Medowie Mural $3,500
Tilligerry Habitat Visitors Centre Wall Mural | $2,500
Association
Ortenburg Interior Design | Magnus St Gallery, $3,000
Facade Beautification

Table 3 below outlines the successful applications for the Community Event
Development Fund following the recent assessment process. A total of $9,000 will be
allocated for funding in round 1. Table 3 is for information only.
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Table 3: Community Event Development Fund approved projects

Gardens(moved from

Workshop

Applicant Project Title Amount
Krystal Grzelak Eat & Greet Pop Up $3,000
Market, Riverside Park
UP & UP Inspirations Snak n Rap Youth Event | $3,000
Hunter Region Botanic Welcome Back, High Tea | $3,000

Vibrant Places)

Table 4 below outlines the successful applications for the My Incredible Place Micro
Grant following the recent assessment process. A total of $500 will be allocated for
funding in round 1. Table 4 is for information only.

Table 4. My Incredible Place Micro Grant approved project
Project Title Amount
Clubhouse Wall Mural $500

Applicant
Tilligerry Tennis Club

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction Delivery Program 2018-2022

Community Partnerships Support local community events that
highlight and foster the creative and

diverse nature of our community.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)
Existing budget Yes $36,986.51 | From overall budget of $70000
Reserve Funds No
Developer Contributions | No
(S7.11)
External Grants No
Other No

LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal or policy impediments in adopting the recommendations. Council
provides financial assistance in accordance with Section 356(1) of the Local
Government Act 1993. Council manages the Local Strengthening Fund in
accordance with the Grants and Donations policy.
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Council may set a
precedent when
allocating funds to the
community and an
expectation those funds
will always be available.

Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within

Rankin Existing
Resources?

There is a risk that funds | Low Manage grant administration | Yes

to successful applicants process as per the grants

may not be expended or procedure

projects uncompleted

and/or not acquitted.

There is a risk that Low Provide feedback and grant | Yes

unsuccessful applicants writing support to

are displeased with unsuccessful applicants

Council decision-making

There is a risk that that Low Adopt the recommendations | Yes

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

Adopting the recommendation will result in improved social and environmental
outcomes for the Port Stephens community through opportunities to generate social
connections, and improvements for community wellbeing and to local environments.

CONSULTATION

Consultation with key stakeholders has been undertaken by the Economic
Development and Tourism and the Community Development and Engagement

teams.

The realigned grant, sponsorship and donations program for 2021 to 2022 was
launched on 1 September 2021 and was promoted through existing community

networks and media.
OPTIONS
1) Accept the recommendations.

2) Amend the recommendations.
3) Reject the recommendations.

ATTACHMENTS

Nil.
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COUNCILLORS ROOM
Nil.
TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

297 Councillor Chris Doohan
Councillor John Nell

It was resolved that Council adopt the recommendations of items 19 to 23
by multiple vote adoption.

Councillor Ken Jordan left the meeting at 9:18pm.
Councillor Jaimie Abbott returned to the meeting at 9:22pm.

The motion was carried.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

Councillor Giacomo Arnott

That the Council meeting be extended for 15 minutes.

The motion lapsed without a seconder.
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ITEM NO. 19 FILE NO: 21/259766
EDRMS NO: PSC2021-03003

WASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2021-2031
REPORT OF: TAMMY GUTSCHE - COMMUNITY SERVICES SECTION

MANAGER
GROUP: FACILITIES & SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Receive and note submissions (ATTACHMENT 1).
2) Adopt the draft Waste Management Strategy 2021-2031 shown at
(ATTACHMENT 2).

3) Revoke the Waste Management and Resource Recovery Policy
(ATTACHMENT 3) dated 8 December 2020, Minute No. 280 should no
submissions be received.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

297 Councillor Chris Doohan
Councillor John Nell

It was resolved that Council:

1) Receive and note submissions (ATTACHMENT 1).

2) Adopt the draft Waste Management Strategy 2021-2031 shown at
(ATTACHMENT 2).

3) Revoke the Waste Management and Resource Recovery Policy
(ATTACHMENT 3) dated 8 December 2020, Minute No. 280 should
no submissions be received.

The motion was carried.
BACKGROUND
The purpose of this report is seek Council’'s adoption of the draft Waste Management

Strategy 2021-2031 (strategy) shown at (ATTACHMENT 2) following the public
exhibition period of 24 August 2021 to 22 September 2021.
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The strategy is intended to review current regional growth in the area and identify
possible options for the future, which meet the needs of the community, whilst
ensuring Port Stephens Council remains at the forefront of the waste industry.

The key objectives of the strategy are to:

1) Address how Council can meet current targets set by the NSW EPA in the 2021-
2041 Waste and Sustainable Materials Strategy by:

e investigating systems for the processing of our waste
e introduction of a third bin.

2) Identify opportunities for Council to utilise waste assets and resources in the
most efficient manner to maximise recovery and provide waste services more
efficiently through:

e regional cooperation and coordination
e service delivery.

3) Reduce the community’s environmental footprint through:

e waste avoidance, reduction and resource recovery
e expansion of litter prevention and management initiatives
e community education.

4) Identify opportunities to reduce waste to landfill through:

e recycling of additional material through the procuring of waste technology
e use of alternate processing options/locations.

The Waste Management Strategy will replace Council's existing Waste Management
and Resource Recovery Policy (ATTACHMENT 3).

During public exhibition, 16 submissions were received which have been summarised
in (ATTACHMENT 1). The submissions received did not require the advertised
strategy to be modified or changed.

The submissions received were positive in regard to the strategy and the consultation
conducted during the creation of the document, with the bulk of submissions offering
further advice, input into the sizing and make-up of the third bin and the collection
frequency.

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction Delivery Program 2018-2021
Environmental Sustainability Reduce the community's environmental
footprint.
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FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

There are no additional financial or resource implications created by this strategy in
excess of those already provided under the previous Waste Management and
Resource Recovery Policy.

Once adopted, the implementation of the strategy may impact the waste reserve,
particularly in relation to the rollout of the third bin. Staff will carry out investigations
into the supply, processing and collection of this service and present a business case
back to Council outlining the impact to Council and residents.

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | No

(§7.11)

External Grants No

Other No

LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal or policy impediments to adopting the recommendations.

Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within
Rankin Existing
Resources?
There is a risk that Low Adopt the recommendations. | Yes

Council will not meet the
future waste needs of the
community.

There is a risk that Low Adopt the recommendations. | Yes
Council will not comply
with waste legislation.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

There are no sustainability implications created by this strategy. The adoption of this
strategy is intended to increase Council’'s environmental credentials and have a
positive effect on social outcomes.
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CONSULTATION

Consultation with key stakeholders has been undertaken by the Community Services
Section in conjunction with Talis Consultants. Consultation with both internal and
external stakeholders was undertaken to ensure that the position taken by Council on
waste management and resource recovery practices is in line with current trends in
the industry as well as safe, convenient and affordable for the residents and
businesses of Port Stephens.

Internal

All internal staff associated with the delivery of the suite of waste services were
consulted in person during the drafting of this strategy. All Council staff were provided
the opportunity to contribute via the external consultation options provided below.

External

A consultation program was developed to allow multiple opportunities for residents
and ratepayers to have their say in a manner that they are comfortable with. This
included: face-to-face consultation sessions; online survey; telephone survey and a
PS Live Facebook event.

The draft Waste Management Strategy 2021-2031 was placed on public exhibition for
a period of 28 days from 24 August 2021 to 22 September 2021. During the public
exhibition period, 16 submissions were received and are summarised in
(ATTACHMENT 1).

Further public consultation will be carried out prior to implementation of a third bin,
which is identified in the strategy as a short term action.

OPTIONS

1) Accept the recommendations.
2) Amend the recommendations.
3) Reject the recommendations.

ATTACHMENTS

1) Public Exhibition - Submissions Summary.

2) Waste Management Strategy 2021-2031.

3) Waste Management and Resource Recovery Policy.
COUNCILLORS ROOM

1) Public Exhibition - Full Submissions.
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TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil
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ITEM 19 - ATTACHMENT 1

Waste Management Strategy 2021-2031: Submissions

Author of Comment Council response
submission

PUBLIC EXHIBITION - SUBMISSIONS SUMMARY.

1 Resident Green waste bin should be a service fee Council will be carrying out an
for those residents that would like to utilise, | extensive investigation into the
like upsizing the recycle bin. As majority of | introduction of a third bin.
the Port Stephens LGA are not small lot Investigations will focus on
residential and multi-dwelling/ apartment processing of waste, cost of an
complexes utilise landscaping services that | additional bin and the EPA
dispose of the waste as part of the service | FOGO mandate.
charge. Suggestions and issues raised

by residents, will be included in
A green waste bin is not suitable as a this investigation.
necessity for all of Port Stephens LGA. Once complete, decisions can
be made on the make up and
sizing of bins and the frequency
of collection.
This information will then be
used in the business case for
implementation.

2 Resident We need to reduce material going to See Council response to
landfill so communicate this: 1) use price Submission 1.
as a signal; downsize the red bins (keeping
weekly collection as health issue) but
provide larger/ current size at a price, and
2) add green bins for compostables,
allowing people to reduce size of red bin
use. 3) Provide larger yellow bins routinely.

3 Resident | would just like to say | think it would be so | See Council response to
much better having a green lid bin. As we | Submission 1.
do a fair bit of gardening and sometimes
don't have room in our red lid bin. So 100%
agree to having a green lid bin.

4 Resident Red Bin — provide a choice if a big or small | See Council response to
red bin. There are two of us so we needa | Submission 1.
small bin. People with bigger families need
a bigger bin. The choice is what could
work. Keep the weekly pick up.

Green Bins — Please introduce green bins
fortnightly pick up.
Yellow bins — Same as now.

5 Resident There is no mention of Green Bins. Green | See Council response to
waste could be collected separately, Submission 1.
processed, and made available as mulch
for ratepayers to use.

Please advise the current waste Council will be preparing

management process in relation to green educational material which

waste? Is it going to landfill? outlines what happens with each
waste stream.

The ratepayers of Port Stephens deserve | This strategy confims Council’s

an environmentally responsible Council. commitment to being an
environmentally responsible
council. Future initiatives will
focus on reducing our
environmental footprint.
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ITEM 19 - ATTACHMENT 1

PUBLIC EXHIBITION - SUBMISSIONS SUMMARY.

6

Resident

Since the introduction of a third bin type for
garden organics or food & garden organics
would contribute most to allowing council
to meet the EPA targets, and since this
option is very popular with your residents, |
submit that it should be introduced.

See Council response to
Submission 1.

Resident

¢ A 360-litre minimum size bin be
introduced replacing the 240 lifre
smaller and inadequate size dual
purpose use of the current red bin.

* Council introduces a fortnightly pick up
of the new and separate collection
schedule 360 litre bin.

e The 360-litre bin be available only to
Rural Residential and larger land areas.

* A 240-litre specific general waste bin
be introduced on a fortnightly collection
for all nommal residential R2 zonings.

o The option in R2 areas for residents to
present a case for the larger bin.

A 360-litre bin would closely accommodate
[but be less in capacity] than the current
disposal of our approx. 384 litre wastes
based on a new fortnightly pick-up
schedule.

The introduction of the larger 360 litre size
for Rural Residential + areas would clearly
support the many anticipated outcomes in
Management outsourcing and cost
efficiency: both to the Contractor and
Council.

See Council response to
Submission 1.

Resident

Size of bins — From my observations
around the state and in Victoria | find that
the 240L bins are the most practical. The
smaller bins which | believe are only 85L
tend to become overfilled and people look
for less full bins in the street to deposit
there extra weekly rubbish. As an older
member of the community the larger 360L
bins are too heavy to locate at the kerb
side, particularly if ones house is situated
on steep sloping ground.

Electronic Waste — | live in Nelson Bay so
having to travel to the Salamander Bay
Recycling Depot is too far away when one
only has a relative small electronic item to
dispose of. This article is then places in the
RED Bin. Is it possible to have a collection
point in the NB Council Depot for electronic
waste. This site, say is only open one day
a week, within the depot site and with the
approval of the Site Foreman or some
other approved person.

See Council response to
Submission 1.

Council will consider all options

to make it easier for residents to
dispose of electronic and other

problem waste.

Resident

Comments on green bins:
o | arger rural blocks don’t need it.

See Council response to
Submission 1.
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ITEM 19 - ATTACHMENT 1

PUBLIC EXHIBITION - SUBMISSIONS SUMMARY.

Congestion of bins in built up areas.
Units in high density don't need it.

Who wants one could get one.

Garden waste to go in red bin to help
composition.

¢ Use disused mine sites in Hunter Valley
for waste.

Stephens

single-use plastics ban — this could also
include promoting local businesses already
taking a lead on providing plastic free and
reusable alternatives.

PFPS supports the expansion of Council's
waste education program. This initiative
could be further improved by changing the
intent of the action to committing to the
implementation of an improved waste
education program (rather than just
“exploring the expansion of...” page 20).

PFPS would like to see the strategy
include specific actions resulting in
reduced per capita waste through waste
avoidance. For example, a targeted
program to better manage waste and litter
generated by residents, visitors and
holiday makers. We believe education on
waste reduction/ avoidance, as well as
composting and correct separation /
minimising contamination of recyclable
wastes, are all key to help transition Port
Stephens residents towards adoption of
smaller red bins and to improve Council's
overall performance in the waste diversion
rate.

PFPS would like to see Circular Economy
principles incorporated in to specific
actions. For example purchase of products
with recycled content for Council projects.

10 | Climate Action CAPS support aims to reduce the Council acknowledges and
Port Stephens Community’s Environmental Footprint: appreciates the support of
e A Circular Economy approach and Climate Action Port Stephens in
utilisation of the NSW Waste our aim to reduce the
Management Hierarchy. Community’s Environmental
¢ A commitment to increase Community | Footprint.
Education around Waste; and
¢ Inclusion of Performance Measures
and Targets.
Disappointed no commitment to green bin | See Council response to
implementation. Submission 1.
11 | Resident Introduction of third bin should result in This suggestion will be referred
changes to open burn policy. to the Natural System team.
12 | Resident Disagree with green bin (rural area). See Council response to
Submission 1.
13 | Plastic Free Port | PFPS enthusiastically supports the local Council acknowledges and

appreciates the support from
Plastic Free Port Stephens.

Education is a key component of
the strategy. A waste education
program will be developed as
part of this strategy. Council's
Waste Services team is happy
to work with PFPS to promote
education within the community.

Performance measures and
targets are outlined in recently
released EPA documentation
including reduction of waste per
capita, which the strategy makes
a commitment to achieve.

Council are using Circular
Economy principals in utilising
these products in civil projects,
examples are the use of green
concrete made from recycled
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ITEM 19 - ATTACHMENT 1

PUBLIC EXHIBITION - SUBMISSIONS SUMMARY.

PFPS supports the development of a
Sustainable Events Policy — reducing the
amount of single-use waste items
generated at public events will help reduce
the event's footprint and promote more
sustainable alternatives to disposable and
non-recyclable wastes.

Litter prevention and management - PFPS
has run local clean up events and we have
appreciated Council's support at Clean Up
Australia Day events. We are eager to
partner with Council on more regular
events in future. This action could be
further improved through identification of
local problem litter hotspots and litter
source reduction activities, e.g. auditing
over-full commercial bins, cigarette butt
hotspots, and encouraging participants to
record clean up data in the Australian
Marine Debris Database.

PFPS is collaborating with Salamander
Bay Recycling Centre on the recent roll out
of a TerraCycle bin hub for recycling of
specific items, including soft plastics,
empty oral care and beauty product
containers, gloves and safety equipment
(such as face masks), office supplies
(pens, etc) and textiles. PFPS received
grant funding support from PSC Mayoral
funds for this. To date the textiles container
has been particularly well used, providing a
good indication that the Waste Strategy’s
proposal for a textile collection and
recycling trial would be a worthwhile
activity for Council to implement.

PFPS supports collaborating with other
local regional Councils, and information
sharing between businesses, residents
and communities on topics of interest, e.g.
better promotion of the Small Acts Big
Change campaign).

materials and reconophalt,
which is a recycled asphalt
material.

Council acknowledges and
appreciates the support of
Plastics Free Port Stephens.

Council’'s Waste Services team
will be collaborating with PFPS
on litter prevention and
management campaigns.

Council’'s Waste Services team
is happy to collaborate with
PFPS to investigate textile
collection and recycling options

Council acknowledges and
appreciates the support from
Plastic Free Port Stephens.

14

EcoNetwork

Strategy does not provide detail on waste
education or promotion of a Circular
Economy beyond Council's own waste
management services. Ongoing public
education must be a key element of
community waste management.

Education is a key component of
the strategy. A waste education
program will be developed as
part of this strategy. Council are
using Circular Economy
principals in utilising these
products in civil projects,
examples are using green
concrete made from recycled
materials and reconophalt,
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ITEM 19 - ATTACHMENT 1

PUBLIC EXHIBITION - SUBMISSIONS SUMMARY.

The Strategy needs to be integrated more
closely with relevant Council Policies and
should include targets, performance
measures and monitoring, and reporting
provisions.

We welcome the investigation of a third
green bin option and the suggestion of a
wider range of bin sizes to better match the
very variable quantities of waste generated
by different households, with green waste
destined for compost rather than sent to
landfill.

We agree that the trapping and filtering of
waste at stormwater outlets is
unsatisfactory as not all outlets have solid
waste traps causing large quantities of
solid waste to routinely flush into bays and
ocean causing environmental damage and
littering of the waterways. This needs to be
rectified.

which is a recycled asphalt
material.

Performance measures and
targets are outlined in recently
released EPA documentation,
which the strategy makes a
commitment to achieve.

See Council response to
Submission 1.

Stormwater issues will be
referred to the Civil Assets team
for investigation.

15 | Tomaree
Ratepayer
Residents
Association

Whether the third bin would only be for
Garden organics (GOO or also for Food
organics (FOGO).

The practical problems in ensuring that
green waste collected in a third bin is not
contaminated by other refuse such that the
same constraints on use of the output as
currently apply to the composted output
from the ARRT facility

The additional costs of a third bin and
separate collection and processing.

The net costs or benefits of diverting green
waste from the red bin waste stream
currently processed through the ARRT
facility.

Calls for Council o do more regarding
climate change.

Expectation that third bin investigation
would be further advanced.

Litter on road verges throughout the LGA.
Some stretches of major access roads
such as Nelson Bay Road and Port

See Council response to
Submission 1.

Council is working with SUEZ on
alternative uses for composted
waste which are currently
commercial in confidence.

This strategy confirns Council's
commitment to reducing our
environmental footprint and
supporting climate change.

There are many factors to
consider as part of introducing a
third bin. Rather than making
assumptions, Council's
preference was for residents to
have input into what is best for
their community.

Improvements to roadside litter
collection will be reviewed in
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ITEM 19 - ATTACHMENT 1

PUBLIC EXHIBITION - SUBMISSIONS SUMMARY.

Stephens Drive are routinely disfigured by
unsightly litter, which can often persist until
in some cases it is ‘minced’ by Council
mowers. Many local landcare and other
groups, and individual residents, remove
roadside litter on a voluntary basis but this
is not a sufficient solution. As with public
waste bins, we acknowledge the cost of
increased litter removal, but again submit
that it must be given a higher priority.

Request further collaboration with non
Council waste management and resource
recovery initiatives.

consultation with other relevant
business units within Council.

Council plans to incorporate and
trial smartbins in Nelson Bay
with sensors to alert bin is full,
as well as trialling the use of
compactor bins in high density
areas.

Council’s renewed education
focus, plans to incorporate and
include non Council waste
enterprises throughout the
Council area with Council
already involved collaboratively
with Plastic Free Port Stephens
in clean up events and having
daily interaction with
Salamander Bay Recycling
Centre through The Salamander
Bay Transfer Station.

16

Resident

Calls for more education and better public
place waste collection including recycling.

Don't agree with third bin due to
congestion.

Education is a key component of
the strategy. A waste education
program will be developed as
part of this strategy.

See Council response to
Submission 1.

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL

339




MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

ITEM 19 - ATTACHMENT 2 =~ WASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2021-2031.
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ITEM 19 - ATTACHMENT 3~ WASTE MANAGEMENT AND RESOURCE
RECOVERY POLICY.
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ITEM NO. 20 FILE NO: 21/268533
EDRMS NO: PSC2019-04770-004

REVIEW OF DOG OFF LEAD AREAS - BOAT HARBOUR

REPORT OF: JOHN MARETICH - ASSET SECTION MANAGER
GROUP: FACILITIES & SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Endorse the extension of the Boat Harbour beach dog off lead area trial for an
additional 3 months beyond the current trial before being reported back to
Council.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

297 Councillor Chris Doohan
Councillor John Nell

It was resolved that Council endorse the extension of the Boat Harbour
beach dog off lead area trial for an additional 3 months beyond the current
trial before being reported back to Council.

The motion was carried.
BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to seek Council's endorsement to extend the trial period
for the temporary dog off lead provisions on Boat Harbour beach for an additional 3
months to conclude on Friday 4 February 2022.

The trial commenced on Wednesday 4 August 2021 and was communicated to the
community via a media release, site signage and social media. An online survey was
also launched at the commencement of the trial to capture feedback from the
community. The trial and survey are both scheduled to conclude Thursday 4
November 2021.

Community survey results to date have been provided within (ATTACHMENT 1) for
consideration.

Whilst the trial period has provided useful insight into the suitability of Boat Harbour
beach as a dog off lead area, there are a number of limiting factors that prevent
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Council from comprehensively understanding the impact of dogs on Boat Harbour
beach. These limiting factors are:

e Recent COVID lock downs throughout the trial period have prevented people from
accessing public spaces for recreation purposes. Therefore anyone who usually
visits Boat Harbour from outside of Port Stephens may not have had an
opportunity to visit during the trial.

e The current trial period does not extend over the peak tourist holiday period being
the Christmas School holidays. Extending the trial over the Christmas holidays will
increase engagement and provide a more comprehensive understanding of issues
that may arise from dogs on Boat Harbour beach.

e The current trial period will conclude prior to a Council dog awareness event
planned to be held on-site in December (clear of COVID restrictions). Council staff
along with community volunteers will be engaging with the community to raise
awareness of how to enjoy public spaces with your dogs in a safe and enjoyable
way. This event would provide a great opportunity to engage on the Boat Harbour
trial.

To overcome the above limitations, it is recommended that Council extends the off
lead trial for a further 3 months to conclude on Friday 4 February 2022 before being
reported back to Council.

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction Delivery Program 2018-2022

Infrastructure and Facilities Plan civil and community infrastructure to
support the community.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The recommendations will have a financial implication on Council as a result of the
additional social media, signage and staff resources to support the extended trial.
These costs will be accommodated within the existing operational budgets.

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)
Existing budget Yes $300 Estimated costs incurred from

signage modifications and
online media campaign.

Reserve Funds No
Developer Contributions | No
(§7.11)

External Grants No
Other No
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LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

The NSW Companion Animal Act is the overall guide and statutory basis which must
be abided by when providing dog off lead exercise areas. This Act sets down a guide
for the provision of exercise areas, where Companion Animals exercise areas are
permitted and also prohibits companion animals from certain areas eg. children’s play
areas or public food preparation/consumption areas.

The risks associated with endorsing the recommendations are detailed in the table
below:

Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within
Rankin Existing
Resources?
There is a risk that Low Time restrictions during peak | Yes
increased usage of Boat usage periods will reduce the
Harbour beach as a dog adverse impact of dogs on
off lead exercise area users and the environment.

may have adverse
impacts on other users
experience and the
environment.

There is arisk that if the | Low Endorse the Yes
trial period is not recommendations of the
extended, Council will be Report.

making a decision based
on limited information
and not adequately
address community
needs.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

There are clear social, economic and environmental benefits for providing off lead
areas that have access to water.

Dog off lead areas provide a public recreational space for pets and their owners to
safely interact with other animals and members of the community. They provide
people with the opportunity for social contact and improving social cohesion within a
community. It is the intention that trialling Boat Harbour beach as an off lead area will
provide useful insight into the suitability of the beach to be utilised as an off lead area
over the longer term.
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CONSULTATION

Consultation with key stakeholders has been undertaken by the Assets Section. The
objective of the consultation was to understand how the recommendations of the
report would impact the affected stakeholders.

Internal

Community Development and Engagement — to note survey responses received to
date and to understand the impact of extending the trial period on staff resources.

OPTIONS
1) Accept the recommendation.

2) Amend the recommendation.
3) Reject the recommendation.

ATTACHMENTS

1) Trial Survey Results.
COUNCILLORS ROOM
Nil.

TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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ITEM 20 - ATTACHMENT 1  TRIAL SURVEY RESULTS.
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ITEM NO. 21 FILE NO: 21/227422
EDRMS NO: PSC2015-01492

AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2020 TO 2021

REPORT OF: WAYNE WALLIS - GENERAL MANAGER
GROUP: GENERAL MANAGER'S OFFICE

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1) Endorse the Audit Committee 2020 to 2021 Annual Report as presented
(ATTACHMENT 1).

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

2987 Councillor Chris Doohan
Councillor John Nell

It was resolved that Council endorse the Audit Committee 2020 to 2021
Annual Report as presented (ATTACHMENT 1).

The motion was carried.
BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to present to Council the Audit Committee's Annual
Report for the period 2020 to 2021.

The Audit Committee has been established in accordance with the Office of Local
Government '‘Best Practice Guidelines 08/64'.

The Annual Report to Council summarises the Audit Committees activities for the
2020 to 2021 period in accordance with the Audit Committee Charter, item 5.1
Reporting to Council (ATTACHMENT 1).

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction Delivery Program 2018-2022
Governance Provide a strong ethical governance
structure.

PORT STEPHENS COUNCIL 378



MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 26 OCTOBER 2021

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Costs associated with the activities of the Audit Committee and development of the
Annual Report are covered within existing budget.

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | No

(S7.11)

External Grants No

Other No

LEGAL, POLICY AND RISK IMPLICATIONS

Audit Committee activities remain consistent with the Audit Committee Charter, all
relative legislative requirements and the Office of Local Government Guidelines.

Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within
Rankin Existing
Resources?
There is a risk that Low Accept the recommendation. | Yes

Council is not compliant
with the Audit Committee
Charter and relevant
legislation.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

It is considered that the Audit Committee will continue to add significant rigour to
Council's governance framework, risk control, compliance and financial reporting and
will enhance Council's reputation, operations and financial sustainability.

CONSULTATION

Consultation with key stakeholders has been undertaken by the General Manager's
Office.

Internal

e Executive Team.
e Audit Committee officers.
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External

Audit Committee members.
OPTIONS

1) Accept the recommendation.

2) Amend the recommendation.
3) Reject the recommendation.

ATTACHMENTS

1) Audit Committee Annual Report 2020 to 2021.
COUNCILLORS ROOM

Nil.

TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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ITEM 21 - ATTACHMENT 1 AUDIT COMIMTTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2020 TO
2021.
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ITEM 21 - ATTACHMENT 1 AUDIT COMIMTTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2020 TO
2021.
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ITEM 21 - ATTACHMENT 1 AUDIT COMIMTTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2020 TO
2021.
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ITEM 21 - ATTACHMENT 1 AUDIT COMIMTTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2020 TO
2021.
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ITEM 21 - ATTACHMENT 1 AUDIT COMIMTTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2020 TO
2021.
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ITEM NO. 22 FILE NO: 21/249663

EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00178

REQUEST FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

REPORT OF: WAYNE WALLIS - GENERAL MANAGER
GROUP: GENERAL MANAGER'S OFFICE

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

1)

a.

Approves provision of financial assistance under Section 356 of the Local
Government Act 1993 from Mayoral and Ward funds to the following:-
Irrawang High School — Mayoral funds - $4500 donation towards

a sensory garden project for students in the Support Faculty.

Irrawang High School — Cr Paul Le Mottee — Rapid Response - $500 donation
towards a sensory garden project for students in the Support Faculty.
Irrawang High School — Cr Giacomo Arnott — Rapid Response - $500

donation towards equipment for a sensory garden for students in the Support
Faculty.

Port Stephens Family and Neighbourhood Services — Cr Giacomo Arnott —
Rapid Response - $500 donation towards community COVID-19 support.

Fern Bay Community Centre Committee — Cr Paul Le Mottee — Rapid
Response - $500 donation towards Wi-Fi installation and operating costs for
Fern Bay Community Hall.

Birubi Point Surf Life Saving Club Incorporated — Central Ward funds - $3000
donation towards purchase of a trauma kit and inflatable rescue boat motor.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

297

Councillor Chris Doohan
Councillor John Nell

It was resolved that Council approves provision of financial assistance
under Section 356 of the Local Government Act 1993 from Mayoral and
Ward funds to the following:-

a. lrrawang High School — Mayoral funds - $4500 donation towards
a sensory garden project for students in the Support Faculty.

b. Irrawang High School — Cr Paul Le Mottee — Rapid Response - $500
donation towards a sensory garden project for students in the
Support Faculty.
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c. Irrawang High School — Cr Giacomo Arnott — Rapid Response -
$500 donation towards equipment for a sensory garden for students
in the Support Faculty.

d. Port Stephens Family and Neighbourhood Services — Cr Giacomo
Arnott — Rapid Response - $500 donation towards community
COVID-19 support.

e. Fern Bay Community Centre Committee — Cr Paul Le Mottee —
Rapid Response - $500 donation towards Wi-Fi installation and
operating costs for Fern Bay Community Hall.

f. Birubi Point Surf Life Saving Club Incorporated — Central Ward funds
- $3000 donation towards purchase of a trauma kit and inflatable
rescue boat motor.

The motion was carried.
BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to determine and, where required, authorise payment of
financial assistance to recipients judged by the Mayor and or Councillors as
deserving of public funding. The Grants and Donations Policy gives the Mayor and
Councillors a wide discretion either to grant or to refuse any requests.

Council's Grants and Donations Policy provides the community, the Mayor and
Councillors with a number of options when seeking financial assistance from Council.
Those options being:

1) Mayoral Funds
2) Rapid Response
3) Community Capacity Building

Council is unable to grant approval of financial assistance to individuals unless it is
performed in accordance with the Local Government Act 1993. This would mean that
the financial assistance would need to be included in the Operational Plan or Council
would need to advertise for 28 days of its intent to grant approval. Council can make
donations to community groups.

The requests for financial assistance are shown below:

MAYORAL FUNDS — Mayor Palmer

Irrawang High Irrawang High School is a | $4500 Donation towards
School government funded a sensory garden
coeducational secondary project for students
day school located at in the Support
Raymond Terrace. Faculty at the
school.
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WARD FUNDS
Irrawang High Irrawang High School is a | $500 Donation towards
School government funded a sensory garden
coeducational secondary project for students
day school located at in the Support
Raymond Terrace. Faculty at the
school.
Irrawang High Irrawang High School is a | $500 Donation towards
School government funded equipment for a
coeducational secondary sensory garden for
day school located at students in the
Raymond Terrace. Support Faculty at
the school.
Port Stephens Port Stephens Family $500 Donation towards
Family and and Neighbourhood community
Neighbourhood Service is an COVID-19 support.
Service incorporated not for profit
organisation providing
community services in
the Port Stephens LGA.
Fern Bay The Committee is $500 Donation towards
Community Centre | managed by volunteers Wi-Fi installation
Committee managing bookings for and operating
the community. costs at Fern Bay
Community
Centre.
Birubi Point Surf The Birubi Point Surf Life | $3000 Donation towards

Life Saving Club
Incorporated

Saving Club is a small
club with a proud history
of keeping people safe
while they relax and
enjoy our spectacular
environment.

the purchase of a
trauma kit and
inflatable rescue
boat motor.

COMMUNITY STRATEGIC PLAN

Strategic Direction

Delivery Program 2018-2022

Community Partnerships

Support financially creative and active
communities.
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FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | No

(§7.11)

External Grants No

Other No

LEGAL AND POLICY IMPLICATIONS

To qualify for assistance under Section 356(1) of the Local Government Act 1993, the
purpose must assist the Council in the exercise of its functions. Functions under the
Act include the provision of community, culture, health, sport and recreation services
and facilities.

The policy interpretation required is whether the Council believes that:

a) applicants are carrying out a function, which it, the Council, would otherwise
undertake.

b) the funding will directly benefit the community of Port Stephens.

c) applicants do not act for private gain.

Risk Risk Proposed Treatments Within
Rankin Existing
Resources?
There is a risk that Low Adopt the Yes
Council may set a recommendations.

precedent when
allocating funds to the
community and an
expectation those funds
will always be available.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Includes Social, Economic and Environmental Implications

Nil.
CONSULTATION

Consultation with key stakeholders has been undertaken by the General Manager's
Office.
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Consultation has been undertaken with the key stakeholders to ensure budget
requirements are met and approved.

OPTIONS
1) Accept the recommendation.

2) Vary the dollar amount before granting each or any request.
3) Decline to fund all the requests.

ATTACHMENTS

Nil.

COUNCILLORS ROOM
Nil.

TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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ITEM NO. 23 FILE NO: 21/272471
EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00015

INFORMATION PAPERS

REPORT OF: WAYNE WALLIS - GENERAL MANAGER
GROUP: GENERAL MANAGER'S OFFICE

RECOMMENDATION IS THAT COUNCIL:

Receives and notes the Information Papers listed below being presented to Council
on 26 October 2021.

No: Report Title Page:
1 Quarterly Grants Update — 30 September 2021 393
2 Council Meetings during Election Period 395
3 Council Resolutions 396
4 September 2021 Cash and Investments 408
5 Questions on Notice/Questions with Notice 411

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 26 OCTOBER 2021
MOTION

297 Councillor Chris Doohan
Councillor John Nell

It was resolved that Council receives and notes the Information Papers
listed below being presented to Council on 26 October 2021.

No: Report Title

Quarterly Grants Update — 30 September 2021
Council Meetings during Election Period
Council Resolutions

September 2021 Cash and Investments
Questions on Notice/Questions with Notice

abrwnN -

The motion was carried.
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INFORMATION PAPERS
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ITEMNO. 1 FILE NO: 21/271463
EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00180

QUARTERLY GRANTS UPDATE - 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

REPORT OF: TIM HAZELL - FINANCIAL SERVICES SECTION MANAGER
GROUP: CORPORATE SERVICES

BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with a quarterly update on its Grants
status.

ATTACHMENTS

1) Quarterly Grant Update - Q1 2021-2022.
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ITEM1-ATTACHMENT 1

Grants status
for the period 1 July 2021 to 30 September 2021

QUARTERLY GRANT UPDATE - Q1 2021-2022.

Grant Section Team Status Value
Fixing Local Roads 2020-2021 Round 3 Assets Civil Projects Successful 1,364,970
Total | 1,364,970
Grant Section Team Status Value
2022 NSW Seniors Festival Grants Program Communications gﬁgnlrz'nnugn;tgerl?nee\ﬁlopment Awaiting Outcome 10,000
Black Spot Programme 2022-23 Assets Civil Projects Awaiting Outcome [3,257,500
ClubGrants Infrastructure Grants 2021-22 Round 1 | Assets Community and Recreation Awaiting Outcome 170,000
Coastal and Estuary Grants Program 2021-22 Strategy and Environment |[Natural Resources Awaiting Outcome 119,275
Festivals Australia Program - September 2021 Communications gﬁgnlrz'nnugn;tgerl?nee\ﬁlopment Awaiting Outcome 21,885
Regional Tourism Activation Fund Assets Community and Recreation Awaiting Outcome [3,617,342
Regional Tourism Activation Fund Assets Civil Projects Awaiting Outcome [396,467
Youth Opportunities Program 2021-22 Communications gﬁgngnugn;gegnz\ﬁmpmem Awaiting Outcome 50,000
Total | 7,542,469

There were no unsuccessful grants to report for the period 1 July 2021 to 30 September 2021.
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ITEM NO. 2 FILE NO: 21/206096
EDRMS NO: A2004-0284

COUNCIL MEETINGS DURING ELECTION PERIOD

REPORT OF: TONY WICKHAM - GOVERNANCE SECTION MANAGER
GROUP: GENERAL MANAGER'S OFFICE

BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to inform Council that ordinary meetings of Council
scheduled to be held between the period 5 November 2021 up to the declaration of
the election poll will be cancelled, as there will be no operational reports to be
considered.

Council is required to meet at least 10 times each year between 1 July and 30 June.
To date, a total of 8 meetings have been held since July 2021, including this meeting.

The local government election caretaker period commences from 5 November 2021
and concludes after Election Day. The NSW Electoral Commission has announced
the declaration of the poll will occur between 21 to 23 December 2021. The timetable
released by the NSWEC (at this point in time) for the period post the election is
provided below:

e 25 October 2021 Candidate nominations open

e 26 October 2021 Lodgement of postal vote applications open

e 3 November 2021 Candidate nominations close

e 4 November 2021 Ballot paper draw

e 22 November 2021 Pre-poll voting period and iVote applications open
e 29 November 2021 Close of postal voting applications

e 3 December 2021 Close of pre-poll voting period

e 4 December 2021 Election day (8am—6pm)

e 17 December 2021 Return of completed postal vote certificates (6pm)
e 21to 23 December 2021  Declaration of results

ATTACHMENTS

Nil.

COUNCILLORS ROOM
Nil.

TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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ITEM NO. 3 FILE NO: 21/249671
EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00106

COUNCIL RESOLUTIONS

REPORT OF: WAYNE WALLIS - GENERAL MANAGER
GROUP: GENERAL MANAGER'S OFFICE

BACKGROUND
The purpose of this report is to inform the Mayor and Councillors of the status of all
matters to be dealt with arising out of the proceedings of previous meetings of the

Council in accordance with the Code of Meeting Practice.

The General Manager’s Office currently has no outstanding actions.
ATTACHMENTS

1) Corporate Services Group report.

2) Development Services Group report.

3) Facilities & Services Group report.

COUNCILLORS ROOM

Nil.

TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.
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ITEM 3 - ATTACHMENT 1 CORPORATE SERVICES GROUP REPORT.
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ITEM 3 - ATTACHMENT 1 CORPORATE SERVICES GROUP REPORT.
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ITEM 3 - ATTACHMENT 2 DEVELOPMENT SERVICES GROUP REPORT.
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ITEM 3 - ATTACHMENT 2 DEVELOPMENT SERVICES GROUP REPORT.
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ITEM 3 - ATTACHMENT 3 FACILITIES & SERVICES GROUP REPORT.
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ITEM 3 - ATTACHMENT 3 FACILITIES & SERVICES GROUP REPORT.
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ITEM 3 - ATTACHMENT 3 FACILITIES & SERVICES GROUP REPORT.
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ITEM 3 - ATTACHMENT 3 FACILITIES & SERVICES GROUP REPORT.
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ITEM 3 - ATTACHMENT 3 FACILITIES & SERVICES GROUP REPORT.
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ITEM 3 - ATTACHMENT 3 FACILITIES & SERVICES GROUP REPORT.
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ITEM 3 - ATTACHMENT 3 FACILITIES & SERVICES GROUP REPORT.
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ITEM NO. 4 FILE NO: 21/274371
EDRMS NO: PSC2006-6531

SEPTEMBER 2021 CASH AND INVESTMENTS

REPORT OF: TIM HAZELL - FINANCIAL SERVICES SECTION MANAGER
GROUP: CORPORATE SERVICES

BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to present Council’s schedule of cash and investments
held at 30 September 2021.

ATTACHMENTS

1) September 2021 Cash and Investments.
2) September 2021 Cash Flow Report.
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ITEM 4 - ATTACHMENT 1 SEPTEMBER 2021 CASH AND INVESTMENTS.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS HELD AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2021

ISSUER BROKER RATING DESC. YIELD % TDEA':,;' MATURITY |:3€SUTTD "Lﬁﬁ?
TERM DEPOSITS
ICBC IMPERIUM A D 1.62% 720 130ct21 1,000,000 1,000,000
ALUSWIDE BANK IMPERIUM BEE an] 1.65% 731 15-0ct-21 500,000 500,000
MACQUARIE BANK LAMINAR A e} 0.70% 286  25-0ck-21 1,000,000 1,000,000
MUTUAL BANK MUTUAL BANK MR el 0.90% 159 27-0ct21 700,000 700,000
AMP BANK LAMIMAR BBB+ D 0.75% 365  25-Mow-21 1,250,000 1,250,000
DEFENCE BANK CURVE BEB e} 0.60% 367 6Dec-21 600,000 600,000
AMP BANK LAMINAR BBE ] 0.75% 37 8Dec21 550,000 550,000
AMP BANK LAMIMAR BBB an] 0.75% 376 15Dec21 350,000 350,000
JUDO BANK LAMINAR BBB D 0.84% 385 22-Dec-21 350,000 350,000
JUDO BANK LAMINAR BEB D 0.85% 383 22Dec-21 550,000 550,000
NAB LAMINAR Al D 0.50% 386 23Dec21 1,000,000 1,000,000
DEFEMCE BANK CURVE BBB an] 0.60% 399 5-Jan-22 1,000,000 1,000,000
MAB LAMINAR Al e} 0.50% 399 5-Jan-22 1,000,000 1,000,000
NAB LAMINAR s el 0.50% 413 19-Jan-22 1,000,000 1,000,000
BANK OF SYDNEY LAMIMAR HR D 0.70% 391 18-Jan-22 750,000 750,000
MACQUARIE BANK LAMINAR A D 0.70% 385 1-Feb-22 1,000,000 1,000,000
AUSWIDE BANK RIM BBB D] 1.73% 701 2Feb-22 1,250,000 1,250,000
JUDO BAMK RIM BBB an] 0.70% 204 12-Apr-22 1,000,000 1,000,000
DEFENCE BANK CURVE BEB e} 0.65% 539 75-May-22 1,000,000 1,000,000
DEFENCE BANK CURVE BEB el 0.65% 550 7-Jun-22 600,000 600,000
MOVE BANK RIM HR D 0.85% 384 21-Jun-22 1,000,000 1,000,000
MOVE BANK RIM NR an] 0.85% 391 28-Jun-22 500,000 500,000
LIUDO BANK RIM BBE ] 0.75% 392 19-Jul-22 1,000,000 1,000,000
BNK BANK RIM MR D 1.02% 356 2Aug22 1,000,000 1,000,000
JUDO BANK LAMINAR BBB D 0.80% 349 18-Aug-22 875,000 875,000
BNHK BANK LAMINAR MR D 0.77% 376 14-Sep-22 875,000 875,000
JUDO BANK LAMIMAR BBB D] 0.80% 390  28-Sep-22 875,000 875,000
SUB TOTAL ($) 22,575,000 22,575,000
TCORP CASH FUND TCORP AAA 2,000,000 1,999,506
TCORP SHORT TERM INCOME FUND TCORP AAA 5,000,000 5,019,330
TCORP MEDIUM TERM GROWTH FUND TCORP AAA 5,500,000 5,828,272
TCORP LONG TERM GROWTH FUND TCORP AAA 3,000,000 3,285,678
INVESTMENTS TOTAL ($) 38,075,000 38,707,786
CASH AT BANK ($) 4,196,178 4,196,178
TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS ($) 42,371,178 42,903,964
CASH AT BANK INTEREST RATE 0.20%
BESW FOR PREVIOUS 3 MONTHS 0.02%
AVG. INVESTMENT RATE OF RETURN ON TDs 0.82%
TD = TERM DEPOSIT
AC = AT CALL CASH ACCOUNT
FRTD = FLOATING RATE TERM DEPOSIT
*STAMDARD AND POORS LONG TERM RATING
CERTIFICATE OF RESPONSIBLE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE INVESTMENTS LISTED ABOVE HAVE BEEN MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 625 OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1993, CLAUSE 212 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (GENERAL ) REGULATION 2005 AND
COUNCIL'S CASH INVESTMENT POLICY
T HAZELL
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ITEM 4 - ATTACHMENT 2 SEPTEMBER 2021 CASH FLOW REPORT.
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ITEM NO. 5 FILE NO: 21/275727
EDRMS NO: PSC2021-02510

QUESTIONS ON NOTICE/QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE

REPORT OF: WAYNE WALLIS - GENERAL MANAGER
GROUP: GENERAL MANAGER'S OFFICE

BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to provide a response to Questions taken on or with
Notice in accordance with the Code of Meeting Practice.

1
Date Received: 12 October 2021

Question with Notice: Did Mayor Ryan Palmer have advance notice of the
motion arising that was to be proposed regarding the
airport board appointment at the 14 May 2019 Council
meeting?

Response: Council has no knowledge of whether Mayor Palmer
had advance notice of the motion in question.
2

Date Received: 12 October 2021

Question with Notice: Did Mayor Ryan Palmer have a conflict of interest
when he voted on a motion which would provide him
personally with $50,000 per year at the 14 May 2019
Council meeting?

Response: The Director’s fee is received directly from Newcastle
Airport Pty Ltd and provided to the community through
the Mayoral fund. It is a matter for elected members to
declare conflicts of interest as they arise.

Item: 3
Councillor: Cr Giacomo Arnott

Date Received: 12 October 2021

Does Mayor Ryan Palmer receive the $50,000
personally from the Newcastle Airport board, and then
donate it to Council, thereby providing a tax benefit to
him personally?
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Response: Council does not have any knowledge on how Mayor
Palmer accounts for the payment in his personal tax
affairs.

In the ordinary course of business, an individual would
not receive any tax benefit in making a donation to Port
Stephens Council as it is not a registered charity or
hold any Deductible Gift Recipient status.

em

Date Received: 12 October 2021

Question with Notice: Does Port Stephens Council account for the $50,000
received from Mayor Ryan Palmer in its annual
financial statements as a payment or donation directly
from Newcastle Airport and, if so, does that provide a
tax benefit to the Airport?

Response: Port Stephens Council accounts for the payment as
income being received from Mayor Palmer and not
Newcastle Airport.

Newcastle Airport accounts for the payment as Director
Fees and would not receive any tax benefit.

ATTACHMENTS

Nil.

COUNCILLORS ROOM
Nil.

TABLED DOCUMENTS

Nil.

The meeting was adjourned 9:26pm. The chair advised the meeting that all
remaining items would be deferred to the meeting of the next term of Council. The
meeting is to be held in the Council Chambers, 116 Adelaide Street, Raymond
Terrace at 5:30pm.
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NOTICES OF MOTION
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NOTICE OF MOTION
ITEM NO. 2 FILE NO: 21/274897

EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00019
CARAVAN PARK COMMUNITIES

COUNCILLOR: GIACOMO ARNOTT

THAT COUNCIL:

1) Requests that the General Manager prepare a report answering the following
guestions relating to ‘caravan park’/lend-lease communities such as Latitude
One and Sunrise:

a) How do energy efficiency standards apply compared to equivalent ‘normal’
developments?

b) How do setbacks apply compared to equivalent ‘normal’ developments?

c) How does noise insulation apply compared to equivalent ‘normal’

developments?

d) How is rate income determined compared to equivalent ‘normal’

developments?

e) What is the average cost of these homes compared to equivalent ‘normal’

developments?

f) Do these communities assist with affordable housing? If so, can examples

please be provided?

BACKGROUND REPORT OF: STEVEN PEART — GROUP MANAGER
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

BACKGROUND

Latitude One and Sunrise developments are developments approved by Council
which permit moveable dwellings to be installed on the land along with associated
facilities such as clubhouses, swimming pools, bowling greens, tennis courts for the
over 55’s population. They provide a secure village environment for seniors and
provide facilities and activities for the occupiers to enjoy.

The moveable dwellings require approval under Section 68 of the Local Government
Act which provides requirements around setbacks and other matters surrounding
amenity.

The rating of moveable dwellings is prescribed by the Local Government Act. The
individual occupiers of the moveable dwellings generally are not subject to rates.
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The overall landowner of the village pays the rates for the village which does result in

lower rate income for Council than if the individual occupiers paid rates.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)
Existing budget Yes
Reserve Funds No
Developer Contributions | No
(S7.11)
External Grants No
Other No
ATTACHMENTS
Nil.
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NOTICE OF MOTION
ITEM NO. 3 FILE NO: 21/274925

EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00019
MEDOWIE LIBRARY

COUNCILLOR: GIACOMO ARNOTT

THAT COUNCIL:

1) Notes the strong population growth in Medowie over the last few years, and
ongoing predicted growth with several residential developments in progress.

2) Asks the General Manager to prepare a report on the viability of a street library
or more regular visits from the mobile library to deliver library services to the
growing population in Medowie.

BACKGROUND REPORT OF: JOHN MARETICH — ASSETS SECTION
MANAGER

BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to provide background information to allow consideration
of the Notice of Motion.

The population of Medowie has grown. The NSW State Library People, Places
Guidelines and Standards suggests 1 Branch Library for every 20,000 people and 1
Library Lounge for every 10,000 people. Based on this guideline and funding
sources, it has been considered that the Raymond Terrace main branch library would
continue to meet the near future population growth in Medowie. Noting that a library
lounge may soon be needed in Medowie.

Until such time that the library lounge is required, the Mobile Library is a service that
Council provides to the Medowie community. At present, the Mobile Library visits
Medowie 5 times per fortnight making stops at Ferodale Road and Kindlebark Drive.

A street library was constructed as part of the recent Medowie 7 Day Makeover and is
operating out of the park adjacent to the Medowie Community Centre.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment

$)

Existing budget Yes
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Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)
Reserve Funds No
Developer Contributions | No
(S7.11)
External Grants No
Other No
ATTACHMENTS
Nil.
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ITEM NO. 4

FORD ROAD, MEDOWIE

COUNCILLOR: GIACOMO ARNOTT

NOTICE OF MOTION

FILE NO: 21/274928

EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00019

THAT COUNCIL:

1) Notes that there is a road deformity at approximately 3 Ford Avenue, Medowie,
in the form of a sharp rise across the width of the road.

2) Asks the General Manager to prepare a report on when a fix to this deformity is

expected to occur.

| BACKGROUND REPORT OF: JOHN MARETICH — ASSETS SECTION MANAGER

BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to provide background information to allow consideration

of the Notice of Motion.

Ford Avenue is a sealed local access street located in the suburb of Medowie.
Council is aware that a number of utility accesses have crossed this road leaving
depressions / humps on the road. While the road itself could be improved for ride-
ability, given the other priorities on Council’s road network, this road is not scheduled
in the near foreseeable future.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The inspection and assessment tasks are able to be completed at no additional

expense to Council.

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | No

(§7.11)

External Grants No

Other No
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ATTACHMENTS

Nil.
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NOTICE OF MOTION
ITEM NO. 5 FILE NO: 21/275090

EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00019
STURGEON STREET, RAYMOND TERRACE

COUNCILLOR: GIACOMO ARNOTT

THAT COUNCIL:

1) Notes that the road in Sturgeon Street, Raymond Terrace is in a poor state.

2) Asks the General Manager to prepare a report outlining when works will be
conducted to repair the road and how to maintain it going into the future.

| BACKGROUND REPORT OF: JOHN MARETICH — ASSETS SECTION MANAGER

BACKGROUND

Sturgeon Street is a Local Road within the recognised Raymond Terrace Town
Centre. The road does change from full width seal in the business end of the street,
to variable seal widths with grass shoulders adjacent to the residential area.

Sturgeon Street between Glenelg Street and Jacaranda Avenue has been submitted
in Round 3 of the NSW Government’s Fixing Local Roads Grant in July. No
announcements have yet been made for Round 3.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)
Existing budget Yes
Reserve Funds No
Developer Contributions | No
(S7.11)
External Grants No
Other No
ATTACHMENTS
Nil.
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NOTICE OF MOTION
ITEM NO. 6 FILE NO: 21/275097

EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00019
RAYMOND TERRACE LAKESIDE PATHWAY

COUNCILLOR: GIACOMO ARNOTT

THAT COUNCIL:

1) Notes the significant number of unregistered motorbikes which travel along the
Lakeside to Medowie pathway behind Raymond Terrace and Richardson
Road.

2) Notes that local families use this path, and should not have to face the physical
danger of unregistered motorbikes when using the pathway.

3) Asks the General Manager to prepare a report on ways to reduce entry points
for unregistered motorbikes, and engineered solutions to prevent usage on the
pathway of unregistered motorbikes.

BACKGROUND REPORT OF: JOHN MARETICH — ASSETS SECTION MANAGER

BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to provide background information to allow consideration
of the Notice of Motion

The shared pedestrian and cyclist pathway between Martens Avenue Reserve and
Lakeside Leisure Centre is approximately 2.5km in length and is intended for active
recreational usage.

Previous site inspections and preliminary investigations confirm that this stretch of
pathway features approximately 20 access points available to motorcyclists. Many of
the access points are extremely wide. Due to the width, dismount points for cyclists
(and motorcycles) could be installed at these entry points, but would also need to be
supplemented with steel cable barrier to be effective at a cost of at least $5,000 per
site. Dismount style treatments were also considered to be placed along the length of
the pathway. Their effectiveness is predicted to be low with the adjoining bushland
providing opportunity to circumnavigate the treatments.

Given motorcycles often feature similar dimension to bicycles, proposed treatments
introduced to prevent motorbikes may have adverse impacts to bicyclists.
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Riding of motorbikes on footpaths is illegal with the NSW Police Force as the
appropriate regulatory authority. Council staff will continue to work with the NSW
Police Force on monitoring the area.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)
Existing budget Yes
Reserve Funds No
Developer Contributions | No
(§7.11)
External Grants No
Other No
ATTACHMENTS
Nil.
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ITEM NO. 7

NOTICE OF MOTION

NELSON BAY ROAD AND GAN GAN ROAD

COUNCILLOR: GIACOMO ARNOTT

FILE NO: 21/275114

EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00019

THAT COUNCIL:

1) Acknowledges the speed change on Nelson Bay Road near the Gan Gan Road
intersection going from 60km/h to 80km/h.

2) Asks Council’'s Traffic Committee to investigate the difficulty in judging car
speeds due to acceleration when trying to turn out of Gan Gan Road and
whether any speed changes or relocation of speed signs is warranted to reduce

risk at this intersection.

BACKGROUND REPORT OF: JOHN MARETICH — ASSETS SECTION MANAGER

BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to provide background information to allow consideration

of the Notice of Motion.

Council has been successful in gaining a Black Spot Grant for the eastern
intersection of Gan Gan Road and Nelson Bay Road. The grant is for the design
stage in 2020-2021 and works in 2022-2023. The project is to improve the

intersection sight distance.

Following the design stage, the project will be estimated and information be
submitted under the same program for works in 2022-2023.

The initial proposed treatments will not require Local Traffic Committee review.

It should be noted that Nelson Bay Road is under the care and control of the NSW
State Government and their approval will be required.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No
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Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)
Developer Contributions | No
(S7.11)
External Grants Yes $50,000 Black Spot Grant design stage.
Other No
ATTACHMENTS
Nil.
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NOTICE OF MOTION
ITEM NO. 8 FILE NO: 21/275143

EDRMS NO: PSC2017-0019

FORESHORE RESERVES

COUNCILLOR: GIACOMO ARNOTT

THAT COUNCIL:

1) Notes the potential damage to our foreshores that unauthorised structures can
cause.

2) Asks the General Manager to prepare a report on existing unauthorised

structures on foreshore areas, and what action Council is taking to have them
removed or development approval provided.

| BACKGROUND REPORT OF: JOHN MARETICH — ASSETS SECTION MANAGER

BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to provide background information to allow consideration
of the Notice of Motion.

Council owns and manages a large portfolio of land for community use. The interface
between private and public land on foreshore reserves can often lead to situations
where clear lines of ownership and responsibility are difficult for property owners to
define.

Council recognises that some adjoining private property owners will undertake works
to beautify and maintain Council's land to the mutual benefit of each party. This is not
dissimilar to the mowing of a nature strip or the removal of leaf litter from kerb
drainage.

In some cases these works extend beyond general maintenance and may result in
private assets being placed on Council land. This can lead to a sense of ownership
and pride that benefits Council and the public. In other cases, this beautification and
encroachment on Council owned or managed land may have a negative impact to
the community, public safety, environment and amenity of the land. The extent of the
encroachment and the organisation's risk appetite determines Council's ability to
accept or deny each encroachment and any further action required.

It is important to note that retrospective development consent cannot be issued by
Council. Council may only permit the encroachment to remain once matters such as
structural adequacy and design have been assessed.
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Council is currently preparing a Coastal Management Program (CMP) in partnership
with the NSW Department of Planning, Industry and Environment (DPIE). The
preparation and implementation of the CMP is legislated under the Coastal
Management Act 2016 and State Environmental Planning Policy (Coastal

Management) 2018.

An outcome of the CMP will be to provide clarity for foreshore landholders who share
an interface with Council owned or managed land. Resources will be made available
to better educate these property owners on land tenure and boundary definition, the
necessary approval process required for works on both private and public land as
well as best practice coastal zone maintenance activities.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)
Existing budget Yes
Reserve Funds No
Developer Contributions | No
(§7.11)
External Grants No
Other No
ATTACHMENTS
Nil.
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NOTICE OF MOTION
ITEMNO. 9 FILE NO: 21/275154

EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00019
REUSABLE NAPPIES AND MENSTRUAL PRODUCTS

COUNCILLOR: GIACOMO ARNOTT

THAT COUNCIL:

1) Notes that other Councils such as Wagga Wagga Council offer rebates to
residents who use reusable nappies and menstrual products, to reduce the
volume of these products reaching landfill.

2) Asks the General Manager to initiate discussions with Council’'s waste provider,
to see whether they would provide a reduction in costs passed on to Council if
these products could be removed from landfill, and using those savings in waste
costs to provide a rebate to those purchasing reusable products.

BACKGROUND REPORT OF: TAMMY GUTSCHE — COMMUNITY SERVICES
SECTION MANAGER

BACKGROUND

The reusable nappy and menstrual products rebate scheme is currently being trialled
across a number of Councils including Wagga Wagga and Penrith. The aim of the
scheme is to take the financial pressure off families and women trying to reduce their
waste footprint. Disposable nappies end up in landfill where they take up to 150 years
to break down. Whilst cloth nappies require detergents and water to wash, they are a
better alternative for both the environment and families’ finances.

Also included in the trial are free community workshops that provide information and
resources around the financial benefits of reusable cloth nappies and menstrual
products, different styles of products and how to clean and maintain them.

Council’'s Waste Services team has commenced research into the rebate scheme as
part of the ‘Source separated organics collection’ option identified in the
implementation plan component of the draft Waste Management Strategy 2021-2031.

As benchmarking of other Councils progresses, discussions will be held with our
waste service provider to look at potential savings that could be achieved, and the
potential to implement within Port Stephens LGA.
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FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)
Existing budget Yes
Reserve Funds No
Developer Contributions | No
(§7.11)
External Grants No
Other No
ATTACHMENTS
Nil.
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NOTICE OF MOTION
ITEM NO. 10 FILE NO: 21/275183

EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00019
FLYING-FOX ISSUES AT ROSS WALLBRIDGE RESERVE

COUNCILLOR: GIACOMO ARNOTT

THAT COUNCIL:

1) Notes that bats at Ross Wallbridge reserve are continuing to be a nuisance for
locals in Raymond Terrace.

2) Requests the General Manager to prepare a report to provide an update on the
flying-fox colony in Ross Wallbridge Reserve that includes:

e An update on the current flying-fox numbers; and
e Clarification on the flying-fox management actions in place for the reserve.

BACKGROUND REPORT OF: JANELLE GARDNER — STRATEGY &
ENVIRONMENT SECTION MANAGER

BACKGROUND

Flying-fox first established a camp at Newbury Park, Raymond Terrace in summer
2011 and then later at the adjacent Ross Wallbridge reserve in 2016. Historically, the
camp has been primarily occupied by the Grey-headed Flying-fox with the population
varying seasonally over time in response to food resources.

The Grey-headed Flying-fox is listed as a ‘vulnerable’ species under both the
Commonwealth Environmental Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999
and the NSW Biodiversity Conservation Act 2016. The Raymond Terrace Flying-fox
camp is also recognised and protected as a ‘Nationally Important Camp’ under the
Environmental Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999.

The number of flying-fox in the reserve varies substantially over time, particularly
seasonally, in response to food resources and habitat changes. The Raymond
Terrace Flying-fox Camp is located adjacent to residential areas, approximately 700
metres east of Raymond Terrace shopping district, and is a cause of conflict and
community concern due to noise, smell and excrement impacts, as well as potential
health risk perceptions by the community.

The Raymond Terrace Flying-fox Camp Management Plan, prepared in 2016,
provides a tool to ensure appropriate management of the camp. This management
plan outlines the issues of concern to the community caused by the presence of
flying-fox and the measures that will be taken to manage the land and reduce conflict
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with the local community. Council also undertakes regular flying-fox population

monitoring and has adopted specific processes to limit impacts on the colony during
routine maintenance activities.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)
Existing budget Yes
Reserve Funds No
Developer Contributions | No
(§7.11)
External Grants No
Other No
ATTACHMENTS
Nil.
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NOTICE OF MOTION
ITEM NO. 11 FILE NO: 21/275209

EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00019

ROBINSON RESERVE - DOG POO BAGS

COUNCILLOR: GIACOMO ARNOTT

THAT COUNCIL:

1) Notes that there are dog poo bags at Robinson Reserve Anna Bay.

2) Asks the General Manager to prepare a report on whether these dispensers can
be replaced with lockable dispensers and to provide a dedicated dog poo bag
away from the children’s playground.

BACKGROUND REPORT OF: TAMMY GUTSCHE — COMMUNITY SERVICES
SECTION MANAGER

BACKGROUND

In late 2020, the Waste Services team within Council took over the management of
the public place cleaning functions. As part of these functions, the team is
responsible for the maintenance of the dog refuse dispensers across the LGA.

Over recent months, it has been identified that a number of these refuse dispensers
located within foreshore reserves have become rusty and in need of replacement.
Robinson Reserve at Anna Bay has been identified as a location of concern.

Waste Services have conducted an audit into the condition and location of these bins
and have initiated a replacement program. Bins have been ordered and will be ready
for installation late 2021 to early 2022.

Bins at Robinson Reserve will be relocated when new bins are installed.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | No

(§7.11)

External Grants No
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Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)
Other No
ATTACHMENTS
Nil.
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NOTICE OF MOTION
ITEM NO. 12 FILE NO: 21/275212

EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00019
BOOMERANG PARK BBQS

COUNCILLOR: GIACOMO ARNOTT

THAT COUNCIL:

1) Notes that Boomerang Park Raymond Terrace is a beautiful, fantastic space
which benefits all locals and visitors with its pathway network, recreation and
exercise facilities, and natural beauty.

2) Asks the General Manager to prepare a report on whether BBQ facilities are
adequately provided for in Boomerang Park, and to identify opportunities to
increase quality BBQ facilities for public use.

BACKGROUND REPORT OF: JOHN MARETICH — ASSETS SECTION MANAGER

BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to provide background information to allow consideration
of the Notice of Motion.

The Boomerang Park Masterplan was adopted by Council in April 2016. Since the
adoption of the masterplan, a number of infrastructure improvements have been
made to the park. The masterplan does identify public barbeque facilities to be co-
located with the playground, skate park and exercise equipment, however, these are
yet to be realised.

The existing public barbeque facility in Boomerang Park is classed as being in very
poor condition and in need of relocation and upgrade. It is currently situated at the
top of the hill, near the old public amenities building and water tower.

Based on other asset rehabilitation and replacement priorities, this item is not
currently listed within Council’'s 10 year Capital Works Program. Park facilities
improvements (which would include a public barbeque replacement and upgrade) are
listed within the adopted Development Contributions Plan for estimated delivery in
2025. To fast track the delivery of items from Council’s various infrastructure plans,
staff seek to identify and secure external grant funding which may deliver these
improvements ahead of time.

The cost of providing a double plate, accessible public barbeque facility, shelter and
footpath works is estimated at $35,000.
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FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)
Existing budget Yes
Reserve Funds No
Developer Contributions | No
(S7.11)
External Grants No
Other No
ATTACHMENTS
Nil.
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NOTICE OF MOTION
ITEM NO. 13 FILE NO: 21/275223

EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00019

ILLEGAL DUMPING

COUNCILLOR: GIACOMO ARNOTT

THAT COUNCIL:

1) Notes that illegal dumping is a major problem in our remote, forested areas
close to residential parts of Port Stephens.

2) Asks the General Manager to prepare a report outlining whether lowering the
costs of going to the tip would reduce illegal dumping.

BACKGROUND REPORT OF: KATE DRINAN — DEVELOPMENT AND
COMPLIANCE SECTION MANAGER

BACKGROUND

Based on Council’'s 2021 Community Satisfaction Survey, respondents rated
satisfaction for ‘managing illegal dumping’ at 70%, 4 points higher than last year.

Council is aware of illegal dumping on our land, National Parks land and State Forest
land. Council has undertaken a large body of work in recent years to significantly
reduce the number of incidents, volume of waste and number of specific illegal waste
dumping hot spots. Council has employed a number of strategies to this affect, such
as beautifying areas with tree planting, clearing, reducing vegetation that acts as a
screen and the installation of physical barriers.

Through investigations into illegal dumping, the cost of tip fees is generally not what
influences the offender, rather it is more about behaviour and convenience. Any
reduction in tip fees would impact upon Council’'s budget.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | No

(§7.11)
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Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

External Grants No

Other No

ATTACHMENTS

Nil.
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NOTICE OF MOTION
ITEM NO. 14 FILE NO: 21/275226

EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00019
AIR QUALITY MONITORING AT EXTRACTIVE INDUSTRIAL OPERATIONS

COUNCILLOR: GIACOMO ARNOTT

THAT COUNCIL:

1) Notes that there are several extractive industries in West Ward and Central
Ward Port Stephens.

2) Notes that extractive industries are likely to cause air quality issues.
3) Prepare a letter to the Minister for Energy and Environment to request that:

e Independent monitoring is undertaken at the extractive industry operations in
the LGA to ensure that accurate data is provided to the community; and

e The data be made available to Port Stephens Council to publish on its
website.

BACKGROUND REPORT OF: JANELLE GARDNER — STRATEGY &
ENVIRONMENT SECTION MANAGER

BACKGROUND

A large number of extractive industries are in operation within the Port Stephens
Local Government Area (LGA). These include hard rock quarries in the northern and
western areas of the LGA and sand quarries along the coastline.

As extractive industries are likely to generate dust emissions during operations, the
majority of operators are required, by conditions of the Environmental Protection
Licences, to undertake air quality monitoring and report these annually to the
Environmental Protection Authority (EPA).

Although the data provided to the EPA is not publically available, the findings and any
non-compliances contained in the annual report are provided on the EPA website.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No
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Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)
Developer Contributions | No
(S7.11)
External Grants No
Other No
ATTACHMENTS
Nil.
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NOTICE OF MOTION
ITEM NO. 15 FILE NO: 21/275229

EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00019
PARKING ON COUNCIL LAND

COUNCILLOR: GIACOMO ARNOTT

THAT COUNCIL:

1) Notes that, across the whole Council area, cars, caravans and boats are parked
on road reserves or other public spaces.

2) Asks the General Manager to prepare a report on what action Council is taking
to ensure that footpaths and roads are accessible and free of nuisance vehicles
taking up space in this manner.

BACKGROUND REPORT OF: KATE DRINAN — DEVELOPMENT AND
COMPLIANCE SECTION MANAGER

BACKGROUND

Parking enforcement in our LGA is guided by the NSW Road Rules and Council’s
Compliance Policy. Council’'s Compliance Policy allows for discretion.

Discretion is often required for parking on road reserves where, for example, there
are narrow streets and there is not a clearly defined kerb and gutter. Parking
enforcement will be undertaken where it is considered to be a road safety issue
where sight lines at intersections are blocked or unreasonably impeded, where a
formed footpath is blocked or pedestrians have to reasonably move out onto the road
to get around a vehicle parked on the road reserve.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | No

(§7.11)

External Grants No

Other No
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ATTACHMENTS

Nil.
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NOTICE OF MOTION
ITEM NO. 16 FILE NO: 21/275234

EDRMS NO: PSC2017-0019
IRIS MOORE RESERVE

COUNCILLOR: GIACOMO ARNOTT

THAT COUNCIL:

1) Notes that there is ordinarily a plaque noting and acknowledging the Moore
family at Iris Moore Reserve, Anna Bay.

2) Notes that the plague has been missing for some years now.

3) Asks the General Manager to write to National Parks & Wildlife Service, asking
them to replace the plaque and provide information on their maintenance
schedule going forward.

BACKGROUND REPORT OF: JOHN MARETICH — ASSETS SECTION MANAGER

BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to provide background information to allow consideration
of the Notice of Motion.

Iris Moore Reserve is located at 10 Birubi Lane, Anna Bay (Lot 7316 DP 1137185).
The land is owned by the NSW Department of Premier and Cabinet and is managed
by the NSW National Parks & Wildlife Service. All assets located on this reserve are
the responsibility of the land manager.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)
Existing budget Yes
Reserve Funds No
Developer Contributions | No
(S7.11)
External Grants No
Other No
ATTACHMENTS
Nil.
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NOTICE OF MOTION
ITEM NO. 17 FILE NO: 21/275236

EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00019
TOMAREE ROAD FOOTPATH

COUNCILLOR: GIACOMO ARNOTT

THAT COUNCIL:

1) Notes that wheelchair bound residents currently have to use the road to travel
along parts of Tomaree Road where there is no provided footpath.

2) Asks the General Manager to provide a report outlining when a footpath will be
provided for the rest of Tomaree Road.

| BACKGROUND REPORT OF: JOHN MARETICH — ASSETS SECTION MANAGER

BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to provide background information to allow consideration
of the Notice of Motion.

With the recent road rehabilitation, 680m of new pathway was completed on
Tomaree Road, from Rigney Street to Verona Road. This leaves 2 missing links in
the pathway network on Tomaree Road; 431m from Verona Road to Messines Street
and 87m from Rigney Street to Marine Drive.

Completion of the footpath on Tomaree Road is identified within the 2018 Pathways
Plan. The construction of the Verona Road to Messines Street pathway is scheduled
to be completed with the road rehabilitation listed in the Capital Works Program for
the 2029-2030 financial year. The Rigney Street to Marine Drive missing link is
currently unfunded.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)

Existing budget Yes

Reserve Funds No

Developer Contributions | No

(S7.11)

External Grants No
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Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)
Other No
ATTACHMENTS
Nil.
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ITEM NO. 18

NOTICE OF MOTION
FILE NO: 21/275713

EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00019

NEWCASTLE AIRPORT BOARD

COUNCILLOR: GIACOMO ARNOTT

THAT COUNCIL:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

Acknowledges that at the 14 May 2019 Council meeting, Councillor Ken Jordan
moved a "matter arising” at the conclusion of Mayoral Minute 1, which
recommended that Mayor Ryan Palmer be appointed to the vacant positions on
the Newcastle Airport Pty Ltd (NAPL) and the Greater Newcastle Aerotropolis
Pty Ltd (GNAPL) Boards as the Port Stephens Council shareholder
representatives.

Notes that this motion was moved without notice, and without any capacity for

other Councillors to nominate for the position through a merit selection process.

Notes that Cr Giacomo Arnott moved an amendment calling for the matter to be

deferred by two weeks to allow Councillors to receive a report on the proposal,

as there had been no consultation or merit selection process for the position.

This amendment lapsed without a seconder.

Notes that Mayor Ryan Palmer has to date failed to explain the precise

arrangement for the $50,000 a year remuneration that he is provided through

this role.

Demands an explanation from Mayor Ryan Palmer prior to the 26 October 2021

Council Meeting, on the following:

a) Did Mayor Ryan Palmer have advance notice of the motion arising that was
to be proposed?

b) Did Mayor Ryan Palmer have a conflict of interest when he voted on a
motion which would provide him personally with $50,000 per year?

c) Does Mayor Ryan Palmer receive the $50,000 personally, and then donate it
to Council, thereby providing a tax benefit to him personally?

d) Does Port Stephens Council account for the $50,000 in its annual financial
statements as a payment or donation directly from Newcastle Airport, and if
so, does that provide a tax benefit to the Airport?

Expresses its disappointment and exasperation at Councillor Ken Jordan for

moving this motion without notice on 14 May 2019, then proceeding to move a

notice of motion condemning a similar arrangement at Port Stephens Koalas

just over two years later.
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BACKGROUND REPORT OF: TONY WICKHAM — GOVERNANCE SECTION

MANAGER

BACKGROUND

At its meeting of 14 May 2019 (ATTACHMENT 1), Council resolved to appoint Mayor
Ryan Palmer to the Boards of Newcastle Airport Pty Ltd and the Greater Newcastle
Aerotropolis Pty Ltd as the Port Stephens Council shareholder representatives.

In accordance with the terms of the constitution of Newcastle Airport Pty Ltd and the
Greater Newcastle Aerotropolis Pty Ltd and the Newcastle Airport Partnership Deed
and Greater Newcastle Aerotropolis Partnership Deed, Council as shareholder is

entitled to appoint directors to the Boards with appropriate expertise and experience.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)
Existing budget Yes
Reserve Funds No
Developer Contributions | No
(§7.11)
External Grants No
Other No
ATTACHMENTS

1) Extract of Council Minutes 14 May 2019
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ITEM 18 - ATTACHMENT 1  EXTRACT OF COUNCIL MINUTES 14 MAY 2019

MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 14 MAY 2019

MAYORAL MINUTE

ITEM NO. 1 FILE NO: 19/129410
EDRMS NO: PSC2015-01024

SUPPORT FOR RUNWAY UPGRADE PROJECT AT NEWCASTLE AIRPORT

THAT COUNCIL:

1) Provide its strong support to Newcastle Airport Pty Ltd and advocacy for
significant investment to deliver critical runway and airport infrastructure
upgrades, to enable further expansion and economic growth for the region.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 14 MAY 2019
MOTION

083 Mayor Ryan Palmer
Councillor John Nell

It was resolved that Council provide its strong support to Newcastle
Airport Pty Ltd and advocacy for significant investment to deliver critical
runway and airport infrastructure upgrades, to enable further expansion
and economic growth for the region.

Councillor Giacomo Amott left the meeting at 6:35pm, after the item was moved.
Councillor Giacomo Amott returned to the meeting at 6:35pm, prior to voting on the
matter.

Councillor Jaimie Abbott left the meeting at 6:37pm, at which time a declaration of
interest was made.

Councillor Chris Doohan left the meeting at 6:37pm, at which time a declaration of
interest was made.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 14 MAY 2019
MATTER ARISING

084 Councillor Ken Jordan
Councillor John Nell

It was resolved that:

1) Mayor Ryan Palmer be appointed to the vacant positions on the
Newcastle Airport Pty Ltd (NAPL) and Greater Newcastle Aerotropolis
Pty Ltd (GNAPL) Boards as the shareholder representative.
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ITEM 18 - ATTACHMENT 1 EXTRACT OF COUNCIL MINUTES 14 MAY 2019

MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 14 MAY 2019

2) That any remuneration received as part of these roles be returned to
Mayoral Funds at Port Stephens Council.

Councillor Jaimie Abbott returned to the meeting at 6:51pm, prior to voting.
Councillor Chris Doohan returned to the meeting at 6:52pm, prior to voting.

Cr Arnott recorded his vote against the motion.

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 14 MAY 2019
AMENDMENT

Councillor Giacomo Arnott

That the item be deferred to the next Council meeting for further
information.

The amendment lapsed without a seconder.
Cr Arnott called for division, which lapsed without a seconder.
BACKGROUND

Newecastle Airport is the gateway to Port Stephens, offering domestic and now
international travellers easy access to the greater Newcastle and Hunter region from
many destinations across Australia and beyond. Aligned with the Greater Newcastle
Future Transport Plan, Port Stephens Council recognises the strategic importance of
Newecastle Airport to drive growth in tourism, exports and local economies for the
future of our region.

To achieve this, upgrades to both the airfield and terminal are not only necessary but
critical in providing foundational opportunities to enable the airport to grow. Currently,
Newcastle Airport has a once in 15-year opportunity to seek funding for the
strengthening of the existing runway to enable larger capacity aircraft to utilise
Newcastle Airport.

Whilst this requires significant investment from the Federal Government, proposed
runway upgrades support the 2036 Hunter Regional Plan and Greater Newcastle
Metropolitan Plan. Both plans point to increasing the airport's capability to service
international routes, which will, in turn, drive strong economic outcomes for our area
and alleviate existing pressure on Sydney International Airport.

Economic projections point to an overall economic boost of $12.7Bn over the next 20
years, including $6.2Bn of regional income to visitor economy and $6.5Bn in gross
regional product through freight opportunities. This translates more than 4000
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ITEM 18 - ATTACHMENT 1  EXTRACT OF COUNCIL MINUTES 14 MAY 2019

MINUTES ORDINARY COUNCIL - 14 MAY 2019

potential new jobs for the region and $80m in savings to Hunter region residents who
will no longer need to travel to Sydney Airport.

Council will continue to advocate strongly for these crucial upgrades of Newcastle
Airport, expediting critical regional drainage improvements to facilitate additional
defence and airport related development within the Williamtown precinct. Council is
committed to driving significant and sustained long-term social outcomes and
economic benefits for the people of Port Stephens.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil.
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NOTICE OF MOTION
ITEM NO. 19 FILE NO: 21/274896

EDRMS NO: PSC2017-00019
MAYORAL DIARY

COUNCILLOR: GIACOMO ARNOTT

THAT COUNCIL:

1) Notes public interest in knowing who the Mayor is meeting with and being
potentially influenced by.

2) Notes that Newcastle City Council publishes their Lord Mayor’s diary on a
regular basis.

3) Agrees that this practice would improve accountability and transparency.

4) Agrees to publish the Mayor of Port Stephens’ diary, with information to include
who the meeting was with, the platform it was held (in person, video conference
etc), and the nature of the meeting, on the Port Stephens Council website by
the 7th of each month, for the month prior.

BACKGROUND REPORT OF: TONY WICKHAM — GOVERNANCE SECTION
MANAGER

BACKGROUND

There is currently no requirement under the Local Government Act 1993, the Local
Government (General) Regulation 2021 or any other legislation for the Mayor’s diary
to be made pubilic.

If Council were of the mind to publish the Mayor’s diary, Council would need to
ensure compliance with the Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act 1998
and must not disclose personal information unless:

1) The disclosure relates to the purpose for which the information was collected.

2) Council has no reason to believe the individual/s concerned would object to the
disclosure.

3) The individual/s concerned is reasonably likely to be aware or has been made
aware, that the information of this kind is usually disclosed to another person or
body.

4) Council believes on reasonable grounds that the disclosure is necessary to
prevent or lessen a serious and imminent threat to life or health of the individual
concerned or another person.
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FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Source of Funds Yes/No | Funding Comment
(%)
Existing budget Yes
Reserve Funds No
Developer Contributions | No
(§7.11)
External Grants No
Other No
ATTACHMENTS
Nil.
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